
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 6, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

February 6, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Tom Barbret – Lutheran Church of 
the Master 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Chief Craft will Present a Proclamation from the Avondale Youth Assistance 
Board Thanking the City of Troy for Supporting their Activities............................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment 1 



CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed 2 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National 
League of Cities (NLC) 14th Annual Leadership Summit ...................................... 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – 
Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills ...................................................... 3 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services ....................................... 3 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 
Maintenance Services .......................................................................................... 3 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Storm Water Detention Easement, 
Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement, Permanent Water Main Easement, 
Permanent Non-Accessible Greenbelt Easement, and Permanent Emergency 
Vehicle Access Easement from Carlton Villas Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-03-
451-033, 034, 035, 036, 051, 052 4 

E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Corradi’s – 1090 Rochester 
Road 4 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Storm Sewer and Public 
Utilities from Woodward Common Land Company, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-18-
477-072 5 

E-8 Private Agreement for Amberwood Condominiums – Project No. 05.907.3 5 

E-9 D & K Hannawa, LLC v. City of Troy et al 5 

E-10 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreements that the RCOC Missed in the Past 6 

E-11 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Booth (Quill Creek) Parcel Split, 
Terry L. Stamper – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002 6 



E-12 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 
40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 6 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easement – Diajeff Trust, 
Sidwell #88-20-23-100-036 7 

E-14 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easement – Manorcare 
Health Services, Inc., Sidwell #88-20-03-102-001 7 

E-15 Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 7 

E-16 Schedule of Public Hearing for William Beaumont Hospital 7 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning 
Appeals-Planning Commission Representative & Alternate; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Advisory 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Traffic Committee 8 

F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement with Christine Meyers Moore for 
Acquisition of Property at 3645 Crooks Road and for the Sale of 3236 Rochester 
Road – Sidwell #88-20-20-226-038 13 

F-3 Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code 13 

F-4 Appointment of an Acting City Manager 14 

F-5 Informal Quotation Process – Award of Emergency Water Main Repair at Maple 
and Research Drive 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 15 

a) Rezoning Application – North Side of Fourteen Mile Road, East of John R, 
Section 36 – B-2 to M-1 (Z 372-B) – February 20, 2006..................................... 15 



b) Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of Stephenson 
Highway, South Side of Maple, West of I-75, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 286-
B) – February 20, 2006....................................................................................... 15 

c) Rescheduling of Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 
Coolidge – South of Maple, East of Coolidge, Section 32 from February 20, 
2006 to February 27, 2006 ................................................................................. 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 15 

a)  Cutting Street Ad Hoc Committee Review of the Former Station 2 .................... 15 
b) 2006 Golf Division Rate Proposal....................................................................... 15 
c) Letter from Michael Hutson Requesting Discussion Regarding Term Limits for 

Boards and Committees ..................................................................................... 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 15 

H-1  Council Member Wade Fleming requested that the attached AVIS report be 
submitted to City Council for preliminary discussion.  This report indicates how 
often persons in the audience speak at the Council meetings and are in rank order 
in terms of how much time is spent at the microphone. 15 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Traffic Committee/Final – February 16, 2005 ..................................................... 16 
b) Traffic Committee/Final – March 16, 2005.......................................................... 16 
c) Traffic Committee/Final – May 18, 2005............................................................. 16 
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005........................ 16 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 20, 2005 ........................................ 16 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Draft – January 

11, 2006 ............................................................................................................. 16 
g) Library Advisory Board/Draft – January 12, 2006............................................... 16 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 17, 2006............................................ 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Real Estate and Development Department – Maple Corridor Study................... 16 
b) Information Technology Department – Wireless Oakland .................................. 16 
c) Assessing Department – Big Oak Trail Special Assessment District.................. 16 
d) Parks and Recreation – I-75 and Long Lake Interchange Properties ................. 16 
e) Parks and Recreation – Pocket Park Parcels ..................................................... 16 



f) Planning Department – Status Report on ZOTA-215C – Article 43.74.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle 
Parking Appeals ................................................................................................. 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Joseph McKay, Community Association 
of Northfield Hills, Regarding the Presentation by Officer Terry Harrison........... 16 

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Brenda Balas, in Appreciation of the 
Efforts of Officer Kaptur ...................................................................................... 16 

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Nicholas Brooks, Commending Officer Pat Browne 
for his Exemplary Performance while Serving as a Task Force Agent for the 
Drug Enforcement Administration....................................................................... 16 

d) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Police Department from Ronald Mayotte....... 16 
e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Fr. Emanuel Shaletta, St. Joseph 

Catholic Chaldean Church, in Recognition of the Outstanding Efforts of 
Lieutenant Scott McWilliams and the Troy Police Department ........................... 16 

f) Letter of Thanks to Aileen Bittner of the City Clerk's Office from Kent County 
Director of Elections Susan deSteiguer, Thanking her for her Assistance with 
Training Materials for New Elections Software and Equipment .......................... 16 

g) Letter of Thanks to Brent Savidant from Keith Pretty, President Walsh 
College, for Attending the Design Charrette for Walsh College Building 
Addition .............................................................................................................. 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Roy Rathka, Jr. v City of Troy – Court of Appeals Decision Ruling in Favor of Troy 16 

J-7  Paul and Louise Piscopo v. Troy, et al 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session 17 



RECESSED 17 

RECONVENED 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 18 
Monday, February 20, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 18 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 18 
Monday, February 27, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 18 
Monday, March 6, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 18 
Monday, March 20, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 18 
Monday, March 27, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 18 
Monday, April 3, 2006 Regular City Council.......................................................... 18 
Monday, April 17, 2006 Regular City Council........................................................ 18 
Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session) Regular City Council ................. 18 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Tom Barbret – Lutheran 
Church of the Master 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Chief Craft will Present a Proclamation from the Avondale Youth Assistance Board 

Thanking the City of Troy for Supporting their Activities 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules be AMENDED as recommended by City Administration by 
incorporating Rule Number 28, Wire Communications Between City Council Members During 
City Council Meetings. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 23, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) 14th Annual Leadership Summit     

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That those Council members interested are AUTHORIZED to attend the National 
League of Cities (NLC) 14th Annual Leadership Summit on September 21 - 23, 2006 in 
Colorado Springs, CO in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – 

Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005, a one-year contract with the option to renew for three 
additional one-year periods for the printing/distribution of water and sewer bills was awarded to 
the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. of McHenry, IL 
(Resolution #2005-03-123-E-5);  
 
WHEREAS, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the 
first of three additional one-year periods under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract for one 
additional year is hereby EXERCISED with Automated Computer Methods, Inc. to provide laser 
printing/distribution of water and sewer bills for an estimated total cost of $11,616.00 per year, 
plus the actual cost of first class postage, under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions 
as the original contract, to expire April 30, 2007. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide for seasonal requirements of lawn and yard services for 
the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) additional year is hereby 
AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Redburn’s Snow Plowing & Lawn 
Maintenance, Inc. of Rochester Hills, MI for an estimated total cost of $47,780.00, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened January 11, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of December 31, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
  
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 

Maintenance Services  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 21, 2003, a three-year contract with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional one-year period to provide landscape services for the cemeteries, non-irrigated street 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

medians, museum, fire stations, and I-75 cloverleaves was awarded to the lowest acceptable 
bidder meeting specifications, Parks Landscaping of Troy, MI (Resolution #2003-07-376), and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks Landscaping has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under the 
same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Parks Landscaping to provide landscape maintenance services on municipal 
grounds for an estimated total cost of $142,465.00, at unit prices contained on the tabulation 
opened March 28, 2003, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Storm Water Detention Easement, 

Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement, Permanent Water Main Easement, 
Permanent Non-Accessible Greenbelt Easement, and Permanent Emergency 
Vehicle Access Easement from Carlton Villas Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-03-
451-033, 034, 035, 036, 051, 052 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Storm Water Detention Easement, Permanent Sanitary 
Sewer Easement, Permanent Water Main Easement, Permanent Non-Accessible Greenbelt 
Easement, and Permanent Emergency Vehicle Access Easement, all being part of the Carlton 
Villas Condominium project who’s owner is Chary L.L.C., are hereby ACCEPTED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Corradi’s – 1090 Rochester 

Road 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 

 
RESOLVED, That the request from White Star Entertainment, Inc. to transfer ownership of a 
2005 Class C-SDM licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food) at 
1090 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, from MKC, Inc. “above all others”; be 
CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with White Star Entertainment, Inc. to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C-SDM licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food) at 1090 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, from MKC, Inc.  “above all others”; and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Storm Sewer and Public 

Utilities from Woodward Common Land Company, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-18-477-
072 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easements for Storm Sewer and Public Utilities, from 
Woodward Common Land Company, L.L.C., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-18-
477-072, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Amberwood Condominiums – Project No. 05.907.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Amberwood Condominiums of Troy, Inc., is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, paving, sidewalks, 
detention and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 D & K Hannawa, LLC v. City of Troy et al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of D & K Hannawa, LLC v City of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

Troy, et. al and to pay all expenses and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City. 
 
E-10 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreements that the RCOC Missed in the Past 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The traffic signals at Stephenson Highway crossover south of Rochester Road, 
Maple Road at Fire Station 4 (caution yellow lights), and Square Lake Road Crossover east of 
Delphi, have been installed and are in operation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the maintenance agreements with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County for the maintenance of the above mentioned traffic signals be 
APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Booth (Quill Creek) Parcel Split, 

Terry L. Stamper – Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for detention area basin from Terry L. Stamper, owner of 
the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-401-002, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission is required to conduct a public hearing before 
submitting a recommendation regarding ZOTA 215-A to City Council. 
 
WHEREAS, There is a Public Hearing scheduled for the February 14, 2006 Planning 
Commission Regular Meeting.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council hereby POSTPONES ZOTA 215-A 
to the first available City Council public hearing date that occurs after the required Planning 
Commission public hearing. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-13 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easement – Diajeff Trust, 
Sidwell #88-20-23-100-036 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Watermain Easement received from Diajeff Trust, owners of 
property having Sidwell # 88-20-23-100-036, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easement – Manorcare Health 

Services, Inc., Sidwell #88-20-03-102-001 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Watermain Easement received from Manorcare Health 
Services, Inc., owners of property having Sidwell # 88-20-03-102-001 is hereby ACCEPTED; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15 Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE City ordinances 
Chapter 98, 98.05.16 Fireworks and Chapter 93, 3301.1.3 Fireworks for the purpose of 
celebrating Chinese New Year at the Mon Jin Lau restaurant, located at 1515 East Maple 
Road, on February 8, 2006. 
 
E-16 Schedule of Public Hearing for William Beaumont Hospital 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby SCHEDULE a public hearing 
for Monday, February 27, 2006 at 7:30 PM for the purpose of receiving public input on the City 
of Royal Oak Hospital Financing Authority utilizing tax-exempt bonds, a portion of the proceeds 
of the bonds will be used to refund bonds which were used to construct an addition to the 
hospital facility of William Beaumont Hospital in the City of Troy. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of 
Zoning Appeals-Planning Commission Representative & Alternate; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor 
Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; and Traffic Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Laurence Goss  (Resigned) 04/30/08 
Katherine Lee 04/30/08 
Victor Lenivov 04/30/07 
Robert Swartz 04/30/08 
Lon Ullmann 04/30/06 
Bruce Wilberding 04/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/08 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Peggy Hammond 11/01/08 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) - Retired 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 11/01/08 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

(Student) 07/01/05 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber  (Does not request reappointment)  04/30/05 04/30/08 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals-Planning Commission Representative & Alternate 
Appointed by Planning Commission   (1 PC Representative & 1 PC Alternate) – 1 Year Term 
Confirmed by City Council (See F-1 Attachment) 
 

Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/07 
 

Alt-Planning Commission Rep Term Expires 01/31/07 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Kenneth L. Courtney 04/30/07 
Christopher Fejes 04/30/06 
Marcia Gies 04/30/07 
Michael W. Hutson 04/30/06 
Matthew R. Kovacs 04/30/08 
Mark Maxwell   04/30/08 
Wayne C. Wright PC Rep (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynne Drake-Batts  PC Alt Rep (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 02/28/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby (Does not request reappointment) 02/28/06 
Richard Hughes 02/28/09 
Robert Lin 07/01/06 
Alan Manzon 09/30/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/07 
Lisa Martinico 11/30/08 
W. Kent Voight 02/28/07 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/08 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Sabah Jihad 03/01/08 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council  (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Lauren Andreoff (Student) 07/01/06 
Cheng Chen (Student) 07/01/06 
Lynne Gregory 04/30/07 
Brian Griffen 04/30/06 
Mary Shiner 04/30/08 
Nancy Wheeler 04/30/07 
Audre Zembrzuski 04/30/08 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/09 
Alex Bennett (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
Kelsey Brunette (Student) 07/01/06 
Max Ehlert (Not eligible for reappointment due to term limits) 01/31/06 
W. S. Godlewski 01/31/08 
Patrick Hall 09/20/07 
Gary Mayer  (Captain of Troy Police Dept.)  
James Peard  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
Bohdan Ukrainec 01/31/08 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Carolyn Almassian 01/31/06 
Victor Freliga 01/31/08 
John M. Lamerato (Asst City Manager/Finance & Admin.) 01/31/06 
Conrad Miesiak  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
Frank Shier 01/31/08 
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Abraham (Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer)  
Charles Craft (Police Chief)  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

John Diefenbaker  01/31/09 
Lawrence Halsey (Requests reappointment) 01/31/06 
Jan Hubbell 01/31/08 
Richard Kilmer 01/31/08 
Richard D. Minnick II  (Does not request reappointment) 01/31/06 
William Nelson (Fire Chief)  
Gordon Schepke 01/31/09 
Katherine Tan  (Student) 07/01/06 
Peter Ziegenfelder 01/31/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement with Christine Meyers Moore for 

Acquisition of Property at 3645 Crooks Road and for the Sale of 3236 Rochester 
Road – Sidwell #88-20-20-226-038 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase with conditions between Christine Meyers Moore 
and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-20-226-038, for the acquisition of property at 3645 
Crooks Road is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $350,000.00, plus closing costs; 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED pursuant to the 
Agreement referenced above, to sell, through an open bid process, the property at 3236 
Rochester Road. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the ordinance amendments to Chapters 2, 3, 13, 34, 79, 80, 82, 82-A, 85, 
86, 88, and 93 of the Code of the City of Troy that designate certain violations of the said 
ordinances as municipal civil infractions are hereby ADOPTED with an effective date of March 
1, 2006, and a copy of these ordinances shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Appointment of an Acting City Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That       is APPOINTED Acting City Manager effective 
March 13, 2006. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Informal Quotation Process – Award of Emergency Water Main Repair at Maple 

and Research Drive 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Dan’s Excavating of Shelby Township, MI is currently under contract with the City 
of Troy for the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Stabilization Project and has considerable 
experience in specialty repair work with large diameter concrete water pipe and deep 
excavations;  
 
WHEREAS, Dan’s Excavating’s quote for labor and equipment is considered to be competitive 
and reasonable for our area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract for emergency water main repair work 
at Maple and Research Drive is hereby APPROVED to Dan’s Excavating at an estimated cost 
of $72,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if unforeseen circumstances should arise that require 
additional work to be performed and the scope of the project expanded, such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost or $18,000.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application – North Side of Fourteen Mile Road, East of John R, Section 36 – 

B-2 to M-1 (Z 372-B) – February 20, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application – Proposed Medical Office, East Side of Stephenson Highway, 

South Side of Maple, West of I-75, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 286-B) – February 20, 
2006  

c) Rescheduling of Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South 
of Maple, East of Coolidge, Section 32 from February 20, 2006 to February 27, 2006 

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a)  Cutting Street Ad Hoc Committee Review of the Former Station 2  
b) 2006 Golf Division Rate Proposal  
c) Letter from Michael Hutson Requesting Discussion Regarding Term Limits for Boards 

and Committees  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Council Member Wade Fleming requested that the attached AVIS report be submitted to 
City Council for preliminary discussion.  This report indicates how often persons in the 
audience speak at the Council meetings and are in rank order in terms of how much time 
is spent at the microphone.   

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Traffic Committee/Final – February 16, 2005  
b) Traffic Committee/Final – March 16, 2005  
c) Traffic Committee/Final – May 18, 2005  
d) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 20, 2005  
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Draft – January 11, 2006  
g) Library Advisory Board/Draft – January 12, 2006 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 17, 2006  

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Real Estate and Development Department – Maple Corridor Study  
b) Information Technology Department – Wireless Oakland  
c) Assessing Department – Big Oak Trail Special Assessment District  
d) Parks and Recreation – I-75 and Long Lake Interchange Properties  
e) Parks and Recreation – Pocket Park Parcels  
f) Planning Department – Status Report on ZOTA-215C – Article 43.74.00, Article 40.65.02 

and Article 44.00.00, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Joseph McKay, Community Association of Northfield 

Hills, Regarding the Presentation by Officer Terry Harrison  
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Brenda Balas, in Appreciation of the Efforts of 

Officer Kaptur  
c) Letter to Chief Craft from Nicholas Brooks, Commending Officer Pat Browne for his 

Exemplary Performance while Serving as a Task Force Agent for the Drug Enforcement 
Administration   

d) Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Police Department from Ronald Mayotte  
e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Fr. Emanuel Shaletta, St. Joseph Catholic 

Chaldean Church, in Recognition of the Outstanding Efforts of Lieutenant Scott 
McWilliams and the Troy Police Department  

f) Letter of Thanks to Aileen Bittner of the City Clerk's Office from Kent County Director of 
Elections Susan deSteiguer, Thanking her for her Assistance with Training Materials for 
New Elections Software and Equipment  

g) Letter of Thanks to Brent Savidant from Keith Pretty, President Walsh College, for 
Attending the Design Charrette for Walsh College Building Addition 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Roy Rathka, Jr. v City of Troy – Court of Appeals Decision Ruling in Favor of Troy 
 
J-7  Paul and Louise Piscopo v. Troy, et al 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e) and (h), Pending Litigation – Papadelis v. City of Troy 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  February 6, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 20, 2006.......................................................Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 27, 2006.......................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, March 6, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 20, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 27, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 3, 2006................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, April 17, 2006.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 24, 2006 (Budget Study Session) ....................... Regular City Council 

 
 



campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



   Memorandum 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: January 26, 2006 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment  

 
  
 
In response to City Council’s request to limit electronic communications between 
Council Members during Council meetings, the attached altered version of Council 
Rules of Procedure was prepared. 
 
The proposed Rules of Procedure provides a new Rule Number 28, Wire 
Communications Between Council Members During City Council Meetings as 
noted in red. Rule 28 cites the Open Meetings Act and prohibits wire 
communications by City Council members during City Council meetings. 
 
The proposed Rule Number 29 is placed before Council based on some of the 
discussion at the meeting of January 23, 2006. It serves only as a starting point to 
control and/or limit the use of electronic information gathering applications by City 
Council Members during City Council meetings. City Administration believes that 
this goes beyond the scope of the Open Meetings Act and therefore awaits 
Council’s input and direction in moving this rule forward. 
 
A recommended motion to incorporate a change to Rule #28 would be as follows: 
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules be AMENDED as recommended by City 
Administration by incorporating Rule Number 28, Wire Communications Between 
City Council Members During City Council Meetings. 
 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved:  
  
  
  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  November 14, 2005 February 
6, 2006 

 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM........................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR............................................................... 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ........................................................................................ 1 
A. ... 1CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2)
B. DOCUMENTATION: .......................................................................................... 1 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: .............................................................................. 1 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS..................................................................................... 1 
E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA...................................................... 2 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS...................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA ............................................................................................................ 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS..................................................................................... 2 
7. REGULAR BUSINESS....................................................................................... 3 
8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ......................................... 3 
9. MINUTES ........................................................................................................... 4 
10. PROCLAMATIONS............................................................................................ 4 
11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS ........................................................... 4 
12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS......................................................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING............................................................................................. 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ......................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS............................................................................................... 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA................................................................................................. 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS.................................................. 6 
17. POSTPONE........................................................................................................ 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ........................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES........................................................................ 6 
20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS...................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ............................................................ 7 
22. SUSPEND RULES............................................................................................. 7 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION.................................................................................... 7 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS:.............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS........................................................... 7 
26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ...... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS...................................................................................................... 7 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL ........................................................................ 7 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order: Broomfield, Howrylak, Stine, Lambert, Fleming, Beltramini. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member present 
who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the duties of the 
Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 

A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 
Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

B. DOCUMENTATION: 
Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in 
the Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for 

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written 
notice calling the meeting.   

• (b) Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session 
Agendas shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 
Special meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

02-06-06 

 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
d) Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter  
e) See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda   
f) Public Comment 
g) Adjournment 

11-14-05 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call 

of the meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M on the first and third 
Monday each month, except for holidays or holiday-eves recognized by the City of Troy, 
regular or special election days, or unless canceled by resolution of the Council. Council also 
will meet on the fourth (4th) Monday of the month in the months of September, October, 
November, January, February, March, April and May.  
• It is the intention of City Council that no business be placed upon the fourth (4th) Monday of 

the month meeting unless so indicated on the Regular Agenda due to extenuating 
circumstances. The fourth (4th) Monday of the month meeting will be routinely adjourned 
without action to allow the City Council to go into a Special meeting of City Council for the 
purpose of study where no action will be taken. 

5. AGENDA 
(a) Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting.  Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets.  It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting.  Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent.  All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules.  A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 

 
(b) Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  Where a Closed 
Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 

11-14-05 02-06-06 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 

5. A. Certificates of Recognition 
6. B. Carryover Items 
7. C.  Public Hearings 
8. D.  Postponed Items 
9. E.  Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2. Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion 
• Council will move forward all of the “E” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

10. Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 

11. F.  Regular Business 
• Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

12. F.  Regular Business 
• Address Remaining F Items 

13. G.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
14. H.  Council Referrals 

• Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the Mayor 
or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting  

15. I.  Council Comments 
• Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular 

Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are not 
intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

16. J.  Reports 
• No Public Comment received on “J” Items at this time. 

17. K.  Study Items 
18. Public Comment  
19. L.  Closed Session 
20. Adjournment 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS 
• Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the 
Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for 
the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with 
members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by 
Council, through the Chair.  

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings of 
City Council. 

11-14-05 02-06-06 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 

9. MINUTES 
a. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The minutes 

will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
 
b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  
Where a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion and 
shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. Reconsideration of 
any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted motion and shall 
require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided that new 
information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings.  The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated meeting 
Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
• The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and 
have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall 
be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. 
Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 9 “E”.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or Committees 
as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 

11-14-05 02-06-06 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 

 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall submit such name, along with a brief summary of 
background and personal data as to nominee's qualifications, except that such a resume 
shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary.  Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of voting. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All nominations are subject 
to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 

shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 

votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 

the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership 
is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 

them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community 

on Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November.  

 

11-14-05 02-06-06 

2. SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the 
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 

Adopted: 

 

11-14-05 02-06-06 

 
 
 

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that 
if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate 
department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still 
not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not more 

than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair. 
• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 

members. 
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 

speak on one topic through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council 
members elect. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically appear 
on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th Edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby 
adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, 
and the City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid the 
Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences 

sponsored by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject 
fiscal year. The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of 
town travel to specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will 
submit expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed to 
supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that may 
have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 

26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 
 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code Title 
18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 

11-14-05 02-06-06 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 8 
 

Adopted: 

29. USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES BY COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
With the exception of the City Council agenda support applications; City Council Members shall 
refrain from using electronic applications during City Council Meetings as an alternate resource 
to influence the deliberative process during City Council Meetings. 
 

11-14-05 02-06-06 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 23, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 
 
Pastor Paul Lehman of Glen Oaks Alliance Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented Ardath Labriola a 

Certificate of Appreciation recognizing her years of service. 
 
Mayor Schilling recognized Council Member Lambert as recipient of the Silver Certificate 
Leadership of Achievement award from the National League of Cities in recognition of his hard 
work and dedication. In addition, Mayor Schilling congratulated Council Member Beltramini on 
her recent appointment as Vice-Chair to the National League of Cities City Futures Panel on 
Democratic Governments for 2006 and noted that this committee represents people throughout 
the United States. 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rui Cai Li, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford box truck in a residential district at 5028 Abington is hereby APPROVED for a period of 
sixty (60) days. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2006-01-019 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Commercial Vehicle Appeal–5028 Abington be AMENDED 
by STRIKING “for a period of sixty (60) days” and INSERTING “until March 1, 2006.” 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
No:  Schilling, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-01-020 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Rui Cai Li, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford box truck in a residential district at 5028 Abington is hereby APPROVED until March 1, 
2006.  
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert,  
No: Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
D-2 Vote on Reconsidered Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester 

Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) 
 
Resolution #2006-01-021 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Beltramini 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, Section 23, part of parcel 88-20-23-301-003, being 0.48 acres in 
size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of 
Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SW 1⁄4 of Section 23 
 

Outlot “A” of Dean Estates Subdivision (Liber 119, Pages 17-18, of Oakland County 
Records) being more particularly described as: Commencing at the West 1⁄4 corner of 
Section 23, thence S 00°09’20” W, 263.59 ft. along the west line of Section 23; thence N 
89°59’54” E, 75.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence N 89°59’54” E, 140.00 ft.; thence 
S 00°09’20” W, 150.00 ft.; thence S 89°59’54” W, 140.00 ft.; thence N 00°09’20” E, 
150.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning. Containing 0.48 ac., more or less, and subject to 
easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Stine, Beltramini  
No: Lambert, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-01-022 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-5, E-7 and E-9, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of January 9, 2006 and the 
Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting of January 16, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Proposed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal – Bullet Resistant 

Vests    
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase bullet resistant vests from CMP Distributors 22206 
West Warren Avenue, Detroit, Michigan 48239, is hereby APPROVED through the State of 
Michigan MiDeal contract 071B5200343 under the same pricing structure, terms, and 
conditions expiring July 28, 2008, with additional purchases allowed for trauma reduction plates 
as needed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the grant along with matching funds for one-half the cost of 
the complete vest is hereby AUTHORIZED.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Two 32,000 GVW Regenerative Air Street Sweepers Less Two 
Trade-Ins    

 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase two 32,000 GVW regenerative air street sweepers is 
hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, W.F. Miller Company of Novi, 
MI, for an estimated total cost of $295,552.00, as detailed in the bid tabulation opened 
November 22, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fleet Maintenance Division is AUTHORIZED TO 
ACCEPT OR REJECT the trade-in offer of $35,000.00 for each sweeper, pending the results to 
offer the equipment for sale on the open market at an amount greater than $35,000.00 each.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Sanitary Sewer 

Rehabilitation Program    
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Program by June 
30, 2006 is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Insituform Technologies USA, Inc. of 
Chesterfield, MO, for an estimated total cost of $227,490.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened December 12, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Water System 
Materials   

 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide one-year requirements of water system materials are 
hereby AWARDED to the following low bidders: 
 

 Estimated Total Cost
• SLC Meter Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI  $16,470.00 
• East Jordan Iron Works Inc. of Oak Park, MI $24,578.00 
• Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI $ 5,175.00 
• Cambridge Brass of Cambridge, Ontario Canada $50,687.00 
• National Waterworks Inc. of Shelby Township, MI 

plus Mueller fire hydrant parts discounted at 5% $13,687.00 

 
At unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 27, 2005, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Surplus Parcel   
 
Resolution#2006-01-022-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to sell surplus real estate parcel #20-03-226-104 located on East 
Lovell, is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Franco C. Mancini of Shelby Township, MI, at a 
total cost of $201,000.00, as listed on the attached bid tabulation opened December 7, 2005, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department may 
EXPEND the necessary funds for title insurance and recording, to be taken from the proceeds 
of said sale, to close and record this real estate parcel; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Warranty Deed to be delivered at closing. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Pump Replacement for Sylvan Glen Golf Course Pump Station   
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all labor, tools and equipment to remove and dispose of 
existing pumps and replace them with a new prefabricated station at Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Marc Dutton Irrigation, Inc. of 
Waterford, Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $91,250.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, 
and all other specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 
Maintenance Services   

 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-4g 
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy 
Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the 
highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2002-04-213); 
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005, the first of two (2) one-year options to renew the contract 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 season was approved (Resolution 
#2005-03-126); 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the second of two (2) one-year options to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as for the 2005 season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for an 
estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 
2002, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. In addition, 
APPROVAL IS GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 
to Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road for an 
estimated cost of $29,764.00.  
 
E-6 Troy Historical Society Agreement 
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That an agreement with the Troy Historical Society is APPROVED that is intended 
to delineate the process for the City of Troy and the Historical Society to work together during 
the five-year capital fund raising campaign that the Troy Historical Society’s Heritage Campaign 
is undertaking to expand the Troy Museum and Historic Village, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Certified Local Government Application 
 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy make an application to the State Historic Preservation Office 
of the Michigan Department of History, Arts and Libraries for Certified Local Government 
designation, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SUBMIT the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

E-10 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lake and Livernois 
Concrete Pavement Replacement Project – Project No. 05.106.5 

 
Resolution #2006-01-022-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the Long Lake and Livernois Concrete Pavement 
Replacement Project, Project No. 05.106.5, at a cost to the City of Troy not to exceed 
$602,572.00 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Agreement.  
  
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-5 Private Agreement for National City Bank – Project No. 05.935.3 
 
Resolution #2006-01-023 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and TTertt Associates, L.L.C., is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of water main, storm sewer and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of 
way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-7 Approval to Sell City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel Located in Section 22, 

Between Troy and Frankton Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – Sidwell #88-20-22-
357-031 

 
Resolution #2006-01-024 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Staff to renegotiate the contract with 
Andale Investment Company, Inc. for the city-owned surplus remnant parcel located in Section 
22, between Troy and Frankton Streets fronting on Big Beaver with a Sidwell #88-20-22-357-
031 and bring this item back as an agenda item before City Council at their next Regular 
Meeting scheduled for Monday, February 6, 2006. 
 
Yes:  Howrylak  
No: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:12 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:22 PM. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel Located 
in Section 22, Between Troy and Frankton Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – Sidwell #88-
20-22-357-031 
  
Resolution #2006-01-025 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council finds that “the public interest 
will best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 85-254 Policy 
Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess Right-of-Way and approve the sale of the remnant parcel 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-357-031 on the north side of Big Beaver between Troy and Frankton 
Streets to Andale Investment Company, Inc. in the amount of $22,500.00, the appraised value, 
as outlined in the attached Offer to Purchase, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-9 Approval to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels 
 
Resolution #2006-01-026 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Approval to Publish and Solicit for Public Sealed Bid – 
Sale of 3 Surplus Parcels be POSTPONED until City Council has the opportunity to revisit 
Resolution 85-254 Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess Right-of-Way to determine 
whether it needs amendment. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None b) City 
Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; Election Commission; Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; and Traffic Committee 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  - None 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Resolution #2006-01-027 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Richard Hughes Term Expires 02/28/09 
 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council (2-Regular; 1-Charter) – 1 Year Term 
 
David C. Anderson Term Expires 01/31/07 
 
Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/07 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 & 2 Year Terms 
 
Tony Y. Haddad  Unexpired Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Henry W. Allemon Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
John Diefenbaker Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Gordon Schepke Term Expires 01/31/09 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Council Rules of Procedure Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-01- 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules be AMENDED as recommended by City Administration by 
incorporating Rule Number 28, Electronic Communications. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-01-028 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Council Rules of Procedure Amendment be POSTPONED 
until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, February 6, 2006 to provide the 
City Attorney with the opportunity to clarify the intent of the proposed amendment. 
 
 Yes: All-7  
 
F-3 Approval of Poverty Exemption Guidelines 
 
Resolution #2006-01-029 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That pursuant to MCL 211.7u, the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES the proposed “Poverty Exemption Guidelines” for 2006, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 10, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Approval of Proposal from The Mercer Group, Inc. for Executive Recruitment 

Services; City Manager 
 
Resolution #2006-01-030 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy ENGAGE The Mercer Group, Inc. for executive recruitment 
services for the position of City Manager in accordance with their proposal dated January 11, 
2006 for an estimated cost not to exceed $20,000.00. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Broomfield, Fleming  
No: Beltramini   
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Special Meeting 
 
Resolution #2006-01-031 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Fleming   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting on Monday, 
February 6, 2006 at 5:30 PM in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, 
Troy, Michigan, for the purpose of discussing executive recruitment services for the position of 
City Manager. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
F-5 Scheduling of Closed Session for the Purpose of Performance Evaluation of City 

Manager 
 
Resolution #2006-01-032 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That a Closed Session is SCHEDULED for Monday, January 30, 2006 at 7:30 PM 
in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, for the purpose 
of performance evaluation of the City Manager. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City 
Manager 
 
Resolution #2006-01-033 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert    
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Closed Session on Monday, 
February 13, 2006 at 7:30 PM in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, 
Troy, Michigan, for the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager pursuant to 
State Statute MCLA 15.268, Section (a).  
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

F-6 PROTEC Membership 
 
Resolution #2006-01-034 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Administration’s recommendation that the City of Troy re-join 
PROTEC is hereby APPROVED and AUTHORIZES payment of the annual membership dues 
in the amount of $10,119.88.  
 
Yes: Beltramini, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) NextEnergy Exemptions – February 20, 2006 
b) Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, East of 

Coolidge, Section 32 – February 20, 2006 
Noted and Filed 

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code 

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested that Staff Compile a List of State-licensed Day 
Care Facilities in Troy 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Election Commission/Final – October 4, 2005  
b) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 20, 2005 
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – October 26, 2005  
d) Planning Commission/Draft – November 29, 2005  
e) Planning Commission/Final – November 29, 2005  
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 1, 2005 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 6, 2005  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 6, 2005  
i) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft December 7, 2005  
j) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 7, 2005  
k) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 7, 2005 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – December 13, 2005  
m) Planning Commission/Final – December 13, 2005 
n) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 14, 2005  
o) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 20, 2005 
p) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Draft – December 21, 2005  
q) Troy Youth Council/Draft – December 21, 2005  
r) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 3, 2006 
s) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 4, 2006  
t) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 5, 2006 
u) Election Commission/Draft – January 9, 2006  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Manager’s Office – Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the 

National League of Cities’ Congress of Cities Meeting  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Year 2005  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued July through December 2005 
d) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of December 2005  
e) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC  
f) Information Technology – Liberty Information Management Systems Enterprise Wide 

Content Management Software – Update  
g) Planning Department – Preliminary Site Plan Approval (SP 921) Briggs Park 

Condominium, East Side of Rochester, North Side of Lamb, Section 14 – R-1T, E-P and 
R-1C  

h) Manager’s Office – City of Troy Quarterly Financial Report – December 31, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Kevin Sagan, Madison Heights Chief of Police, in 

Appreciation of the Assistance Given by the Troy Police Department  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Pastor David Lomasney, Zion Christian Church, 

Minister of Outreach and Missions, Regarding the Assistance Received from the Troy 
Police Department  

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Gloria Gold, in Appreciation of the Efforts of Animal 
Control Officer Don Cochran  

d) Letter of Thanks to Mark Miller from John Secco, Allegra Development, Regarding the 
Assistance Received from the Planning Department and City Council with the Fourteen 
Mile Road Property Rezoning 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted  
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  January 23, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

J-6  Letter from Robert C. Bendzinski, CIPFA, of Bendzinski & Co. Regarding 
Misrepresentation of Statements 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Letter from National League of Cities Regarding Robin Beltramini's Appointment 

as Vice Chair of the City Futures Panel on Democratic Governance for 2006 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:08 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



January 30, 2006 
 
 
 
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Admin. Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10  

Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds  
for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses - 
National League of Cities (NLC) 14th Annual Leadership Summit 

 
 
 
 
Authorization is requested for those Council members interested to attend the NLC 
14th Annual Leadership Summit titled “Leading Local Government:  A Voyage of 
Endurance” on September 21 - 23, 2006 Colorado Springs, CO. 
 
Funds are available in Council’s education and training account #102.7960. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr 
 
AGENDA ITEMS\2006\02.06.06 – Stand Res #10 – NLC 14th Annual Leadership Summit 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES ★ LEADERSHIP TRAINING INSTITUTE

LEADERSHIP
TRAINING INSTITUTE

September 21-23, 2006
Cheyenne Mountain Resort

Colorado Springs, CO

LEADING LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

A Voyage of Endurance

14th Annual Leadership Summit

NLC’s Leadership Training Institute Co-Sponsored and Developed in Partnership with The Rocky Mountain Program



Leading a community through the daily routines of life as well as through the chal-
lenging times of chaos and crises can often be perceived as a voyage of endurance.
More importantly, when the dominant existing public conversation is void of
accountability and soft on commitment, leading the way can be perceived as 
leading in challenging times.

Make your plans now to participate in the 14th Annual Leadership Summit at the
Cheyenne Mountain Resort in Colorado Springs, CO.  The National League of Cities’
Leadership Training Institute presents a program designed to enhance your success
and understanding of your leadership role and responsibilities as an elected official.

Changing Our Ideas of Leadership
Commitment is what transforms a promise into reality; it is the power to change the
face of things; it is the daily triumph of integrity over skepticism.  To be committed
means you are willing to make a promise with no expectation of return; a promise not
conditional on another’s action.  Leaders create the conditions for civic engagement
through the power they have to focus attention and define the conversations for 
people when they gather.  We have many obsolete ideas about leadership that can
interfere with creating widespread accountability and commitment.  

The Restoration of Community 
Explore the opportunities to create commitment and accountability, and encourage
people to act as owners.  Leadership is getting people connected with each other
and confronting them with their freedom.  Explore leadership based on invitation and
consent.  Most of our efforts at building institutions try to drive and engineer change.
Strategies of consent create communities where accountability replaces entitle-
ment, commitment replaces negotiation, and conversation replaces persuasion and
manipulation.  Examine the elements that create the social space where change and
development can be chosen instead of feared and fought.  

Leading the Way in Challenging Times 
Explore the difficulties and opportunities of leadership in challenging times.  Examine
the differences between technical vs. adaptive challenges of leadership; know when
you are ‘stuck in the ice’ and don’t confuse an adaptive challenge with a technical
challenge.  Build the skills and knowledge required to be effective as you increase
your ability to be successful; develop frameworks and practical techniques that will
be useful in analyzing situations you are confronting.  

Develop Skills and Examine Key Lessons
Focus on analytic and political skill development, including the capacity to distin-
guish technical from adaptive work; assessing where others are; delving beneath
the issue; how to read authority figures for clues; accepting responsibility and 
ownership; modeling behavior; and accepting causalities.  Learn about orchestrat-
ing the conflict, giving the work back, and how to hold steady so that attention is
focused on the right issues.

Overcome the Challenges of Leadership
Join renowned author Peter Block and leadership scholar Allan Wallis, along with
leadership trainers Pam Shipp and Michael Gardner, and civic leader Christopher
Gates, as you engage in a dynamic and reflective program that confronts the 
challenges of leadership in local government. 

Insightful learning experiences will provide you the opportunity to reflect, 
recognize and appreciate what you can do to enhance your success as a local 
community leader.  Thoughtful presentations will help you identify those leadership 
skills and abilities necessary to lead effectively and strengthen your role in local 
government.  

Core Competency:
Cornerstone/Collaborator…  10 Credits in the Certificate of Achievement in
Leadership program

Thursday, September 21st
8:00 a.m. Registration

9:00 – 11:30 a.m. Leadership Training Council meeting 
(LTC Members only)

9:00 – 5:30 p.m. Leadership Bookstore open

12:00 – 1:30 p.m. Lunch

1:30 – 5:00 p.m. Opening Session
Building our Learning Community
★ Pam Shipp, Program Facilitator
Creating a New Culture: Changing Our 
Ideas of Leadership 
★ Peter Block

6:00 p.m. Welcoming Reception

Friday, September 22nd
8:00 a.m. Continental Breakfast 

8:00 – 5:30 p.m. Leadership Bookstore open

8:30 – 3:00 p.m. Guest/Spouse Tour of Colorado Springs 
area 

8:30 – 12:00 noon Leading in Challenging Times: 
The Role of Adaptive Leadership
★ Allan Wallis

12:00 – 1:30 p.m. Lunch

1:30 – 5:00 p.m. Shackleton’s Crossing: An Experience 
of Leadership and Commitment 
★ Michael Gardner

6:00 p.m. An Evening in Colorado Springs 
(Air Force Academy - Norad – Ft. Carson)

Saturday, September 23rd
8:00 a.m. Continental Breakfast

8:00 – 2:00 p.m. Leadership Bookstore open

8:30 – 12:00 noon The Restoration of Community: 
Sharing the Public Agenda
★ Christopher T. Gates

12:00 – 1:30 p.m. Lunch

Summit concludes

Preliminary schedule of events for the Summit 
(subject to change).

Leading Local Government:
A Voyage of Endurance

Cover photo licensed with permission of the 
Scott Polar Research Institute, University of Cambridge.



Christopher Gates is President of the National Civic League, the
nation’s oldest organization advocating for the issues of communi-
ty democracy that was founded in 1894 by civic reformers includ-
ing Teddy Roosevelt and Louis Brandeis.  He also serves as a mem-
ber of NCL’s Board of Directors and was Vice President of the
National Civic League for eight years prior to becoming its
President in 1995.  Gates speaks extensively around the country,
and around the world, on topics including the changing forms 
of democracy, citizen participation, community visioning and
strategic planning.  He has also regularly lectured in a variety of
academic institutions, including the University of Colorado’s

Graduate School of Public Affairs and the State and Local
Government Program at Harvard’s Kennedy School of Government,
and is a regular instructor in leadership training programs across
the country. 

Gates serves on a variety of other boards including the
National Commission on Civic Renewal, the Council for the
Advancement of Citizenship, and the California Center for Civic
Renewal.  He is also co-chair of the Civic Practices Network, 
co-chair of the Saguaro Seminar, a Harvard University project
studying ‘social capital’ and co-chair of the Alumni Council of the
Kennedy School of Government’s Career Services Office.

Peter Block

Dr. Pam Shipp

Dr. Allan Wallis

Michael Gardner

Christopher Gates

Leadership Summit PresentersLeadership Summit Presenters

Peter Block is an author, consultant and citizen of Cincinnati, Ohio.
His work is about empowerment, stewardship, chosen accounta-
bility, and the reconciliation of community.  Peter is the author of
several best-selling books including Flawless Consulting: A Guide
to Getting Your Expertise Used (1st Ed 1980, 2nd Ed 1999);
Stewardship: Choosing Service Over Self-Interest (1993) and The
Empowered Manager: Positive Political Skills at Work (1987).
Block is the recipient of the first place 2004 Members’ Choice
Award by the Organization Development Network, recognizing
Flawless Consulting.  Peter has also authored Flawless Consulting
Fieldbook & Companion: A Guide to Understanding Your Expertise
(2000). The Answer to How Is Yes: Acting on What Matters
(Berrett-Koehler, 2002) won the 2002 Independent Book Publisher
Award for Business Breakthrough Book of the Year.  Freedom and

Accountability at Work: Applying Philosophic Insight to the Real
World was co-authored with Peter Koestenbaum (Jossey-
Bass/Pfeiffer, 2001). 

Peter serves on the Board of Directors of Cincinnati Classical
Public Radio and acts as an advisor to the City of Hope and Hip Hop
Center in Cincinnati.  He is the first Distinguished Consultant-in-
Residence at Xavier University.  He has received national awards
for outstanding contributions in the field of training and develop-
ment, including the American Society for Training and
Development Award for Distinguished Contributions; the
Association for Quality and Participation President’s Award; and
Training Magazine HRD Hall of Fame.  He received his master’s
degree in Industrial Administration from Yale University and did his
undergraduate work at the University of Kansas.

Dr. Pam Shipp is a Senior Program Associate at the Center for
Creative Leadership at the Colorado Springs campus.  In addition
to the Leadership Development Program (LDP), Pam is a faculty
member of the Leadership at the Peak (LAP) and the Foundations
of Coaching (FOC).  She is an adjunct professor at Denver
University’s graduate program in Counseling Psychology special-
izing in issues of leadership credibility, assessing leadership
behaviors and counselor supervision.  Pam is the author of
Counseling Blacks: A Group Approach; The Personnel and
Guidance Journal, Oct. 83; Managing Diverse Work Teams:
Leaders in Action, Jan/Feb 01, Vol. 20; Building Communities For
Tomorrow, One Person At A Time, (2002).  

Shipp is a licensed psychologist and managed a private

clinical practice in Colorado Springs for 12 years.  Pam has
worked as a public school administrator, a business manage-
ment consultant, and an executive coach.  She is a member of
the Association of Black Psychologists, a board member of the
Colorado Springs Black Leadership Forum, the Pikes Peak
Community Foundation, Penrose-St. Francis Hospital and a past
member of the El Pomar Foundation Advisory Board.  She has
served on the Board of Directors for the Colorado Springs
Children’s Museum; The Boys and Girls Club of the Pikes Peak
Region; and the Colorado Springs Human Relations Board.  Pam
has been recognized in Who’s Who in Black Colorado Springs, is
a recipient of the NAACP Community Service Award, and was
featured in the Gazette Telegraph’s Women at the Top. 

Dr. Allan Wallis is an Associate Professor of Public Policy at the
Graduate School of Public Affairs, University of Colorado at Denver,
where he directs the Ph.D. program as well as the concentration in
local government.  He currently teaches courses in leadership and
ethics, urban policy, growth management policy, and innovation in
public management.  He has also taught courses in architecture,
city planning and urban design.  An active researcher, Dr. Wallis
focuses his work on emerging forms of metropolitan regional 
governance, leadership development, and methods for improving
collaboration among nonprofit organizations.  He is currently work-

ing on a metropolitan regionalism project in South Florida and
Chicago under a grant from the MacArthur Foundation.  He has
authored numerous articles, book chapters, and a book entitled,
Wheel Estate: the Rise and Decline of Mobile Homes.

Wallis holds a bachelor’s degree in Architecture from The
Cooper Union, a master’s in Public Administration from the Kennedy
School of Government at Harvard, and a Ph.D. in Environmental
Psychology from the Graduate School of the City University of New
York.  Dr. Wallis has also taught at The Cooper Union, Pratt Institute,
Ball State University and the University of Colorado at Boulder.

Michael Gardner has been an adjunct faculty member at the
Center for Creative Leadership for the past seven years.  He works
with senior-level executives in industry and government from
around the world in the Center’s flagship program, Leadership at
The Peak (LAP).  Gardner began his work in leadership develop-
ment as a trainer and program leader at the Santa Fe Mountain
Center where he worked with candidates for parole at the state
prison and youth reformatory in wilderness programs.  He then

served on faculty for Peak Performance where he has helped
design and run programs for Sears, Johnson & Johnson, Expedia,
Carlson Hotels and many other organizations. 

Gardner is also publisher of Springs Magazine, a 23-year-old
arts and cultural magazine for Colorado Springs and is co-founder
of Blue Clover Press, an outdoor adventure guide publishing house
with six current titles, including Dawson’s Guide To Colorado’s
Fourteeners, one of the state’s best-selling mountaineering guides.



National League of Cities Institute
1301 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004

Non-Profit Org.
U.S. Postage 

PAID
Permit No. 231
Merrifield, VA

3.) Make your room reservation directly with the 
Cheyenne Mountain Resort before August 30th by 
calling (800) 428-8886.
Guest Room Rate for : 
Single... $153      Double... $153      Suite... $239
Check-in: 4:00 pm Check-out: Noon

4.) Make your travel reservations…
The Cheyenne Mountain Resort is 15 minutes from
Colorado Springs Airport by cab or rental car.  Cabs
are available outside baggage claim for $20.00.
Cheyenne Mountain Resort limovans are available for
$15.00; contact the resort to make airport pickup
reservations.

Registration Cancellation Policy: 
Registration Cancellation Policy: All requests to can-
cel a registration must be submitted in writing by
August 30, 2006, to receive a refund.  All cancellations
are subject to a $75.00 processing fee.  Telephone
cancellations cannot be accepted.  Submit written
cancellation request to LTI Summit c/o National
League of Cities.

How to Register
1.) To register by credit card…

a. Complete the registration form and include  
your credit card information

b. Fax your registration form to (202) 626-3043

2.) To register by check or purchase order…
a. Fax your completed registration form and 

a copy of your check or purchase order to 
(202) 626-3043

b. Attach a copy of your registration form with a
check made payable to NLC and mail to:

National League of Cities
14th Annual Leadership Summit
1301 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Suite 550
Washington, DC  20004-1763

REGISTRATION FORM:

REGISTRATION FEES 
(check appropriate boxes below):

Early Bird Registration
(faxed or postmarked by March 1, 2006)

❏ $595  Member City
❏ $195  Spouse/Guest Fee

Advance Registration
(faxed or postmarked by July 15, 2006)

❏ $695  Member City
❏ $245  Spouse/Guest Fee

Late Registration
(faxed or postmarked after July 15, 2006)

❏ $795  Member City
❏ $295  Spouse/Guest Fee

NLC Member City:  Yes ❏ No ❏
________ Non-Member City add $100.00 to reg. fee

Total Registration Fees submitted

Don’t Delay!! Availability is limited.
No registrations will be accepted after August 30th,
2006 or earlier when maximum retreat size is reached. 

For More Information, call (202) 626-3127. Registration Deadline is 8/30/06  •  No registration after this date.

Credit Card Authorization:
NLC is authorized to use the credit card below to pay my registration fees.  

AmEx/VISA/MasterCard Number  _________________________________ Exp. Date ____________

Card Holder Name _________________________________________________________________

Card Holder Signature  _________________________________________________________________

COPY THIS FORM AS NEEDED FOR ADDITIONAL REGISTRANTS

Name ___________________________________________________________________________

Spouse/Guest Name: _______________________________________________________________

Title  ____________________________________________________________________________

Representing City of  ________________________________________________________________

Address __________________________________________________________________________

City _____________________________________ State_______ Zip__________________________

Area Code/Phone # (______) _________________ Fax #  (_____)____________________________

E-mail  ___________________________________________________________________________

Clerk E-mail _______________________________________________________________________

Special Needs _____________________________________________________________________



January 24, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise 

Renewal Option – Printing/Distribution of Water & Sewer Bills 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 21, 2005, City Council approved a one-year contract to provide 
production, printing, and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer bills 
with an option to renew for three additional one-year periods to the lowest 
acceptable bidder meeting specifications, Automated Computer Methods Inc. of 
McHenry, IL (Council Resolution #2005-03-123-E-5).  Staff recommends the City 
exercise the option to renew the first of three additional one-year periods at an 
estimated total cost of $11,616.00 per year, plus the actual cost of first class 
postage, under the same prices, terms, and conditions, to expire April 30, 2007.   
 
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
CUSTOMER BILLING SUMMARY:  
  Laser Print, Water/Sewer Bill $.050 
  Fold, Insert, Sort & Mail $.020 
  Printing - #9 Reply Envelope $.017 
  Printing - #10 Envelope $.0185 
  
COST PER BILL: $.1055 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey conducted by the Purchasing Department indicates paper mill 
prices are expected to increase about 2% in the near future and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the option to renew for one additional year. 
 
One hundred eighteen (118) vendors were notified via the MITN system.  Seven 
(7) bids received met specifications; one company responded with a statement of 
no bid because the company couldn’t compile their figures in time.   
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Water Department operating budgets. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ann Tyrrell, Office Coordinator 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



 
  January 24, 2006 
 

TO:      Susan Leirstein 
      Purchasing Systems Administrator 
 
FROM:     Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE: MARKET SURVEY – PRINTING & DISTRIBUTION OF UTILITY BILLS 
 
LASON SYSTEM, INC. – Rick Sharpe                                                      (248) 837-7100 
Rick has indicated that prices for the printing of Utility bills have remained stable; as 
there have been no significant cost increases in paper or ink.  
 
CENTRON DATA SERVICES – Michael Andrus                                       (800) 732-8787 
Mr. Andrus commented that he sees a change in prices this year because paper has 
increased about 2% because of fuel costs.  
 
LASERTEC INC. – Kim C.                                                                          (586) 274-4500 
Kim told me that her company’s material prices would increase, because of the paper 
mills raising paper prices. That cost would have to be included in her prices for the 
printing of the bills. 
 
RENKIM CORPORATION – Donald Pentzien                                            (734) 374-8300 
Donald does think at this time the pricing will increase for materials.  A paper mill 
indicated that paper would be increasing by 5 to 10%.  He would have to reflect those 
increases in his prices. 
 
MATRIX IMAGING SOLUTIONS – Betty Jo Profeta                                 (716) 504-9700 
According to Betty Jo, the big increase for doing this job is the paper costs that have 
increased by about 2% to 5%.  Their company will have to reflect those increases in their 
prices. 
 
RBF INC. – Steven Bennett                                                                      (269) 327-3871 
This company went out of business – phone disconnected. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for the Printing & Distribution of Utility Bills with the current 
vendor based on the costs of materials (paper, etc.) are expected to increase.  
  
 
CC: Jeanette Bennett 
      File 
 
 







March 14, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution #2 – Bid Award: 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing/Distribution of 
Water & Sewer Bills 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 2, 2005, eight (8) proposals were opened to provide production, 
printing, and distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills for one (1) 
year, with three (3) one-year options to renew.   City management recommends 
awarding the contract to the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, 
Automated Computer Methods Inc. of McHenry, IL, for an estimated cost of 
$11,616.00 per year, plus the actual cost of first class postage, at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation.  
 
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 
CUSTOMER BILLING SUMMARY:  
  Laser Print, Water/Sewer Bill $.050 
  Fold, Insert, Sort & Mail $.020 
  Printing - #9 Reply Envelope $.017 
  Printing - #10 Envelope $.0185 
  
COST PER BILL: $.1055 
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
After reviewing the bid proposal from Miami Systems, the apparent low bidder, 
and performing a reference check with cities with contracts similar to ours, it was 
discovered that the data processing time once the file was sent to the vendor, 
took up to four days or longer to process and deliver the bills to the post office.  
Our time-frame requirement is sixty hours.  Also, there were numerous errors 
when the bills were completed and mailed, resulting in additional City staff hours 
to correct the problems.   
 
SUMMARY 
Automated Computer Methods, Inc. has the ability to generate bills monthly, meet 
our processing time requirements, and deliver them to the post office in a timely 
manner.  The file will be sent electronically either via e-mail or an ftp site provided 
by the vendor.  The work will be done in-house, with sub-contractors providing  

1 of 2 



March 14, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Printing/Distribution of Water & Sewer Bills 
 
 
 
SUMMARY - Continued 
the forms and envelopes.  They have handled numerous mailing and printing 
projects for Government Agencies, as well as the private sector, and have been 
in business for over 21 years.  Automated Computer Methods, Inc. will also 
attach the bar codes, or OCR lines that are necessary as well as being CASS 
Certified (Coding Accuracy Support System certification by the US Postal Service 
in cooperation with the mailing industry), and will include any inserts that will be 
mailed with the monthly bills.  They have a proven track record to meet 
deadlines, and will work with us regarding any issues that arise.  
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Water Department operating budgets. 
 
 
 
118 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
   8 Bid Responses Rec’d 
   1 Bid did not meet specifications 
   1 No Bid: Company couldn’t get estimate quick enough.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ann Tyrrell, Office Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



Opening Date - 3/2/05 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-62
Date Prepared - 3/14/05 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2

PRINTING OF UTILITY BILLS

VENDOR NAME: * ACM, INC LASON CENTRON DATA LASERTEC INC
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS INC SERVICES INC

COMPUTER METHODS INC

CHECK #: #14090 #632022251 #507137872 #'649255192
CHECK AMOUNT: 2,100$                     2,100$                     2,100$                 2,100$                     

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE-YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
LASER PRINTING AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE CITY OF TROY'S WATER AND SEWER BILLS, WITH AN
OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE(3) ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS.

EST QTY SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 One Time, Account Set-Up 200.00$            125.0000$        300.0000$     -$                  
109,400 Laser Print Water / Sewer Bills $50.00/M 0.0393$            0.0390$         0.0800$             
109,400 Fold, Insert, Sort and Mail $20.00/M 0.0300$            0.0640$         Included
102,000 Printing on #9 Envelopes $17.00/M 0.0185$            0.0040$         0.0200$             
109,400 Printing on #10 Envelopes $18.50/M 0.0210$            0.0050$         0.0190$             

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: * 11,615.90$       11,890.82         12,523.20      12,870.60$        

PROCESSING TIME:  60 Hours
Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

SERVICE FACILITY:
Location McHenry, IL Livonia, MI Norton Shores Sterling Heights
24-Hour Phone Number (815)861-1957 (734)632-1600 (800)732-8787 (586)274-4500
Hours of Operation 8:30-5pm 24/7 24/5 24

TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days Net Net 30 30 Days

DELIVERY / COMPLETION:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank None Postage must be prepaid.

There is no relevant MSDS

Letter of Understanding

attached to bid

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:        Completed Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX XX XX
Not Attached

COST BREAKDOWN - SUPPLY INVENTORY All Pricing 
Attached Listed on page XX XX XX
Not Attached one of Bid

NO BIDS:
  Moore Wallace * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Ann Tyrrell
  MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

60 Hours After Receipt of Electronic File



Opening Date - 3/2/05 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-62
Date Prepared - 3/14/05 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2

PRINTING OF UTILITY BILLS

VENDOR NAME: RENKIM MATRIX RBF 
CORPORATION IMAGING INC

SOLUTIONS
CHECK #: #654963892 #31313 #620709692
CHECK AMOUNT: 2,100$                     2,100$                     2,100$                 

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE-YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
LASER PRINTING AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE CITY OF TROY'S WATER AND SEWER BILLS, WITH AN
OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE(3) ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS.

EST QTY SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 One Time, Account Set-Up 825.00$             250.00$            N/A
109,400 Laser Print Water / Sewer Bills 0.0486 0.0550$            0.0680$         
109,400 Fold, Insert, Sort and Mail 0.03037 0.0550$            0.0510$         
102,000 Printing on #9 Envelopes 0.01625 0.0230$            0.0200$         
109,400 Printing on #10 Envelopes 0.01725 0.0170$            0.0210$         

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 13,008.97$        16,489.80         17,356.00      

PROCESSING TIME:  60 Hours
Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

SERVICE FACILITY:
Location Southgate, MI Sanborn, NY Lansing, MI
24-Hour Phone Number (734)374-8300 (716)504-9700 (269)327-3871
Hours of Operation 7am-11pm 24Hrs M-F 7:30-11pm

TERMS: Blank Net 30 Days Net 30

DELIVERY / COMPLETION:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:        Completed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX XX
Not Attached

COST BREAKDOWN - SUPPLY INVENTORY
Attached XX XX XX
Not Attached

DMS:
  Miami Systems - $11,095.80
     Reason: Difficulty meeting 60 hour processing time

60 Hours After Receipt of Electronic File











 
 
January 31, 2006 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item -  Standard Purchasing Resolution #2 – Bid Award: 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Home Chore Lawn and 
Yard Services  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On January 11, 2006, bid proposals were opened to furnish seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program with an 
option to renew for one (1) additional year. After reviewing the proposals, City 
management recommends awarding the contract for Proposal A- Lawn Care 
Services and Proposal B-Yard Clean-up to the low acceptable bidder meeting 
specifications, Redburn’s Snow Plowing & Lawn Maintenance, Inc of Rochester 
Hills, MI. The cost is based on an average of 28-lawn care visits, and 2 yard 
clean up services per household per season for an estimated total cost of 
$47,780.00 at the following unit prices: 
 
PROPOSAL A:  LAWN CARE SERVICES FOR THE HOME CHORE PROGRAM 
 

Est. 
No. 

 
Description 

Price per Service Call 

   
50 

Lots 
 

Lawn-care service at an average residential City of Troy home.  
An average residential home lot size is 100 feet x 180 feet. 

 
$16.00 

   
30 

Lots    
Lawn-care service at lots over 85 feet x 125 feet, or corner lots.  

$17.50 
 
PROPOSAL B:  YARD CLEAN UP FOR THE HOME CHORE PROGRAM 
 

Est. 
No. 

 
Description 

Price per Service Call 

   
50 

Lots 
Yard clean up at an average residential City of Troy home.  An 
average residential home lot size is 100 feet x 180 feet. 

 
$63.00 

 
 

  

30 
Lots 

Yard clean up for lots over 85 x 125 feet, or corner lots.  
$73.00 

 
1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
January 31, 2006 

 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:      Bid Award – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
The apparent low bidder, Loch Le Monde Landscapes of Westland, was disqualified 
from further consideration for the following reasons.  
 

1. Staff made several telephone calls to Loch Le Monde Landscapes to arrange 
inspection of the firm’s mowing and support equipment by the Public Works 
Director and Solid Waste Coordinator. Made contact after 4th call. 

2.  Loch Le Monde Landscapes failed to appear in Canton at prearranged time and 
date for equipment inspection. Company did call 2 hours later with explanation. 

3. Loch Le Monde Landscapes did not make a site inspection of the current 
participants in the home chore program.  

4. In the past, the Home Chore Program has had negative experiences in using 
contractors that were not located in close proximity to the City of Troy in an effort 
to save costs.  

 
SUMMARY 
The award recommendation was based upon the vendor offering the best combination of 
a variety of factors, not simply the lowest bidder meeting certain minimal requirements. 
We took into account bid price, professional competence, level of service, equipment 
fleet, references, and the comfort of the residents on the program. 
 
Participants seem to be very satisfied with the Home Chore Program. The City expects 
to qualify approximately 80 residents in the Home Chore Program. This is 10 more 
residents than last year. We do not have a waiting list for this program. The program is 
publicized several times throughout the year, with the most recent notice being placed in 
the November/December 2005 City of Troy Senior Citizen News. 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially 
through the Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through 
the Community Development Block Grant Program. 
 
151 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  14 Bid Responses Received 
    1 Bid did not meet specifications 
    1 Late Bid       
    2 No Bids: Companies schedules do not permit performance of the contract under the 

specifications as written. 
 

Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-59
Opening Date -- 1/11/06 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 1/30/06 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: **

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at an Average 16.00$           16.25$         1,050.00$      

Lots Residential Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft per each total service

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 17.50$           18.00$         300.00$         
Lots or corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 37,100.00$     37,870.00$  37,800.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at an average residential 63.00$           65.00$         4,300.00$      

Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 73.00$           75.00$         1,300.00$      
Lots corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 10,680.00$     11,000.00$  11,200.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: ** 47,780.00$    48,870.00$ 49,000.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES NO
Date 1/4/2006

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 248.852.4754 248.689.9135 586.756.4190
24 Hour 248.909.0259 248.561.5839 810.523.8066

TERMS: 14 DAYS BLANK 30 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

PROPOSAL:  Seasonal Requirements of Lawn and Yard Services for Troy Residents using the Home Chore Program
with an Option to Renew for One(1) Additional Year

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
  Emily Frontera
  Debra Painter ________________________________
  Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G:\ITB-COT 05-59 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

REDBURN'S SNOW
PLOWING & LAWN

MAINTENANCE 

GDM LAWNCARE

DID LAST YEAR

GREAT LAKES 
LANDSCAPING

PRICE PER SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-59
Opening Date -- 1/11/06 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 1/30/06 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
FATHER & SONS

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at an Average 17.50$            18.75$         20.00$           

Lots Residential Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 19.95$            17.50$         17.00$           
Lots or corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 41,258.00$     40,950.00$  42,280.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at an average residential 64.95$            75.00$         104.00$         

Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 74.95$            70.50$         88.00$           
Lots corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 10,992.00$     11,730.00$  15,680.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 52,250.00$    52,680.00$ 57,960.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES YES
Date 11/2005

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 586.268.0803 586.791.7986 313.274.6873
24 Hour 248.521.2456 586.634.6181 313.999.5314

TERMS: 30 DAYS NET 30 NET 30

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

NO BIDS: DMS: Loch Le Monde Landscapes ($44,880)
  Kingspointe Services Inc   Reason: Company did not appear at a prearranged meeting for an
  Troy Clogg Landscape equipment inspection; difficult to get a hold of…..

G:\ITB-COT 05-59 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

1/9/2006

TRYBUSKI
LANDSCAPING

PRICE PER SERVICE

LAST YEAR 2005

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

ADVANCED
SERVICES

LANDSCAPE LLC

O'NEAL

& LAWN SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-59
Opening Date -- 1/11/06 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 1/30/06 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
LLC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at an Average 24.00$            27.00$         30.00$           

Lots Residential Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 22.00$            24.00$         32.00$           
Lots or corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 52,080.00$     57,960.00$  68,880.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at an average residential 60.00$            180.00$       150.00$         

Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 90.00$            160.00$       175.00$         
Lots corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 11,400.00$     27,600.00$  25,500.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 63,480.00$    85,560.00$ 94,380.00$   

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES NO
Date 1/3/2006

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 810.329.3633 BLANK 586.634.2904
24 Hour 810.217.7258 BLANK 586.634.2904

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS BLANK 14 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 05-59 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

KEVIN'S LAWN
CARE & SNOW
REMOVAL INC

AF LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

1/9/2006

METRO
DETROIT

PRICE PER SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-59
Opening Date -- 1/11/06 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 1/30/06 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at an Average 35.00$            37.50$          45.00$           

Lots Residential Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 30.00$            28.75$          45.00$           
Lots or corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 74,200.00$     76,650.00$    100,800.00$   

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
50 Yard clean up at an average residential 180.00$          200.00$        90.00$           

Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 150.00$          172.75$        90.00$           
Lots corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 27,000.00$     30,365.00$    14,400.00$    
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 101,200.00$  107,015.00$ 115,200.00$  

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES NO
Date 1/7/2006

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX +$860.00/yr XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 313.204.6050 586.201.3608 734.968.9009
24 Hour 248.351.5603 586.201.3608 734.968.9009

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 20 NET 30 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: NONE BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 05-59 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

NLS
LAWN CARE INC

PRICE PER SERVICE

SEASON LAWN
SERVICE

1/10/2006

ROLLING
ACRES

LANDSCAPE

BROTHERS ALL

DO NOT CARRY

ATTACHED TO BID

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-59
Opening Date -- 1/11/06 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 1/30/06 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
50 Lawn Care Services at an Average 55.00$            22.25$          

Lots Residential Home -average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft

30 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 36.00$            17.75$          
Lots or corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks - 107,240.00$   46,060.00$    

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 210.00$         Fall
50 Yard clean up at an average residential 130.00$          Spring NO BID

Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 100 ft x 180 ft
130.00$         Fall

30 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 100.00$          Spring NO BID
Lots corner lots

ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 23,900.00$     
GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: 131,140.00$  N/A

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES NO
Date 12/28/29/05

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime 248.672.8634 248.627.4819
24 Hour 248.672.8634 248.207.3043

TERMS: NET 30 BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: N/A BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 05-59 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

PRICE PER SERVICE

TORRE & BRUGLIO
INC

DREAM GREEN

PRICE PER SERVICE

MAINTENANCE

FAMILIAR W/ SITES













January 31, 2006  
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On July 21, 2003, the Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to 
provide Landscape Services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to 
Parks Landscaping, the lowest responsible bidder meeting specifications 
(Resolution #2003-07-376).  The Parks and Recreation Department recommends 
approval of a one-year contract renewal option for Landscape Maintenance 
Services for the cemeteries, non-irrigated street medians, museum, fire stations, 
and I-75 cloverleaves with Parks Landscaping of Troy, MI, for an estimated total 
cost of $142,465.00. All terms, conditions, and unit pricing will remain the same 
as the original contract and will expire December 31, 2006. 
 
SUMMARY   
                                Cost per Acre    Year(s)     
Group #1 –  Weekly Mowing Schedule –  37.54 Acres  $ 36.00  2003/4/5 
Group #2 –  Split Mowing Schedule –    89.37 Acres  $ 31.00  2003/4/5 
Group #3 –  Bi-Weekly Mowing Schedule –  108.95 Acres  $ 25.00  2003/4/5 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 21, 2003, Parks Landscaping was named the lowest responsible bidder when 
the City had to rescind the original bid award to Payne Landscaping and re-award the 
contract to Parks Landscaping.  Since that time, staff has been satisfied with the 
services received from Parks Landscaping. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the option to renew. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in various operating budgets for contractual services 
citywide.   
 
 
Prepared by: Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 

CampbellLD
Text Box
E-04d



 
 

  January 10, 2006 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:     Linda N. Bockstanz 
     Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE:     MARKET SURVEY – Landscape Maintenance – Mowing Services 
 
 
GREAT LAKES LANDSCAPING – D. Drum__                                 _    (586) 756-5347 
Mr. Drum has indicated that prices for Lawn Services will be going up next year.  Its 
because of the his overhead.   Gas for lawn mowers, vehicles, and heating the building 
for the winter months. 
  
LAZOEN HAY & FEED INC. – David Machak_                                         (248) 360-5379 
Per David Machak – with new mowers that can mow four acres per hour – his prices will 
stay the same.  Only if gas increases sufficiently that he will raise his prices anywhere 
from 1% to 2%.  Right now he charges about $30 per acre. 
 
UNITED LAWNSCAPE INC. – John Wernis_                                            (586) 739-5296 
John commented that prices are going up next year do to gasoline prices being higher 
and insurance going up in price.  His company will have to accommodate by charging a 
little more for the work to be done. 
 
KEVINS’ LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL, INC. – Kevin Hutkowski __(810) 329-3633 
Kevin said that at this time there would be no change in price. (Will hold prices for this 
next coming year.)  If a change does occur, it will be because of the gasoline price at the 
pump going up.  Prices could be adjusted by a couple of bucks. 
 
STEELE’S LANDSCAPING, LLC – Tom Steele____________                 (248) 852-6140 
Called 5 times - left messages - no response. 
 
FOUGNIE PROFESSIONAL LAWN MTNCE – Debbie Fougnie_             (248) 879-5128 
Debbie told me that at this time there would be no change in prices.  They base their 
prices on your income – Seniors, handicap, and so on.   Their Company has been in 
business for 25 years and will keep doing the TLC approach.  If you have been a long 
time customer of theirs – you will receive some discounts. 
 
C&R MAINTENANCE - RIZZO SERVICES – Mike Miodowski_________(866) 772-8900 
Called 5 times - left messages - no response. 
 
RP’S LAWN MAINTENANCE LLC – Rob Preshern_________________(248) 689-3347 
According to Rob, Lawn Services are expected to increase next year by 1% to 5% due 
to gas prices.  He does not think there will be any other changes. 
 
 
 



 
MICHIGAN TURF INC – Edward Mulka__________________________(313) 291-5502 
Ed will keep his prices the same.  Competition is high in this area – new companies are 
popping up and some companies are closing their doors for good.  Gas and insurance 
will be the only things that could raise his prices at least 2%.  Labor costs could also 
impact price increase. There are new mowers out there that can cover more ground for 
less gas. 
 
MAGED CONTRACTING – Tom Maged__________________________(734) 451-2676 
Tom is expecting to increase prices on his small jobs about 1% to 2% and keep the big 
job prices the same.  Gas is one of his biggest expenses along with overhead, and now 
some Cities that he mows have mowing violations that are costing him too.  
 
FACILITY MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC – James Johnson___________(248) 322-4071 
James does think at this time that prices will change.  He believes a 5% to 10% increase 
because of the gas prices.  Everything else will stay the same. 
 
CAL FLEMING LANDSCAPING & TREE SERVICE, INC – Mike Fleming__(586) 774-6460 
Mike has indicated to me that he is planning to keep his prices as low as possible to get 
the work that he needs to keep his business in business; even if prices at the gas pump 
increase.   There is a lot of competition out there in this business and he has to keep his 
prices low to stay in business. 
 
RASINS LANDSCAPE & ASSOCIATES, INC – Christie Rasins________(248) 628-0212 
Called 5 times - left messages - no response. 
 
PINNACLE LANSCAPE MTNCE, INC – Frederick Veresh                        (248) 373-8973 
Mr. Veresh has informed me that his prices will be going up 2% to 3%, because of the 
fuel increase and chemical costs for the lawn has also increased.   To break even at the 
end of the week  – he will have to increase his costs too. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for the Landscape Maintenance – Mowing Services with the 
current vendor based on the fact that costs of lawn services are not expected to drop 
and may increase depending on the gasoline market, insurance, and lawn chemicals.   
  
 
CC:  Susan Leirstein 
      File 
 
 









July 11, 2003 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Landscape Maintenance 

for Municipal Grounds 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends rescinding with prejudice the contract for 
Landscape Maintenance for Municipal Grounds from Payne Landscaping, Inc.; 
and re-awarding to the next low bidder, Parks Landscaping at an estimated total 
annual cost of $142,270.00, subject to contract terms and conditions, and 
contingent upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including 
insurance certificates and all specified requirements.  The estimate is based on 
twenty-eight weekly mows, twenty-four split mows, and fourteen bi-weekly mows 
per year. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 14, 2003, Payne Landscaping, Inc. was awarded the three-year contract 
to provide mowing and landscape maintenance services for municipal grounds. 
The contractor began to fall below acceptable levels requiring Parks and 
Recreation staff to make frequent requests for service improvements. The 
contractor requested a meeting with the City to discuss the situation on  
July 5, 2003, and presented a letter requesting their release from the contract. 
 
The next low bidder for the contract was Parks Landscaping, 6871 Montclaire Dr., 
Troy, MI 48085. Parks Landscaping has been contacted and would maintain their 
bid prices and be willing to take over the remainder of the contractor for the 2003, 
2004 and 2005 season with an option to renew for one additional year following the 
2005 season. Parks Landscaping, Inc. bid prices are as follows: 
 

             2003    2004    2005         
Group #1       
Weekly Mowing - 37.54 Acres  $36.00/acre $36.00/acre $36.00/acre 
 
Group #2 
Split Mowing – 89.11 Acres  $31.00/acre $31.00/acre $31.00/acre 
 
Group #3 
Bi-Weekly Mowing – 108.95 Acres $25.00/acre $25.00acre $25.00/acre 

 
1 of 2 



July 11, 2003 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re: Rescind/Re-Award – Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
 
SUMMARY 
After finding the level of service provided by Payne Landscaping, Inc. 
unacceptable and having received a request from Payne Landscaping, Inc. to be 
released from the contract, it is recommended that the City of Troy rescind the 
bid award for landscaping services on municipal grounds from Payne 
Landscaping, Inc., and re-award the contract to the next lowest bidder, Parks 
Landscape for the remainder of the original contract period.   The difference in 
contract prices between Parks and Payne is approximately an additional 
$3,670.00 per year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeff Biegler, Parks Superintendent 

2 of 2 









CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 36.00$           1,351.4$        36.00$          1,351.4$      
2004 37.54 36.00$           1,351.4$        36.00$          1,351.4$      
2005 37.54 36.00$           1,351.4$        36.00$          1,351.4$      

4,054.32$      4,054.32$     
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 30.00$           2,673.30$      31.00$          2,762.41$     
2004 89.11 30.00$           2,673.30$      31.00$          2,762.41$     
2005 89.11 30.00$           2,673.30$      31.00$          2,762.41$     

8,019.90$      8,287.23$     
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 24.00$           2,614.80$      25.00$          2,723.75$     
2004 108.95 24.00$           2,614.80$      25.00$          2,723.75$     
2005 108.95 24.00$           2,614.80$      25.00$          2,723.75$     

7,844.40$      8,171.25$     
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 * 138,606.72$   142,270.66$  

2004 * 138,606.72$   142,270.66$  
2005 * 138,606.72$   142,270.66$  

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/19/03 3/24/03

TERMS: 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: N/A BLANK

ATTEST:
  Ron Hynd * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
  Jeff Biegler
  Cheryl Morrell ____________________________________
  Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

PARKS
LANDSCAPING

& SNOW SERVICE

PAYNE LANDSCAPING



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 2 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 35.00$           1,313.9$        37.95$          1,424.64$     
2004 37.54 35.00$           1,313.9$        37.95$          1,424.64$     
2005 37.54 36.00$           1,351.4$        37.95$          1,424.64$     

3,979.24$      4,273.93$     
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 31.00$           2,762.41$      32.95$          2,936.17$     
2004 89.11 31.00$           2,762.41$      32.95$          2,936.17$     
2005 89.11 32.00$           2,851.52$      32.95$          2,936.17$     

8,376.34$      8,808.52$     
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 26.00$           2,832.70$      24.95$          2,718.30$     
2004 108.95 26.00$           2,832.70$      24.95$          2,718.30$     
2005 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      24.95$          2,718.30$     

8,716.00$      8,154.91$     
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 142,744.84$   148,414.43$  

2004 142,744.84$   148,414.43$  
2005 148,985.20$   148,414.43$  

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/21/03 3/20/03

TERMS: NET 15 DAYS NET 30

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

NO BIDS:
  WH Canon Inc
  Davey Commercial Grounds Mtnce
  Dinos Landscaping
  AG Housey Company
  Sierra Lawn & Landscape
  Worry Free Inc

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

LAZOEN HAY & FEED INCGREAT LAKES
LANDSCAPING



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 39.20$           1,471.57$      40.00$          1,501.6$      
2004 37.54 39.20$           1,471.57$      40.00$          1,501.6$      
2005 37.54 39.20$           1,471.57$      40.00$          1,501.6$      

4,414.70$      4,504.80$     
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 33.70$           3,003.01$      36.00$          3,207.96$     
2004 89.11 33.70$           3,003.01$      36.00$          3,207.96$     
2005 89.11 33.70$           3,003.01$      36.00$          3,207.96$     

9,009.02$      9,623.88$     
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 27.20$           2,963.44$      26.00$          2,832.70$     
2004 108.95 27.20$           2,963.44$      26.00$          2,832.70$     
2005 108.95 27.20$           2,963.44$      26.00$          2,832.70$     

8,890.32$      8,498.10$     
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 154,764.23$   158,693.64$  

2004 154,764.23$   158,693.64$  
2005 154,764.23$   158,693.64$  

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/20/03 3/8/03

TERMS: 30 DAYS 25th following month

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

KEVIN'S LAWN CARE
& SNOW REMOVAL INC

UNITED LAWNSCAPE INC



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 4 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 41.00$           1,539.1$        41.00$         1,539.14$      
2004 37.54 41.00$           1,539.1$        41.50$         1,557.91$      
2005 37.54 42.00$           1,576.7$        41.75$         1,567.30$      

4,654.96$      4,664.35$      
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 35.00$           3,118.85$      35.00$         3,118.85$      
2004 89.11 35.00$           3,118.85$      35.50$         3,163.41$      
2005 89.11 36.00$           3,207.96$      36.00$         3,207.96$      

9,445.66$      9,490.22$      
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      29.00$         3,159.55$      
2004 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      29.50$         3,214.03$      
2005 108.95 29.00$           3,159.55$      29.50$         3,214.03$      

9,260.75$      9,587.60$      
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 160,656.72$   162,182.02$ 

2004 160,656.72$   164,539.55$ 
2005 165,371.78$   165,871.65$ 

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/20 & 3/21/03 3/18 & 3/19/03

TERMS: BLANK BLANK

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: N/A BLANK

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

STEELE'S
LANDSCAPING LLC

FOUGNIE PROFESSIONAL
LAWN MTNCE



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 5 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 41.00$           1,539.14$      40.00$          1,501.60$     
2004 37.54 41.00$           1,539.14$      41.00$          1,539.14$     
2005 37.54 41.00$           1,539.14$      42.00$          1,576.68$     

4,617.42$      4,617.42$     
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 37.00$           3,297.07$      35.00$          3,118.85$     
2004 89.11 37.00$           3,297.07$      36.00$          3,207.96$     
2005 89.11 37.00$           3,297.07$      37.00$          3,297.07$     

9,891.21$      9,623.88$     
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 30.00$           3,268.50$      35.00$          3,813.25$     
2004 108.95 30.00$           3,268.50$      36.00$          3,922.20$     
2005 108.95 30.00$           3,268.50$      37.00$          4,031.15$     

9,805.50$      11,766.60$   
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 167,984.60$   ($162,945.06) 170,282.70$  

2004 167,984.60$   ($162,945.06) 174,997.76$  
2005 167,984.60$   ($162,945.06) 179,712.82$  

INSURANCE: (w/terms)
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/18 & 3/24/03 3/15/03

3% FOR NET 20 DAYS
TERMS: NET 30 NET 10 DAYS

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK N/A

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

RP'S LAWN
MAINTENANCE LLC

C&R MAINTENANCE dba
RIZZO SERVICES



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 6 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 45.00$           1,689.30$      47.75$          1,792.54$       
2004 37.54 46.00$           1,726.84$      49.75$          1,867.62$       
2005 37.54 46.00$           1,726.84$      58.00$          2,177.32$       

5,142.98$      5,837.47$       
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 42.00$           3,742.62$      48.75$          4,344.11$       
2004 89.11 42.00$           3,742.62$      52.75$          4,700.55$       
2005 89.11 43.00$           3,831.73$      58.00$          5,168.38$       

11,316.97$    14,213.05$     
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 42.00$           4,575.90$      48.75$          5,311.31$       
2004 108.95 42.00$           4,575.90$      52.75$          5,747.11$       
2005 108.95 43.00$           4,684.85$      58.00$          6,319.10$       

13,836.65$    17,377.53$     
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 201,185.88$   228,808.06$  ($224,231.89)

2004 202,237.00$   245,566.06$  ($240,654.73)
2005 205,900.94$   273,473.48$  ($268,004.01)

INSURANCE: w/terms
Can Meet XX BLANK
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/17/03 VARIOUS 3/27/03

2% - 14 DAYS
TERMS: BLANK NET 30

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK LISTED IN BID

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

MAGED CONTRACTINGMICHIGAN TURF INC



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 7 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 58.00$           2,177.32$      53.14$          1,994.88$     
2004 37.54 58.00$           2,177.32$      54.14$          2,032.42$     
2005 37.54 59.00$           2,214.86$      54.14$          2,032.42$     

6,569.50$      6,059.71$     
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 58.00$           5,168.38$      78.00$          6,950.58$     
2004 89.11 58.00$           5,168.38$      79.00$          7,039.69$     
2005 89.11 59.00$           5,257.49$      79.00$          7,039.69$     

15,594.25$    21,029.96$   
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 58.00$           6,319.10$      43.30$          4,717.54$     
2004 108.95 58.00$           6,319.10$      44.00$          4,793.80$     
2005 108.95 59.00$           6,428.05$      44.00$          4,793.80$     

19,066.25$    14,305.14$   
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 273,473.48$   288,715.93$  

2004 273,473.48$   292,973.40$  
2005 278,188.54$   292,973.40$  

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/26/03 3/25/03

TERMS: PRICES SHALL REMAIN FIRM FOR 60 DAYS BLANK

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: N/A BLANK

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

& TREE SERVICE INC

CAL FLEMING
LANDSCAPING

FACILITY MANAGEMENT
GROUP INC



CITY OF TROY SBP 03-07
Opening Date -- 3-28-03 BID TABULATION Pg. 8 of 8
Date Prepared -- 4/2/03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Landscape Maintenance-Mowing Services
   Furnish all necessarey material, labor, and equipment to provide landscape maintenance for municipal grounds

COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST COST PER ACRE TOTAL COST
GROUP #1 - WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 37.54 Acres

YEAR ACRES
2003 37.54 130.00$         4,880.20$      2,650.00$       99,481.00$    
2004 37.54 130.00$         4,880.20$      2,700.00$       101,358.00$  
2005 37.54 130.00$         4,880.20$      2,750.00$       103,235.00$  

14,640.60$    304,074.00$  
GROUP #2 - SPLIT MOWING SCHEDULE - 89.11 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 89.11 112.00$         9,980.32$      1,700.00$       151,487.00$  
2004 89.11 112.00$         9,980.32$      1,750.00$       155,942.50$  
2005 89.11 112.00$         9,980.32$      1,800.00$       160,398.00$  

29,940.96$    467,827.50$  
GROUP #3 - BI-WEEKLY MOWING SCHEDULE - 108.95 ACRES

YEAR ACRES
2003 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      300.00$          32,685.00$    
2004 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      320.00$          34,864.00$    
2005 108.95 28.00$           3,050.60$      340.00$          37,043.00$    

9,151.80$      104,592.00$  
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 2003 418,881.68$   283,653.00$    

2004 418,881.68$   292,164.50$    
2005 418,881.68$   300,676.00$    

INSURANCE:
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 3/27/03 3/26 & 3/27/03

TERMS: NET 15 NET 25 DAYS

BIDDER'S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE
Y/N YES YES

EXCEPTIONS: LISTED IN BID BLANK

NOTE: PINNACLE'S COST PER ACRE PRICING

IS ACTUALLY A COST PER ACRE PER SEASON

BASED ON (26) WEEKLY MOWS, (20) SPLIT

MOWS, AND (10) BI-WEEKLY MOWS.

G:/LandscapeMaintenace for Municipal Grounds SBP 03-07

(BID WITHDRAWN - 4/3/03)

PINNACLE
LANDSCAPE MTNCE INC

RASINS LANDSCAPE
& ASSOC INC



A T MAINTENANCE
325 MUSKOKA
COMMERCE TWP  MI  48382

AMBASSADOR LAWN CUTTING SERVICE
P O BOX 174
CLAWSON  MI  48017

ATTN CHRISTIAN DEL BELLO
PREMIER LAWN & SNOW, INC
P O BOX 877
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48311

B & L LANDSCAPING
21151 MEYERS ROAD
OAK PARK  MI  48237-3209

B & P LANDSCAPING
6355 LILLEY RD
CANTON  MI  48187-3628

B&D LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL
2308 HORSESHOE DRIVE
WEST BLOOMFIELD  MI  48322

BACK TO BASICS LAWN SERVICE
3035 NEWPORT
TROY  MI  48084

BRIER HILL CORPORATION
21176 FLEETWOOD
HARPER WOODS  MI  48225

BRUCE M SAUNDERS & SONS
47515 RYAN ROAD
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48317

BUSHWACKERS LANDSCAPING
12115 WORMER
REDFORD  MI  48239

BUSY BEAVER TREE SERVICE
2043 E PARKWAY AVENUE
BURTON  MI  48529

C & H LANDSCAPE
5220 WILLIAMS LAKE ROAD
WATERFORD  MI  48329-3556

C EDDY SNOWPLOWING & LAWN MAINTENANCE
P O BOX 99462
TROY  MI  48099-9462

CAL FLEMING LANDSCAPING & TREE SERVICE
29725 GROESBECK
ROSEVILLE  MI  48066-1980



COMMERCIAL LAWNMOWER
32098 PLYMOUTH ROAD
LIVONIA  MI  48150-1489

CURTIS JORGENSON
735 E LINCOLN
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI  48071

D & J LAWN AND SNOW SERVICE
22750 MACOMB INDUSTRIAL DRIVE
CLINTON TWP  MI  48036

D & M LANDSCAPING & SNOW REMOVAL
206 E GRAND RIVER  STE 504
DETROIT  MI  48226

DESIGNED LANDSCAPE
409 E  HUDSON
ROYAL OAK  MI  48067

DIAMOND LAWN SERVICE
631 MINNESOTA
TROY  MI  48083

DINO'S LANDSCAPING
7520 PONTIAC TRAIL
WEST BLOOMFIELD  MI  48323

DREAM GREEN
PO BOX 300372
WATERFORD  MI  48330

EDWARD BELL
14420 LABELLE
OAK PARK  MI  48237

ELITE LANDSCAPE INC
P O BOX 94092
WASHINGTON  MI  48094

ENGLISH COUNTRYSIDE LANDSCAPE
49819 SCHOENHERR
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48315

F & J LANDSCAPE COMPANY
926 W WATTLES
TROY  MI  48098

FARMINGTON LANDSCAPE SERVICE
P O BOX 363
WALLED LAKE  MI  48390

FLORENCE CEMENT COMPANY
12798 TWENTY-THREE MILE ROAD
SHELBY TOWNSHIP  MI  48315



FORSEE'S LAWN SERVICE
23528 JOHN R
HAZEL PARK  MI  48030-1409

FOUGNIE PROFESSIONAL LAWN MAINTENANCE
151 BLANCHE
TROY  MI  48098

FOXFIRE LANDSCAPE
50857 CARD RD
MACOMB  MI  48044-1415

GENE'S LANDSCAPE SERVICE
4101 BARHAM
DETROIT  MI  48224

GREAT LAKES LANDSCAPING & CONSTRUCTION
25212 RYAN
WARREN  MI  48091-3775

GREATER DETROIT LANDSCAPE SERVICE
21000 FAIRFIELD
WARREN  MI  48089

GREENLAWN SERVICES LTD
3424 ROWLAND CT
TROY  MI  48083

GREENTREES TREE & LAWN CARE
2614 LEACH
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

GREENVIEW LANDSCAPING
1065 HARTLAND
TROY  MI  48083

H & D LAWN MAINTENANCE INC
12044 PREST
DETROIT  MI  48227

HDM BRICK & LANDSCAPE LLC
668 E  MAPLE
TROY  MI  48083

HUNTER & PAYNE LANDSCAPING
4380 ROCHESTER ROAD
TROY  MI  48085

J & S
38145 DEQUINDRE
TROY  MI  48083

K & F LAWN MAINTENANCE
226 LOVELL
TROY  MI  48085



K B LANDSCAPING
5993 SLATE
TROY  MI  48085

KATHYS LAWN MAINTENANCE
3927 CLUTIER
SAGINAW  MI  48601

KDS LANDSCAPE
156 W MOREHOUSE
HAZEL PARK  MI  48030

KEVINS LAWN CARE & SNOW REMOVAL INC
3633 RATTLE RUN ROAD
ST CLAIR  MI  48079-4718

KOCH 'KENT (FORMALLY KOCH ENTERPRISES)
P.O. BOX 480517
NEW HAVEN  MI  48048-0517

LAWN & TREE ASSOCIATES INC
3600 LAPEER ROAD
PONTIAC  MI  48055

LAWN CREW INC
3077 W AUBURN ROAD
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

LAZOEN HAY & FEED INC
P O BOX 3702
CENTER LINE  MI  48015

LEAD OUTDOOR SERVICES
1396 LEROY STREET
FERNDALE  MI  48220

M E G A LAWN MAINTENANCE
26553 DARTMOUTH
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI  48071

MAGED CONTRACTING
P O BOX 701421
PLYMOUTH  MI  48170

MARSHALL'S LAWN SERVICE
19260 31 MILE ROAD
RAY TOWNSHIP  MI  48096

MASTERS GREEN INC
6350 N STERLING DRIVE
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48312-4552

MCEWEN LANDSCAPING
P O BOX 99696
TROY  MI  48099-9696



MCWILLIAMS LANDSCAPING
930 OTTAWA
TROY  MI  48085

METRO SWEEP
4557 HIGHLAND RD
WATERFORD  MI  48328

MICHIGAN TURF INC
P O BOX 158
TAYLOR  MI  48180

MICHIGREEN INC
16171 31 MILE ROAD
ROMEO  MI  48096

MILLER W F TURF& INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT CO
25125 TRANS-X
P O BOX 605
NOVI  MI  48376-0605

MJ&T LAWN CARE AND SNOW REMOVAL
2440 OXFORD
BERKLEY  MI  48072

NEWPORT LAWN - ATN: FRANK
3035 NEWPORT COURT
TROY  MI  48084

PINNACLE LANDSCAPING INC
1100 N  OPDYKE
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326

PIONEER LAWN MAINTENANCE
27577 FAIRFIELD
WARREN  MI  48093

PREMIER CUT LANDSCAPING SERVICES INC
1971 SHADY DRIVE
WARREN  MI  48092

PRI PAVEMENT RECYCLING INC
70015 POWELL RD
ROMEO  MI  48065

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CONTRACTORS INC
970 N ROCHESTER ROAD
LEONARD  MI  48367

R & D TRACTOR SERVICE
2217 ZENIA
TROY  MI  48084

R & L LANDSCAPING
30045 NORTHGATE
SOUTHFIELD  MI  48076



R P'S LAWN SERVICE LLC
148 CARTER
TROY  MI  48098

RAM CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC
1846 GRACE
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48309

RANGER OUTDOOR MAINTENANCE
135 KALHAVEN
ROCHESTER HILLS  MI  48307

RASINS LANDSCAPE INC
2271 METAMORA ROAD
OXFORD  MI  48371

RAY'S NURSERY AND LANDSCAPE
15577 30 MILE ROAD
RAY  MI  48046

RIS CONTRACTORS
1208 SYLVERTIS
WATERFORD  MI  48328

RODGES & SONS LANDSCAPING & LAWN SERVICE
517 AUBURN
PONTIAC  MI  48342

RUDGATE LANDSCAPING
4502 W CORNWALL
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48310

S & T LAWN & LANDSCAPE INC
14410 DEBBIE
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48313

SCENESCAPE: KODIAK GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
12776 33 MILE ROAD
ROMEO  MI  48065-5438

SEAL METHODS EQUIPMENT INC
10016 ROMANDEL
P O BOX 4341
SANTE FE SPRINGS  CA  90670

SIERRA LAWN AND LANDSCAPE INC
5580 GATEWOOD  STE 106
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48312

STEWART LANDSCAPING
6130 ROCHESTER ROAD
TROY  MI  48085-1373

SULLIVAN CORPORATION
21 E  LONG LAKE ROAD  STE 214
BLOOMFIELD HILLS  MI  48304



SUNRISE CONTRACTING
P O BOX 321171
DETROIT  MI  48232-1171

TARR'S SERVICE INC
2009 MILVERTON
TROY  MI  48083

THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY
3381 LAPEER ROAD WEST
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326

THE GROUND CREW
1564 MUER STREET
TROY  MI  48084

TORRE & BRUGLIO
850 FEATHERSTONE
PONTIAC  MI  48342-1723

TRI-MARK LANDSCAPING
1053 HENDRICKSON
CLAWSON  MI  48017

TROY LANDSCAPING INC
4837 HEATHERBROOK
TROY  MI  48098

U S LAWNS OF TROY
670 ECKFORD DRIVE
TROY  MI  48098

WAYSIDE LAWN SERVICE
36235 MORAVIAN
CLINTON TWP  MI  48035-1150

WESTLAKE DEVELOPMENT INC
4605 22 MILE ROAD
UTICA  MI  48317

WILLIAMS WEED MOWING INC
450 GRANGE HALL ROAD
ORTONVILLE  MI  48462

WOLVERINE LAWN MAINTENANCE & 
LANDSCAPING
P O BOX 877
STERLING HEIGHTS  MI  48311

WOOD CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE LLC
1900 SAND BEACH RD
BAD AXE  MI  48413

WORRY FREE INC
1035 BADDER
TROY  MI  48083



campbellld
Text Box
E-05



































campbellld
Text Box
E-06

































campbellld
Text Box
E-07













campbellld
Text Box
E-08













TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: January 31, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: D & K Hannawa, LLC v. City of Troy et. al  
 

 
  

  

The City has been named as a defendant in a re-plat lawsuit filed by D & K Hannawa, a 
limited liability company.  According to the attached lawsuit, D & K Hannawa owns three parcels of 
property in the northwest corner of Maple and Crooks Road- 1400 W. Maple Rd., 1420 W. Maple 
Rd., and 1717 Crooks Rd, all of which are located in Supervisor’s Plat No. 23, in the City of Troy.  
Currently, there is a vacant Donut Depot and Little Caesars restaurant on the site.  Plaintiffs propose 
to redevelop the area by constructing a retail building that will be occupied by multiple tenants.  
However, before this proposed redevelopment can occur, Plaintiffs must first vacate a private alley 
that is recorded in the original plat of 1941.  According to the complaint, the “private alley must be 
removed as its boundaries conflict and overlap with the proposed building site.”   

Under the Land Division Act, the vacation of a private alley requires the filing of a lawsuit 
against all property owners within 300 feet of the proposed vacation, as well as the utilities and 
governmental bodies that have jurisdiction over the property.  Upon information and belief, all 
necessary parties have been served with a copy of the lawsuit.   

Absent objection from City Council, our office will enter an appearance in the case to protect 
the City of Troy’s interests.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-09















campbellld
Text Box
E-10











campbellld
Text Box
E-11











Date: January 30, 2006 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) 

– Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions 

 
At the November 28, 2005 meeting, City Council approved the following resolution:  
 

Vote on Resolution to Refer ZOTA 215A to the Planning Commission as 
Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-11-536 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
REFER ZOTA 215A to the Planning Commission for further consideration and 
forward their recommendations to the Troy City Council no later than the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, February 6, 2006. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The Planning Commission was unable to meet the February 6, 2006 deadline 
established by City Council because of the reduced number of Special/Study meetings 
during the holiday season.  The item was discussed by the Planning Commission at 
the January 24, 2006 Special/Study meeting.  A Public Hearing is scheduled for this 
item on the February 14, 2006 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  The Planning 
Commission recommendation will be forwarded to the City Council following the Public 
Hearing. 
 
 
Prepared by MFM/RBS 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\215A\ZOTA 215A CC Memo 02 06 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-12



campbellld
Text Box
E-13











campbellld
Text Box
E-14











January 26, 2006 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request 
 
 
The Mon Jin Lau (1515 E. Maple) requests that the City of Troy waive the city 
ordinances prohibiting the discharge of fireworks (Chapter 98.05.16 and Chapter 
93, 3301.1.3) for the purpose of celebrating Chinese New Year.  In the past, City 
Council has routinely approved this request.  The Police and Fire Departments 
do not object to the request.  
 
The Mon Jin Lau celebration is scheduled for February 8, 2006.   
 
Should you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-15



campbellld
Text Box
E-16





NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE ISSUANCE 
BY THE CITY OF ROYAL OAK HOSPITAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 

OF HOSPITAL REVENUE AND HOSPITAL REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL 

 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that the City Commission of the City of Royal Oak will hold a 

public hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m., in the Commission Chambers of City Hall, 211 Williams 

Street, Royal Oak, Michigan on the 20th day of February, 2006, that the City Council of the City 

of Sterling Heights will hold a public hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m. in the City Hall Council 

Chambers, 40555 Utica Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan on the 21st day of February, 2006, and 

that the City Council of the City of Troy will hold a public hearing at 7:30 o’clock p.m. in the 

City Council Chambers, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on the 27th day of 

February, 2006, each on the proposed issuance of hospital revenue and hospital revenue 

refunding bonds (the “Bonds”) in one or more series in the maximum aggregate principal amount 

of $235,000,000 by the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority to provide funds to loan to 

William Beaumont Hospital to be used by William Beaumont Hospital, together with other 

available funds, to (a) finance or refinance the costs of the acquisition; construction, renovation 

and equipping of the health care facilities described below (collectively, the “Projects”), (b) to 

refund the bonds described below (the “Prior Bonds”), (c) to pay a portion of the interest to 

accrue on the Bonds, (d) to fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, and (e) to pay the 

costs of issuing the bonds. 

The Projects (a portion of which will be financed with the proceeds of the Bonds) consist 

of the following: (a) at a presently estimated cost of $_______________, the renovation of the 

north and central towers of the hospital facility of William Beaumont Hospital located at 3601 

West Thirteen Mile Road, Royal Oak, Michigan (the “Royal Oak Facilities”) generally 



 2

consisting of the renovation of medical care areas, the improvement of architectural, electrical 

and mechanical infrastructure of the hospital facility and the improvement of fire alarm and fire 

protection systems, (b) at a presently estimated cost of $_____________, the construction of an 

ambulatory care center on the hospital campus of William Beaumont Hospital located at 

______________, Sterling Heights, Michigan (the “Sterling Heights Facility”). 

The Prior Bonds consist of the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Hospital 

Revenue and Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital) Series 1996I maturing on or after 

January 1, 2013. 

The proceeds of the Prior Bonds were loaned to William Beaumont Hospital and used by 

William Beaumont Hospital, together with other available funds, (a) to refund a portion of the 

City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont 

Hospital), Series 1991D (the “Series 1991D Bonds”) the proceeds of which were used by 

William Beaumont Hospital (1) to construct a critical care tower and a four level addition to the 

hospital facility, related parking and a shipping and receiving facility, all at the Royal Oak 

Facilities, (2) to construct a six level addition to and renovation of the hospital facility of 

William Beaumont Hospital located at 44201 Dequindre Road, Troy, Michigan (the “Troy 

Facilities”), (3) to pay a portion of the interest o the Series 1991D Bonds and (4) to pay costs of 

issuing the Series 1991D Bonds, and (b) to pay the costs of issuing the Prior Bonds. 

The Royal Oak Facilities, the Sterling Heights Facilities and the Troy Facilities are 

owned and operated by William Beaumont Hospital, a Michigan nonprofit corporation. 

The public hearing will provide an opportunity for interested persons to be heard and 

communications in writing will be received and considered.  The hearing will provide the fullest 



 3

opportunity for expression of opinion, for argument on the merits, and for introduction of 

documentary evidence pertinent to the proposed bond issue. 

Dated:  February __, 2006 _____________________________ 
Chairperson, City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority 

 
AALIB:456315.2\006839-00008  



AALIB:456575.1\006839-00008  

CITY OF TROY 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue and Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Issued for the benefit of William Beaumont Hospital 
In an Amount not to Exceed $235,000,000 

At a Regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy held at 7:30 p.m., Eastern 
Standard Time, on Monday, February 27, 2006. 

PRESENT:            

ABSENT:            

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Commissioner __________ and 
supported by Commissioner __________; 

WHEREAS, the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) 
proposes to make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by 
the Hospital to refinance indebtedness used to finance the construction, renovation and equipping 
of certain hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series 
(collectively, the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $235,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute 
general obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, 
the State of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as 
provided in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and 

WHEREAS, a record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of 
the Bonds by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the 
issuance of the Bonds by the Authority. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS 
FOLLOWS: 



AALIB:456575.1\006839-00008  2

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, 
the City Council of the City of Troy hereby approves the issuance, sale and delivery of not to 
exceed $235,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds by the Authority. 

2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to provide three (3) certified copies of this 
resolution to the Secretary of the Authority 

YEAS:             

NAYS:            

ABSTENTIONS:           
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND  ) 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy held on February 27, 2006, and that the 
minutes of the meeting are on file in the office of the City Clerk and are available to the public.  
Public notice of the meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1976. 

 
 
             
       Troy City Clerk 



January 23, 2006 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Election of Planning Commissioner Officers for 2006 
 
Article II, Section 1, of the Planning Commission By-Laws provides the Planning 
Commission selects a Chair, Vice Chair, and Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
Representative and Alternate.  Article II, Section 1, requires that the election of 
officers shall occur at the January Regular Meeting.  The By-Laws state that the 
officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair and a Vice Chair.  The Board of 
Zoning Appeals Representative and Alternate must be approved by City Council as 
per the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
At their January 10, 2006 Regular Meeting, the following Resolution was adopted by 
the Planning Commission. 

 
Resolution # PC-2006-01-013 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Tom Strat and Robert Schultz be nominated to serve as 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2006, and 
that Wayne Wright and Larry Littman be recommended to the City Council as 
the Commissioner's Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, 
respectively, for 2006.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these 
officers be elected and representatives recommended, as indicated. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Wright 
Absent: Khan, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

 
Prepared by:  K. Czarnecki 
 
G:\Planning Commission\Board of Zoning Appeals\Election of PC & BZA Rep_2006.doc 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 
 

 13

13. ELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICERS - 2006 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts announced a proposal to elect as the Chairperson, Bob Schultz; 
the Vice Chair, Wayne Wright; the BZA representative, Mary Kerwin; and the 
alternative BZA representative, Larry Littman.   
 
Mr. Littman said he would second it. 
 
Chair Strat called for a Roll Call. 
 
Discussion. 
 
At the request of Mr. Vleck, Ms. Drake-Batts repeated her nominations.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked if the nominated members had any interest in the positions for 
which they were nominated.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would have no problem being Chair.  Mr. Schultz said early 
last year there were discussions outside of an official meeting format on 
maintaining officers for two-year periods for the purpose of consistency and 
longevity.  He personally would prefer two-year terms, but said he would be 
happy to serve as Chair should the members choose.   
 
Mr. Vleck said it is his experience that the person in office no sooner learns and 
understands the workings of the position, that a new person takes office.  Mr. 
Vleck said he would be more comfortable with the positions of Chair and Vice 
Chair serving more than one year.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts thinks one-year terms are sufficient.  Ms. Drake-Batts said the 
Vice Chair position is a learning period, and she knows the current Chair and 
Vice Chair have worked closely together.  Ms. Drake-Batts feels Mr. Schultz is 
ready to take over the Chair position.   
 
Mr. Littman said there was discussion about changing the Bylaws to require two-
year terms, and legal representation informed the members that term 
requirements are not addressed in the Bylaws.   
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the election procedure followed by the Commission as relates 
to acceptance of additional nominations and closing of nominations.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that the draft Resolution provided by the Planning Department 
indicates to close the nominations and to elect the officers and recommend the 
representatives as offered.  Mr. Miller said that portion of the Resolution has not 
been read up to this point.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 
 

 14

Ms. Drake-Batts said to put it at the end.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said it appears that the Resolution is not complete and an offering of 
other candidates for the positions could be made.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would add that section to the end of the Resolution she 
made.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he believes anyone on the board can put forth a substitute 
resolution should they choose and are welcome to do so.  He said in the past, if a 
Resolution on the floor passed, it passed; if it failed, a new Resolution was then 
entered for a different slate of officers.  He said a vote would be taken on the 
substitute Resolution and then they would go back to the main motion. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked the Assistant City Attorney if he could put a substitute 
Resolution on the floor at this point in time, or if a vote must be taken on the 
Resolution on the floor.   
 
Mr. Motzny replied that a substitute Resolution could be moved at this time, and 
a second to that motion would be necessary.  Mr. Motzny indicated it would be 
the final decision of the Commission should the substitute motion pass and the 
Resolution reads that the nominations are closed and the officers be elected and 
representatives be recommended as offered. 
 
Mr. Vleck put the following alternate Resolution on the table. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-01-013 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Tom Strat and Robert Schultz be nominated to serve as Chair 
and Vice Chair of the Planning Commission, respectively, for 2006, and that 
Wayne Wright and Larry Littman be recommended to the City Council as the 
Commissioner's Board of Zoning Appeals representative and alternate, 
respectively, for 2006.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that nominations be closed and that these officers 
be elected and representatives recommended, as indicated. 
 
Discussion. 
 
Mr. Kulesza asked what happened to the first Resolution.  He said an 
amendment was going to be made to the first Resolution to close the 
nominations and the Resolution was ignored from that point on.  Mr. Kulesza said 
roll call was called on the first Resolution, and a vote must be taken according to 
Robert’s Rules of Order.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 
 

 15

Mr. Motzny said if the Resolution made by Mr. Vleck was indicated as a 
substitute Resolution, that Resolution would replace the initial Resolution and 
would be voted on.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said an amendment to a Resolution could be made as long as it has 
not been voted upon, and he thought there was a motion to amend the initial 
Resolution to close the nominations.   
 
Mr. Motzny said a provision that the nominations be closed has not been voted 
upon.  Mr. Motzny said that should the substitute Resolution not pass, another 
Resolution could be voted upon. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts asked what happened to the first Resolution she made.  She 
asked if the Resolution would be ignored because she didn’t add those words. 
 
Mr. Motzny replied that Ms. Drake-Batts would have to make another Resolution 
in place of the initial Resolution should the substitute Resolution be approved. 
 
Mr. Schultz said it is his understanding that Mr. Motzny is saying that should the 
substitute Resolution pass, the first Resolution dies; if the substitute Resolution 
does not pass, the original Resolution is voted on.   
 
Mr. Motzny said that is his interpretation.   
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed a “point of order” in terms of discussion and asked if it 
would have been appropriate to have discussion if she had begun with a “point of 
order”.   
 
Mr. Motzny replied in the affirmative.  He said there are only certain types of 
motions in which there is no discussion allowed under Robert’s Rules of Order, 
such as a motion to table.   
 
Vote on the substitute motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Wright 
Absent: Khan, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Motzny confirmed a simple majority is sufficient and the motion passed.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is a believer in the one-term concept for the Chair.  Mr. Littman 
said he does not think any one of the members is any better or smarter than the 
other.  He shared that he was asked to relinquish the Chair position when he was 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 
 

 16

next in line because Mr. Chamberlain wanted to chair an additional year in order to 
continue working on various projects.    
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the comments of Mr. Littman.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she did not know about the reappointments prior to tonight’s 
meeting and thought the officer positions would have been discussed as a group 
before the meeting.  Ms. Drake-Batts said there was no discussion and no time to 
review the matter.   

 
 



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



















TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 30, 2006 

  

SUBJECT: Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy City Code  
 

 
After the Troy City Council approved the Municipal Civil Infraction Ordinance, our office 

completed training of the involved City officials and members of the 52-4 District Court.  We are now 
at the point where Troy ordinances need to be amended to designate certain ordinance violations as 
municipal civil infractions.  Enclosed please find some proposed revisions of the Troy ordinances 
that would accomplish this designation- specifically: Chapter 2 (House Numbering and Street 
Naming), 3 (Administrative Service), 13 (Historic Preservation), 34 (Sidewalks and Driveway 
Approaches), 79 (Building Regulations), 80 (Soil Removal and Fill), 82 (Property Maintenance), 82-
A (Rental and Dwelling Inspection), 85 (Signs), 86 (Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control), 88 
(Nuisances), and 93 (Fire Prevention).  The Planning Commission has also reviewed proposed 
municipal civil infraction amendments to Chapter 39 (Zoning).  These recommendations will be 
presented to Council under separate cover.   

 
These proposed amendments would designate violations of the ordinances as municipal civil 

infractions, which would subject violators to the penalties and procedures set forth in the Municipal 
Civil Infractions Ordinance, Chapter 100 of the City Code.  The Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance 
is a tool that allows the City to decriminalize zoning, building, property maintenance and other 
ordinance violations.  For the designated offenses, City officials could issue a municipal civil 
infraction violation.  Persons that are not contesting the commission of the violation could then pay a 
scheduled fine directly to the City, as opposed to involving the 52-4 District Court.  Under Chapter 
100, the Municipal Ordinance Violations Bureau (under the supervision of the City Treasurer’s 
Office) can accept these direct payments in resolution of the matter. The Municipal Civil Infraction 
Ordinance also preserves the right of either the cited individual or the City to seek relief from the 
Court, as opposed to allowing the direct payment in resolution of the matter.  However, for most 
cases, municipal civil infractions will expedite the resolution of matters that were previously 
adjudicated through the district court criminal misdemeanor process.  Perhaps most importantly, the 
municipal civil infraction process allows the City to seek equitable relief from the District Court when 
appropriate.  This equitable relief is not generally available in criminal misdemeanor cases, which 
frustrates the City’s goal of obtaining compliance.   
 

Under state statute, there are some offenses in Chapter 88 (Nuisances) that cannot be 
converted to municipal civil infractions.  It is for this reason that the language in Chapter 88 is 
different than the other proposed amendments, which designate violations of any provision in the 
chapter as a municipal civil infraction, except as otherwise provided.  
 
 In addition to addressing the municipal civil infractions, there are other clean-up amendments 
that are proposed.  In Chapter 3, we removed references to ordinances that are no longer in effect, 
as well as references to non-existent City officials.  It is our recommendation that Council adopt the 
proposed amendments.  Please let us know if you have any questions concerning this matter. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 2 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 2, 
House Numbering and Street Naming, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 2, House Numbering and Street Naming, shall be amended by adding 
Section 16 as follows: 

16.      Penalties for Violations 

 Except as otherwise provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a 
violation of any section of Chapter 2 is a Municipal Civil Infraction 
subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of 
Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal 
Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 2 
shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and 
injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 



 2

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 – 
Administrative Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Sections 1.141(1), 1.141(3), 1.141(5), 1.141(6), 1.141(7), 1.141(8), and 
1.141(9) are amended as follows, and Section 1.141(4) is repealed: 
 
 
1.141(1) A City of Troy Police Service Aide assigned to Road Patrol Duty shall have 

authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal 
civil infraction notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish  
 
Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  
 
Chapter 29: Cemetery  
 
Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts  
 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 75: Pet Shops  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 90: Animals  

 
Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  

 
Chapter 98-07.02 Trapping  

 
Chapter 106: Traffic (Provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  



1.141(3) A City of Troy Animal Control Officer shall have authority to issue and serve 
upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  
 
Chapter 75: Pet Shops  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 90: Animals  

 
Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  
 
Chapter 98.07.02: Trapping  
 
Chapter 98.06.05: Willfully and knowingly torture, etc., any dog used by 

the City of Troy Police Department.  
 

Chapter 106 § 8 Stopping, Standing and Parking Violations  
 

1.141(4) A City of Troy Weighmaster shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 
person an appearance ticket if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the 
person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy 
City Code:  

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility  
 
Chapter 21: Underground Electric Lines  
 
Chapter 33: Streets  
 
Chapter 34: Sidewalks  
 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 94: Axle Load 
 
 

1.141(5) A City of Troy Water Division Inspector shall have the authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 



cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility  

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 33: Streets 

 
 

1.141(6) A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code.  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 

             
Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

            
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
Chapter 48: Litter Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 
Chapter 79-A: One and Two Family Dwellings 

 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings  



 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  
 
Chapter 83: Fences  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives Fire Prevention (provisions related to 

building codes)  
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades  

 
 

1.141(7) A City of Troy Fire Department Staff Lieutenant, Division Assistant Chief or 
Chief shall have authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance 
ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil 
infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person 
has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 
Code:  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming  
 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places (provisions related to 

fire safety)  
 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses (provisions related to 

fire safety)  
 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners (provisions related 

to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations (provisions related to fire 

safety)  
 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations (provisions related to fire 

safety)  
 
Chapter 82-A. Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 

(provisions related to fire safety)  
 

Chapter 82-B. Dangerous Buildings (provisions related to fire safety)  
 



Chapter 84: Garbage, Rubbish, and Refuse Transfer Station (provisions 
related to fire safety)  

 
Chapter 88: Nuisances (provisions related to fire safety)  
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives Fire Prevention 
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades (provisions 

related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 106: Traffic (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

1.141(8) A City of Troy Engineering Inspector. Inspection Supervisor, Engineering 
Technician or Environmental Specialist shall have authority to issue and serve 
upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code: 

 
Chapter 17: Rubbish Fill Operation 
 
Chapter 34: Sidewalks 
 
Chapter 42: Flood Plain Management 
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
 
Chapter 80: Soil Removal and Fill 
 
Chapter 86: Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control  

 
 1.141(9) A City of Troy Foreman of Parks Maintenance Division, Superintendent of 

Public Grounds, or Director of Parks and Recreation shall have authority to issue 
and service upon a person an appearance ticket, a municipal civil infraction 
notice of violation, and/or a municipal civil infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of 
the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 28: Tree Regulations 

 
Chapter 29: Cemetery 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to landscaping) 

 
Chapter 41: Subdivision Control (provisions related to landscaping) 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 



proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 13 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 13 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation, Section 15, is amended as follows:   
 
(Underlining denotes changes). 
 
  15. ENFORCEMENT; VIOLATIONS 

 
A. After issuance of a certificate of appropriateness or notice to proceed or if a 

violation of this article is suspected, the city’s designated representative may 
from time to time inspect the exterior of properties covered by this article. 

 
B. The enforcement of this ordinance shall be the responsibility of this Historic 

District Commission, in conjunction with the Director of Building and Zoning 
of the city.  A person, individual, partnership, firm, corporation, organization, 
institution or agency of government that violates this act is responsible for 
committing a Misdemeanor and subject to the penalties as provided by law for 
Misdemeanors Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code for the City of Troy.  Each day a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction Violation.  Sanctions for violation shall 
include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100.  The Director of Building and Zoning or his or her 
representative is hereby legally authorized to issue a citation for a violation of 
this chapter. 

 
C. A person, individual, partnership, firm, corporation, organization, institution, 

or agency of government that violates this act may be ordered by the court to 
pay the costs to restore or replicate a resource unlawfully constructed, added 
to, altered, repaired, moved, excavated, or demolished. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 



 

  

2

specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 
such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 34, Sidewalks and 
Driveway Approaches, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 34, of the Troy City Code is hereby amended by the addition of a new section 34.14 to 
read as follows: 
 
34.14  Penalties for Violation 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, a violation of any section of 

Chapter 34 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each violation of 
Chapter 34 shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and 
injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

    
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution 
hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective 
date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 
 
 
 



 

  

2

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _______________. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 79 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 79, 
General Building Regulations, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 79, General Building Regulations, shall be amended by adding Article 
29, Section 2900 as follows: 

 

                                            Article 29 

    Penalties for Violations 

2900 Except as otherwise provided in other sections or articles of this 
Chapter, a violation of any section, article or provision of Chapter 79 
is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  
Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 79 shall include a fine of not 
more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized 
by Chapter 100. 

 

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 



 2

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 80 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 80, 
Soil Removal and Fill, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Section 8.192 of Chapter 80, Soil Removal and Fill, shall be amended to read as 
follows  

8.192 Penalties for Violations  ViolationPenalties. Any person, firm, or 
corporation who shall violate this Chapter or any provision thereof 
shall be punished by a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500.00) 
dollars or by imprisonment in the County Jail or any place of 
imprisonment provided by the City or the laws of the State of 
Michigan, for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days, or both such 
fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the Court.  Except as 
otherwise provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a violation of 
any section of Chapter 80 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each 
day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 80 shall include a 
fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100.   

Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 



 2

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006.  

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82, 
Property Maintenance Code, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 82, Property Maintenance Code, shall be amended by adding Section 4 
as follows: 

4. Penalties for Violations:  Except as otherwise provided by other 
sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section of Chapter 82 is a 
Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of 
the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  Sanctions for each 
violation of Chapter 82 shall include a fine of not more than $500, 
costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 



 2

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006.  

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82-A 
OF THE CODE OF THE 

CITY OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82-
A, Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Chapter 82-A, Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement, shall be 
amended by adding Section 10 as follows: 

10. Penalties for Violations:  Except as otherwise provided by other 
sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section of Chapter 82 -A 
is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 
100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation.  
Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 82-A shall include a fine of 
not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 



 2

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 
    AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
    CHAPTER 85 OF THE CODE 
    OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 85, 
Signs, of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 85, Signs, Section 85.01.09 (A) is amended to read as follows: 
 
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, 

enlarge, alter, move, or convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause 
or permit the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any of the 
provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any of the provisions 
of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction 
of any such violation, shall be punished with a fine of between $50 
and $500 and/or incarceration of up to 90 days.  responsible for 
committing a municipal civil infraction subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each day that a violation 
continues is deemed a separate municipal civil infraction.  Sanctions 
for each violation of Chapter 85 shall include a fine of not more than 
$500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 
100.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety 
is deemed a nuisance and may be removed by the Building Inspector 
at the expense of the owner of the sign or other responsible party, in 
the discretion of the Building Inspector. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, 
or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under 
any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending 
at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior 
to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 
any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 



 
  

2

 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective March 1, 2006. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 86 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1.  Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 86, 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2.  Amendment 

Section 7(C) of Chapter 86, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, is amended 
to read as follows: 

C. Penalties for Violations 

1.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, 
shall be subject to a fine of not more than $500.00 and the costs of 
prosecution or, in default thereof, shall be punished by imprisonment in 
the County Jail for a period not to exceed 90 days for each offense, or 
by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the court, 
together with the costs of such prosecution.  Except as otherwise 
provided in specific sections of this Chapter, a violation of any section 
of Chapter 86 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions of 
Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Sanctions for each 
violation of Chapter 86 shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, 
damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100. 

2.  A default in the payment of a civil fine or costs ordered under this 
ordinance or an installment of the fine or cost may be remedied by any 
means authorized under the revised judicature act of 1961, being 
Sections 600.101 to 600.9947 of the Michigan Compiled Laws., as 
amended. 

3. Fines, ImprisonmentCosts, Damages, Injunctive Orders: 

The owner of any land, premises or part thereof, where any condition in 
violation of this Chapter shall exist or shall be created, and who has 
assisted knowingly in the commission of such violation shall be guilty 
of responsible for a separate offense and upon conviction a finding or 
admission of responsibility for such offense thereof shall be liable to 
the responsible for payment of fines, costs and damages and subject to 
each applicable injunctive orderimprisonment herein provided. 

4. Each Day a Separate Offense: 



 2

A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or 
when a violation occurs or continues. 

5. Rights and Remedies are Cumulative: 

The rights and remedies provided herein are cumulative and in addition 
to any other remedies provided by law. 

6.  If any part of this ordinance is declared by a court to be invalid, the 
invalid part shall not affect the remaining parts of the ordinance which 
can be given effect without the invalid part.  The validity of the 
ordinance as a whole, or in part, shall not be affected other than the part 
invalidated. 

 Section 3.  Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance 
with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006.  

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 

 

                    ______________________________ 
                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 
    AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
    CHAPTER 88 OF THE CODE 
    OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 88, 
Nuisances, of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 88 is hereby amended by the addition of a new section 24 as follows: 
 

24.      Municipal Civil Infractions 
 

A violation of sections 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.5, 9.9, 9.13, 9.14, 9.15, 9.17, 9.18, 
9.20, and 15 of this Chapter is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy.  Each 
day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall include a 
fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as 
authorized by Chapter 100. 

. 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, 
or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under 
any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at 
the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to 
the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of 
any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 



 
  

2

 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 
 



   
   

1

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 93 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 93, Fire 
Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
(Underlining denotes changes). 
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 109.3 of Chapter 93 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
109.3 Penalties for Violations.Violations Penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this 

code or shall fail to comply with any requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, 
repair, service, test or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or 
directive of the fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this 
code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable  responsible for a Municipal Civil 
Infraction subject to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code for the City of Troy.by a fine 
of not more than five hundred (500) dollars, or by imprisonment not exceeding ninety (90) 
days, or both such fine and imprisonment as determined by a judge in a court of law.  Each 
day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate 
offense.  Sanctions for each violation shall include a fine of not more than $500, costs, 
damages and injunctive orders as authorized by Chapter 100.   

 
 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or 
amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to 
the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance 
in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 



   
   

2

 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on March 1, 2006. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, _______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



February 2, 2006 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of an Acting City Manager 
 
 
 
At the January 16, 2006 special-study meeting City Council indicated that they would 
consider appointment of an acting city manager at the February 6, 2006 regular City 
Council meeting.  Given our culture of professionalism and scale of organization, I 
recommend that Council appoint an acting city manager beginning March 13, 2006 as 
that’s the date I become city manager of Sunny Isles Beach, Florida.  Your authority to 
do this is contained in Section 3.12 of the City Charter, which reads as follows: 
 
“The Council may appoint or designate an acting city manager during the period of a 
vacancy in the office or during the absence of the city manager from the city.  Such 
acting manager shall, while he is in office, have all the responsibilities, duties, functions 
and authority of the city manager.” 
 
In addition, the Charter requires the office which I now hold to be filled within 120 days 
from my departure.  With my last day being March 12, 2006, this means that a manager 
must be appointed no later than July 10, 2006 (see City Charter Section 3.10). 
 
Please know that the city manager has six (6) direct reports that fall within the ranks of 
senior management:  assistant city manager of finance and administration; assistant city 
manager of the service division; police chief; fire chief; real estate and development 
director; human resources director (see attached table of organization). 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\02.06.06 - Appointment of an Acting City Manager 

CampbellLD
Text Box
F-04



Organizational Chart 
 

 

 

Building
Inspection

Building
Operations

Traffic Engineering

Engineering Library/
Museum

Aquatic Center Golf Courses

Parks &
Recreation

Fleet
Maintenance

Refuse &
Recycling

Streets &
Drains

Water &
Sewer

Public Works

Assistant City Manager/
Services

Police
Chief

City Assessor's
Office

City Clerk's
Office

Community Affairs

Accounting City Treasurer's
Office

Risk
Managment

Financial Services Information
Technology

Purchasing

Assistant City Manager/
Finance & Administration

Fire
Chief

Human Resources
Director

Planning

Real Estate &
Development Director

City
Manager

CITY COUNCIL

-1- 



January 26, 2006  
 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 

Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
Subject:   Agenda Item - Informal Quotation Process 

Award of Emergency Water Main Repair at Maple and Research Drive   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends that City Council authorize emergency repair work for 
the installation of a 12” water gate valve and replacement of a leaking 24” X 12” water 
tapping sleeve and valve at Maple Road and Research Drive.  This repair work would 
be done on time and material basis for an estimated cost of approximately $72,000, 
which includes labor, materials, traffic control, and temporary repair of road and 
sidewalk. 
 
Due to the nature of this work, it is possible that unforeseen underground conditions 
may exist that could cause the scope of the project to be expanded.  Due to these 
unforeseen conditions, such as pipe joint location, deterioration of the 24” and/or 12” 
water main, relocation or protection of other utilities, soil conditions, etc. we also seek 
authorization to expend additional funds up to 25% ($18,000) of the estimated project 
cost. The total expenditure authorized requested is $90,000. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Water and Sewer Department recently discovered a leaking tapping sleeve and 
valve on a 24” concrete water main at the intersection of Maple Road and Research 
Drive. The 24” water main runs east and west, is approximately 14’ in depth and is 
located in the green belt area at the northwest corner of the intersection. Inspection has 
determined that the tapping sleeve and valve requires replacement.  
 
The repair work is expected to take 4 to 5 days, which is longer than a typical water 
main repair due to the pipe’s location, type of pipe, large size, deep burial depth and it’s 
close proximity to many fiber optic utility lines and a utility pole.  In order to maintain fire 
protection and water service to the surrounding businesses, it will be necessary to first 
install an additional water gate valve and well north of this location on a 12” water main.   
 
In the three weeks that has elapsed since the discovery of the leaking tapping sleeve 
and valve, the volume of water loss has increased.  We do not expect this situation to 

CampbellLD
Text Box
F-05



turn into a major leak or main break, but there is an increased potential that one of 
these might occur.  Icing, due to water leaking onto the road and winter weather 
conditions, makes this a potentially dangerous situation.  The 24” water main has been 
isolated to reduce water loss and businesses are being back fed water from another 
connection to the 12” water main.  At this time we can adequately serve water to the 
area.  
 
We have concerns that by the time we put a bid package together, conclude the bidding 
and approval process and start construction; 3 to 4 months will have passed.  In 
addition to the potential for the situation to deteriorate, the expense of labor to monitor 
and secure the site area for safety reasons will outweigh the benefit of the bid process. 
Additionally and more importantly, we also may not be able to adequately provide water 
service and fire protection to the area as volume and pressure requirements increase in 
the spring. 
 
The Engineering and Public Works departments consider the repair specialty work, 
which requires a contractor with considerable experience with large diameter concrete 
water pipe and deep excavations.  The city currently has two such contractors under 
contract that are qualified and experienced to perform this type of work. Troelson 
Contracting has declined to give a quote. Dan’s Excavating has provided labor and 
equipment rates at an estimate of $72,000 to complete the scope of work.  The rates 
were reviewed by the Engineering department and found to be competitive with the 
prevailing labor and equipment rates for our area.    
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are budgeted in the Water and Sewer budget account # 548.7801.010 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Assistant 
 
 



 1

DATE: January 31, 2006 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(FEBRUARY 20, 2006) – REZONING APPLICATION – North side of 
Fourteen Mile Road, East of John R, Section 36 – B-2 to M-1 (Z 372-B) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and compatible with the 
existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning request at the January 10, 2006 Regular meeting.  City 
Management concurs with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The applicant is 977-14 Mile Associates, LLC.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Fourteen Mile, east of John R, in Section 
36. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel proposed to be rezoned is approximately 4.25 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject 4.25-acre parcel is part of a larger 8.4-acre parcel.  The subject parcel 
fronts on Fourteen Mile Road and is zoned B-2, the remainder of the parcel fronts on 
Robbins and is zoned M-1.  A vacant 173,000 square foot building sits on the property, 
with approximately 40,000 square feet of the building presently zoned B-2. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
M-1 Light Industrial. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property so that the entire 8.4-acre 
parcel is zoned M-1 Light Industrial. 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Industrial. 
South: Commercial (City of Madison Heights). 
East: Commercial retail. 
West: Industrial. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: M-1 Light Industrial. 
South: B-3 General Business and M-1 Light Industrial (City of Madison Heights). 
East: M-1 Light Industrial. 
West: B-2 Community Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
Principal Uses Permitted: 
 

The manufacture, compounding, processing, packaging or treatment of such 
products as: bakery goods, candy, cosmetics, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, food 
products, hardware and cutlery, tool, die, gauge and machine shops. 

 
The manufacture, compounding, assembling, or treatment of articles or 
merchandise from the following previously prepared materials: bone, canvas, 
cellophane, cloth, cork, feathers, felt, fiber, fur, glass, hair, horn, leather, paper, 
plastics, precious or semi-precious metal or stones, sheet metal (excluding large 
stampings such as automobile fenders or bodies), shell, textiles, tobacco, wax, wire, 
wood (excluding saw and planing mills), and yarns. 

 
The manufacture of pottery and figurines or other similar ceramic products using 
only previously pulverized clay, and kilns fired only by electricity or gas. 

 
Manufacture of musical instruments, toys, novelties, and metal or rubber stamps, or 
other small moulded rubber products. 

 
Manufacture or assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instruments and 
devices, radios and phonographs. 

 
Laboratories - experimental, film or testing, and industrial photograph facilities. 
 
Manufacture and repair of electric and neon signs, light sheet metal products, 
including heating and ventilating equipment, cornices, eaves and the like. 

 
 Warehouse and wholesale establishments and truck terminal facilities. 



 3

Distribution, service, and processing centers for commercial and service uses 
whose basic operations or business functions occur in other non-residential 
Districts.  

 
Industrial research, engineering, design, and pilot or experimental product 
development or manufacturing process development. 
 
Central dry cleaning plants or laundries provided that such plants shall not 
deal directly with consumer at retail. 

 
Public utility facilities, buildings, storage yards, and other related uses. 

 
 Trade or industrial schools. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above permitted uses. 
 
Conditional Uses Permitted: 
   

Accessory or related uses which, by themselves, would not be permitted in the M-1 
District. 

   
Outside storage facilities for materials or equipment necessary for the 
manufacturing, compounding, or processing.  

 
Temporary permission for retail sales as an accessory to a wholesale or service 
facility within an M-1 District.   

 
 Metal plating, buffing and polishing. 
 

Machinery assembly plants, painting and varnishing shops, lumber and planing 
mills. 

 
 
Uses Permitted Subject to Special Use Approval: 
 

Mini-warehouse or self-storage developments, wherein indoor storage areas are 
made available to the general public. 

 
 Canning factories (but not including slaughtering or rendering). 
 

Storage facilities for building materials, sand, gravel, stone, lumber, construction 
contractor's equipment and supplies, vehicles, and recreational vehicles and 
equipment. 
 
New car sales agencies when such agencies are developed as a planned center or 
complex specializing in new car sales and consisting of more than two individual 
franchised new car agencies. 



 4

Greenhouse facilities for the growth and production of plant materials. 
 
 Automobile repair and service facilities. 
 
 Commercial kennels. 
 
 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above. 
 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on John R Road.  
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Light Industrial. The Light 
Industrial designation has a Primary Correlation with the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning 
District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent with the City of Troy Future 
Land Use Plan.  This general area was designated Light Industrial in 1965. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
There are no location standards for the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from January 10, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letter from applicant, received by Planning Department December 7, 2005. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 372-B) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-372 B 977-14 Mile Road Sec 36\Announcement of CC Public Hearing 2 6 06.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-2 TO M-1



JO
H

N
 R

E FOURTEEN MILE

E
X

E
C

U
TIV

E

R
O

B
B

IN
S

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-2 TO M-1
N SIDE OF FOURTEEN MILE RD, E OF JOHN R
SEC. 36   (Z-372 B)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-2 TO M-1











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 372-B) – Proposed Industrial 
Use of Existing Building, North side of Fourteen Mile Road, East of John R (977 
E. Fourteen Mile Road), Section 36 – From B-2 (Community Business) to M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the 
option to postpone the item prior to the presentation to the Planning Commission.   
 
The petitioner, John Secco of 1040 Devonshire, Grosse Pointe, was present and 
indicated he would like to go forward with the proceeding.   
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning request and reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Secco said the subject property that is zoned commercial and industrial must 
be zoned completely industrial in order for the prospective user to occupy the 
space legally.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-01-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-2 to M-1 rezoning request, located on the north side of 
Fourteen Mile, east of John R, within Section 36, being approximately 4.25 acres 
in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 





 1

DATE: January 31, 2006 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(FEBRUARY 20, 2006) – REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed 
Medical Office, East side of Stephenson Highway, South side of Maple, 
West of I-75, Section 35 – R-C to O-M (Z 286-B) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the rezoning request at the January 10, 2006 Regular 
meeting.  City Management concurs with the Planning Commission and recommends 
approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Michael A. Herbert of the University Physician Group.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of Stephenson Highway, south side of Maple, 
west of I-75, in Section 35. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 11.5 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A vacant 4-story office building presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-C Research Center. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-M Office Mid-Rise. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that proposed uses include a medical office building, an 
ambulatory surgery center, a diagnostic center and related permitted uses within the 
existing building. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Hotel and restaurant.  
South: Office. 
East: Light industrial and mini warehouse. 
West: Office and gas station. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-3 General Business. 
South: R-C Research Center.  
East: M-1 Light Industrial. 
West: O-M Office Mid Rise and H-S Highway Service.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed O-M Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 Any use permitted as a principal use in the O-1 Office Building. 
 

Data processing and computer centers, including sales, service and maintenance of 
electronic data processing equipment. 

 
 Any use charged with the principal function of office-type research or technical 

training. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

The following uses shall be permitted provided they are included in the office use 
structure or other principal structures as indicated in Section 25.20.00 "Principal 
Uses Permitted", or are attached to such structures by means of a fully enclosed 
structural attachment, and therefore shall not be permitted as freestanding 
structures. Such secondary structures shall be designed so as to provide a logical 
extension of the floor plan of the principal structures, and shall utilize exterior 
materials similar to or harmonious with such principal structures. 

 
  A) Personal service establishments which perform services on the 

premises including, but not limited to: barber shops, beauty parlors, 
tailor shops, and photographic studios. 

 
  B) Retail business establishments which supply commodities on the 

premises including, but not limited to: millinery shops, clothing shops, 



 3

shoe shops, pharmacy or apothecary shops, interior decorating 
shops, flower shops, office supply and stationery shops, notion and 
gift shops. 

 
  C) Restaurants or other places serving food or beverage, except those 

having the character of an open front store, drive-in or carry-out 
establishment so called. 

 
  D) Entertainment and recreation facilities including, but not limited to: 

theaters, auditoriums, sports and health facilities. 
 
  E) Clubs, fraternal organizations and service clubs whose activities are 

not carried on as a business. 
 
  Such uses shall, in total, occupy no more than twenty (20) percent of the 

floor area of the building complex of which they are a part. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Hotels or motels may be permitted by the City Council, following a report and 
recommendation by the Planning Commission. 

 
Outside seating, assembly, and activity areas for restaurants and hotels, may be 
permitted by the City Council. 

 
 Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing or evaluation of products, or 

prototype or experimental product or process development. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the property is provided from Stephenson Highway and Maple Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant proposes no additional construction on the property. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies this parcel as Office/Research.  The Research 
classification has a primary correlation with the R-C District and a secondary correlation 
with the M-1, O-1, O-M and O-S-C Districts.  The application is therefore consistent with 
the Future Land Use Plan.  The area was designated Light Industrial on the Master 
Land Use Plan in 1965, designated Industrial/Research on the 1971 Plan and then 
designated Office/Research on the 2002 Future Land Use Plan. 



 4

Compliance with Location Standards: 
The location standards for the O-M Office Mid-Rise District in Article 25.40.00 may be 
applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 
Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves (1) Areas indicated as mid-rise office 
(Article 25.40.02) or (2) Areas designated for higher intensity office development, when it is 
determined that the total community would be more effectively and property served by the 
application of O-M zoning than by the application of a more intense office district (Article 
25.40.03). 
 
While the property is not classified as mid-rise office on the Future Land Use Plan, the 
property is classified as Office/Research, which correlates with the O-M district.  The 
application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from January 10, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letter from applicant dated December 9, 2005. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 286-B) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-286 B Proposed Medical Office Sec 35\Announcement of CC Public Hearing 2 6 06.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-M



S
 I75

N
 I75

E MAPLE

C
H

IC
A

G
O

STEPHENSON

AU
STIN

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

STEPH
EN

SO
N

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED MEDICAL OFFICE IN EXISTING BLDG.
SE CORNER OF STEPHENSON HWY. & MAPLE
SEC. 35 (Z-286 B)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-C TO O-M











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2006 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 286-B) – Proposed Medical Office in 
Existing Building, Southeast corner of Maple Road and Stephenson Hwy (1420-1450 
Stephenson Hwy), Section 35 – From R-C (Research Center) to O-M (Office Mid-rise) 
District 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the option to 
postpone the item prior to the presentation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Miller provided further clarification on the approval process, at the request of the 
petitioner.   
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning request and reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
recommend approval of the rezoning request.   
 
Mark Adams, Attorney, 201 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was present to represent the 
petitioner, and indicated the petitioner would continue with the proceeding.  Mr. Adams 
said the University Physician Group plans to invest an additional $47 million in the 
project that would provide over 150 new jobs at the site.  He said it is an incredible 
opportunity for both the owner and the City, and asked for favorable approval of the 
request.  Mr. Adams offered to share presentational material on the proposed 
development.   
 
Cynthia Sikina, Chief Financial Officer for University Physician Group, 550 E. Canfield, 
Detroit, was present also.  Ms. Sikina said the investment is an effort to develop an 
ambulatory care facility that would better serve their patients.  She said the University 
Physician Group currently practices medicine at 135 sites in the tri-county area, and the 
new development would benefit patients in the area as well as make their presence in the 
community more logical. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-01-008 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-C to O-M rezoning request, located on the southeast corner of Maple Road 
and Stephenson Highway, within Section 35, being approximately 11.5 acres in size, be 
granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 







 

Memorandum 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
Date: February 2, 2006 
Subject: Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing – RESCHEDULING of Adoption 
 of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank – 1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, East of 
 Coolidge, Section 32 from February 20, 2006 to February 27, 2006 
 
In order to meet the proper publication notice requirements for public hearings pertaining 
to the approval of a Brownfield plan for an eligible property, I am requesting that the 
Adoption of Brownfield Plan #4 for TCF Bank –1470 Coolidge – South of Maple, East of 
Coolidge, Section 32 be rescheduled from the Regular City Council meeting of Monday, 
February 20, 2006 to Monday, February 27, 2006. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 
 
January 24, 2006 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Cutting Street Ad Hoc Committee 
 
 
At the January 19, 2006 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board the 
following action was taken:   
 
Resolution #PR –2006-01-004 
Moved by: Redpath 
Seconded by: Dixon 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the 
City Council accept the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee and be it 
further resolved that the City continue to negotiate the sale to the adjacent 
property owner to an end point.   
 
Yes:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
DATE:  January 10, 2006 
 
RE:  Ad-Hoc Committee Review of the Former Sta. 2 Site 
 
The Ad-Hoc Committee that was assembled to review the use of the old Station 2 site as potential 
parkland met on Wednesday, November 30th, at the Museum.  The ad-hoc committee attendees were 
Merrill Dixon (Parks), Roger Kaniarz (HC), Brian Wattles (HC), Rusty Kaltsounis (Parks), and Muriel 
Rounds (HDC).  Ann Partlan (HDC) was unable to attend, as she was under the weather.  Also 
attending were City staffers Loraine Campbell, Carol Anderson, and Brian Murphy. 
 
The committee was asked if the City of Troy should preserve this lot as a park for historic or 
recreational reasons, or as open space.  As background to addressing this question Loraine Campbell 
and Carol Anderson provided the committee with background and reference material, including: a 
report on the history of the site; maps of the site, historic sites in the area, parkland/open space within 
one mile, and the proposed Heritage Park site; and a report on the proposed Heritage Park at Troy 
Corners. 
 
After reviewing the information, there was general agreement that the proximity and size of the 
property limited its value as parkland for use as either historic or recreational reasons.  Members of 
the committee expressed an interest in preserving open space in the community, as other properties in 
the City are being split off and developed.  They felt there might be value in preserving this site as 
open space. 
 
A discussion on maintenance costs and the level of maintenance led to the question of who was 
interested in buying the property and what were the intentions.  Actual maintenance costs will likely 
vary, depending on how the site is developed.  However, based on the National Recreation and Park 
Association maintenance labor standard, it is estimated that the annual maintenance cost per acre is 
$2,500.  
 
City staff informed the committee that the adjacent homeowner was the interested party in the 
property, and that their interest was in keeping that land as part of his larger lot.  The committee was 
favorable to selling the land to the adjacent neighbor, with some conditions.  The conditions included 
some type of restrictions that limited the ability to build on the site, and that the City reserve some 
portion of the property to place some commemorative marker on the site (similar to the one discussed 
for use in the Heritage Park). 
 
Since the meeting, the City’s Real Estate and Economic Development Department has been in 
conversation with the adjacent homeowner.  The homeowner continues to be interested in buying the 
property from the City, and has indicated that in the short term his only plans are to add on to the west 
side of his home.  He also is supportive of having a marker placed on the site.   
 
He expressed some concern on a permanent restriction that he may never be allowed to build on the 
site.  As it is, the site is too narrow to develop on its own, and would require additional assembly to 
make something of the site.  While he has no designs at this time, he would like to maintain the right. 
 
A copy of this memo will be forwarded to the Parks and Recreation Board for their review and 
recommendation, before submission to the City Council.  The Parks and Recreation Board is 
scheduled to meet on January 19, 2006 to take up this matter.   
 
Unless otherwise directed, City staff will continue conversations with the neighbor following Council 
review and consideration.  Please let me know if you have any further questions. 



January 19, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finances 

James Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation   
  Jake Pilat, Director of Golf Operations 
 
RE:  2006 Golf Division Rate Proposal  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the City Manager approve the 2006 golf rates and the 
effective dates for peak and off peak rates.  The resolution passed in 2004 
regarding golf rates includes the authorization by the City Manager to adjust the 
rates to stay competitive (Res #2004-02-98/2004-05-271).   
 
Proposed changes to the previously approved rates include: 
Addition of an AM league rate – Sanctuary Lake 
Addition of a tiered outing rate – Sanctuary Lake 
Addition of an annual membership for practice facility 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
To increase revenues at Sanctuary Lake, staff is proposing the following new 
rates and offerings be approved: 
 

• AM League Rate:  New rates proposed to be consistent with the PM 
league rates approved in 2005.  Since the addition of the new PM league 
rates at Sanctuary Lake, approved in the fall of 2005, seven new leagues 
have been added for the 2006 season with approximately 160 additional 
players.   

• Tiered Outing Rates:  Tiered discounts to encourage larger outings.  For 
groups between 20 and 47 players the current outing rate will be in effect, 
for groups between 48 and 71 players a small discount will be given and 
groups larger than 72 players an additional discount will be given.   

• Annual Practice Facility Membership:  A season pass would allow players 
to pay one fee for range balls for the entire season.  Many other courses 
with practice facilities offer range memberships and based on inquiries, 
there appears to be a demand at Sanctuary Lake. 

 
The peak season rate is proposed to be effective April 22 through September 17, 
2006. 
The off season rate is proposed to be in effect April 1, 2006 through April 21, 
2006 and September 18, 2006 run through the end of the season.   

campbellld
Text Box
G-02b



 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 

• AM League Rate - Sanctuary:  Weekday mornings have shown modest 
play and an AM league rate is likely to increase rounds. 
In the 2005 season, approximately 4,700 AM league rounds were played 
at Sylvan Glen with revenues of approximately $55,000.   
Although it is unlikely that the same number of rounds will be played at 
Sanctuary, potential revenue increase is approximately $120,000. 

 
• Tiered Outing Rates - Sanctuary:  Although no estimates can be 

projected, a tiered outing rate will be an incentive for bringing larger 
groups to Sanctuary Lake resulting in increased revenues. 

 
• Annual Practice Facility Membership:  An increase in revenues is 

probable with this option as the value may be perceived as higher. 
Estimate increased revenue is $10,000. 

 
 
 
SUMMARY 
With the approval of these rates for the 2006 season, staff is confident that 
revenues will increase thereby reducing the debt to the facility.  
 
Attached are copies of the proposed peak and off-peak rate structures for Sylvan 
Glen and Sanctuary Lake.  The changes and additions are in bold.   
 
 
 
Approved: _______________________ 
          John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
Prepared by:  Jacob D. Pilat 
 
 



Weekday
18 - Hole Resident $38.00
18 - Hole Regular $45.00
18 - Hole Senior Resident (Before 1:00 PM) $30.00
18 - Hole Junior Resident (All Day) $30.00
18 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1:00 PM) $34.00
18 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $34.00
9 - Hole Resident $23.00
9 - Hole Regular $30.00
9 - Hole Senior Resident (Before 1:00 PM) $19.00
9 - Hole Junior Resident (All Day) $19.00
9 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1:00 PM) $23.00
9 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $23.00
18 - Hole Twilight (After 2:00) $30.00
9 - Hole Twilight (After 4:00) $19.00

Weekend
18 - Hole Resident $41.00
18 - Hole Regular $49.00
18 - Hole Senior Resident (After 1:00 PM) $38.00
18 - Hole Junior Resident (After 1:00 PM) $38.00
18 - Hole Senior Regular (After 1:00 PM) $41.00
18 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1:00 PM) $41.00
9 - Hole Resident $26.00
9 - Hole Regular $34.00
9 - Hole Senior Resident (After 1:00 PM) $23.00
9 - Hole Junior Resident (After 1:00 PM) $23.00
9 - Hole Senior Regular (After 1:00PM) $26.00
9 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1:00 PM) $26.00
18 - Hole Twilight (After 2:00) $34.00
9 - Hole Twilight (After 4:00) $23.00

Large Bucket $8.00
Small Bucket $5.00

Rental Clubs $20.00

*All rates include power cart
*Senior Rates are 62 and Over
*Junior Rates are 17 and Under
*Disabled rates available 

City of Troy
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

2006 PROPOSED OFF PEAK RATE



Weekday
18 - Hole Weekday Special (7:00 am to 11:00 am) $45.00
18 - Hole Resident $50.00
18 - Hole Regular $60.00
18 - Hole Senior/Junior AM Special (7:00 am to 11:00 am) $30.00
18 - Hole Resident Senior/Junior (11:00 am to 1:00 pm) $40.00
18 - Hole Regular Senior/Junior (11:00 am to 1:00 pm) $45.00
18 - Hole PM Special (After 3:00 pm) $40.00
9 - Hole AM Special (7:00 am to 8:00 am) $25.00
9 - Hole Resident $30.00
9 - Hole Regular $35.00
9 - Hole Senior/Junior AM Special (7:00 am to 8:00 am) $20.00
9 - Hole Resident Senior/Junior (8:00 am to 1:00 pm) $25.00
9 - Hole Regular Senior/Junior (8:00 am to 1:00 pm) $30.00
9 - Hole PM Special (After 6:00 PM) $25.00

Weekend
18 - Hole Resident $55.00
18 - Hole Regular $65.00
18 - Hole Midday Special (12:00 pm to 3:00 pm) $50.00
18 - Hole Senior/Junior Midday Special (12:00 pm to 3:00 pm) $45.00
18 - Hole PM Special (After 3:00 PM) $45.00
9 - Hole Resident $35.00
9 - Hole Regular $40.00
9 - Hole Resident Senior/Junior (After 1:00 PM) $30.00
9 - Hole Regular Senior/Junior (After 1:00 PM) $35.00
9 - Hole PM Special (After 6:00 PM) $30.00

Outings
18 Hole Weekday  (20 - 47 Players) $55.00
18 Hole Weekday  (48 - 71 Players) $53.00
18 Hole Weekday  (72+ Players) $50.00
9 - Hole Weekday $35.00
18 Hole Weekend  (20 - 47 Players) $60.00
18 Hole Weekend  (48 - 71 Players) $58.00
18 Hole Weekend  (72+ Players) $55.00
9 - Hole Weekend $40.00

Leagues
9 - Hole Resident ( PM ) $29.00
9 - Hole Regular (PM ) $32.00
9 - Hole Resident (AM ) $29.00
9 - Hole Regular (AM ) $32.00
9 - Hole Senior ( AM ) $22.00

Range Rates
Large Bucket $8.00
Small Bucket $5.00
Individual Range Membership $350.00
Family Range Membership $500.00

*Senior rates apply for those 62 years old and over
*Junior rates apply for those 17 years old and under
*All rates include power cart
*Disable rates available

City of Troy
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

Proposed 2006 Rate Scheduale



Weekday Walking W/ Cart
18 - Hole Regular $20.00 $31.50
18 - Hole Resident Discount $15.00 $26.50
18 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1 PM) $14.00 $22.50
18 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (Before 1 PM) $11.25 $19.75
18 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $14.00 $22.50
18 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (All Day) $11.25 $19.75
9 - Hole Regular $13.00 $20.50
9 - Hole Resident Discount $11.00 $18.50
9 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1 PM) $10.00 $15.50
9 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (Before 1 PM) $8.25 $13.75
9 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $10.00 $15.50
9 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (All Day) $8.25 $13.75

Weekend
18 - Hole Regular $24.00 $35.50
18 - Hole Resident Discount $18.00 $29.50
18 - Hole Senior Regular (After 1 PM) $17.00 $25.50
18 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (All Day) $13.50 $22.00
18 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1 PM) $17.00 $25.50
18 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (After 1 PM) $13.50 $22.00
9 - Hole Regular $15.00 $22.50
9 - Hole Resident Discount $12.00 $19.50
9 - Hole Senior Regular (After 1 PM) $11.00 $16.50
9 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (All Day) $9.00 $14.50
9 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1 PM) $11.00 $16.50
9 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (After 1 PM) $9.00 $14.50

Rentals
Pull Carts $2.00
Clubs $20.00

*Senior rates apply for those 62 years old and over
*Junior Rate apply for those 17 years and under
*Disable rates available

City of Troy
Sylvan Glen Golf Course

2006 Proposed Off-Peak Rates



Weekday Walking W/ Cart
18 - Hole Regular $27.00 $42.00
18 - Hole Resident Discount $20.00 $35.00
18 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1 PM) $19.00 $30.00
18 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (Before 1 PM) $15.00 $26.00
18 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $19.00 $30.00
18 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (All Day) $15.00 $26.00
9 - Hole Regular $17.00 $27.00
9 - Hole Resident Discount $14.00 $24.00
9 - Hole Senior Regular (Before 1 PM) $13.00 $20.00
9 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (Before 1 PM) $10.50 $17.50
9 - Hole Junior Regular (All Day) $13.00 $20.00
9 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (All Day) $10.50 $17.50

Weekend
18 - Hole Regular $32.00 $47.00
18 - Hole Resident Discount $24.00 $39.00
18 - Hole Senior Regular (All Day) $23.00 $34.00
18 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (All Day) $18.00 $29.00
18 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1 PM) $23.00 $34.00
18 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (After 1 PM) $18.00 $29.00
9 - Hole Regular $20.00 $30.00
9 - Hole Resident Discount $16.00 $26.00
9 - Hole Senior Regular (All Day) $15.00 $22.00
9 - Hole Senior Resident Discount (All Day) $12.00 $19.00
9 - Hole Junior Regular (After 1 PM) $15.00 $22.00
9 - Hole Junior Resident Discount (After 1 PM) $12.00 $19.00

Twilight (Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays)
18 - Holes (After 3 PM) $20.00 $30.00
9 - Holes (After 6 PM) $14.00 $20.00

Outings
18 Hole Weekday $44.00
9 Hole Weekday $30.00
18 Hole Weekend $48.00
9 Hole Weekend $33.00

Rentals
Pull Carts $2.00
Clubs $20.00

*Senior rates apply for those 62 years old and over
*Junior rates apply for those 17 years old and under
*Disable rates available

City of Troy
Sylvan Glen Golf Course

Proposed 2006 Rate Scheduale



campbellld
Text Box
G-02c



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Lenivov, Victor  314 18:39:43
Hughes, Richard  311 13:21:36
Petitioner,  101 7:22:04
Savage, James  106 5:17:04
Bernardi, Mary Ann  66 4:05:24
Krent, Tom  32 1:30:57
Unknown,  42 1:28:03
Husk, Randy  25 1:24:43
Minnick, Dick  27 1:20:17
Wattles, Brian  18 0:53:00
Ullmann, Ron  13 0:52:04
Ashland, David  22 0:51:24
Zembruski, Audrey  36 0:49:35
DeBacker, Deborah  21 0:48:15
Bloom, Jerry  18 0:45:15
Bogush, Mary  9 0:41:19
Cricket Assoc.,  1 0:39:17
Bendzinski, Bob  2 0:37:40
Hunt, Eric  11 0:35:48
Thielfoldt, Linda  13 0:35:16
Francuck, Melania  28 0:33:46
Wilson, Ted  12 0:32:21
Brubaker, Michael  11 0:31:55
Krall, David R.  14 0:31:37
koerber, Ralph  9 0:31:04
Reina, Steve  10 0:30:40
Baron, Bart  6 0:30:20
Delaforte, Antoine  6 0:30:18
Bloomingdale, Bruce  4 0:29:49
Papadelis, George  8 0:29:28
Rusciano, Anthony  11 0:28:34
Kennis, Bill  9 0:28:23
petitioners,  7 0:28:21
Weber, Marie  5 0:28:03
Schepke, Gordon  13 0:27:40
Bertin, Leonard  18 0:27:38
Hodges, Michele  17 0:27:22
Krall, David P.  5 0:27:19
Silverstein, Michael  7 0:26:55
sav,  18 0:26:48
McCormick, Cat;hy  2 0:26:19
Wagner, Lori  6 0:25:58
sawyer, Tom  3 0:25:47
Gosselin, Robert  6 0:25:21
Carlisle, John,  1 0:24:42
Turner, Jack  6 0:24:40
Schilling, Louise  14 0:23:57
Merana, Dolly  3 0:23:44
Ode, Phil  3 0:21:43
Eisenbacher, David  13 0:21:14
Rivard, Dennis  7 0:20:18
Pylat, John  5 0:19:55
Pryor, Matt  14 0:19:41
Luis Bevilacqua,  1 0:19:38
Peters, Richard  8 0:19:35
Briscoe, Kathy  6 0:18:40

Page 1 of 16

CampbellLD
Text Box
H-01



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Blakely, Dave  3 0:18:21
Garrett, Dale  5 0:18:07
Martinses, Linda  3 0:18:06
Brodbine, Mike  8 0:18:06
Howrylak, Martin,  7 0:17:38
Nayer, Seymour  2 0:16:39
Theuer, Rick  1 0:16:26
Haas, Helen  2 0:16:18
Solberg, Mary Ann  2 0:16:15
Rocchio, James  5 0:16:11
Chamberlain, Janet  7 0:16:06
Nelson, David  3 0:16:01
Jopke, Dr.  2 0:16:01
peacock, Richard  3 0:16:00
Green, Wolenda  7 0:15:51
Ohman, Phil  10 0:15:51
Deagle, Murray  4 0:15:37
Appleby,  Andy,  1 0:15:26
Robele, Nadine  3 0:15:25
Broomfield, Christina  3 0:15:13
Jackson, Barbara  6 0:15:06
Rogers, Ken  2 0:14:56
Neustomeyer, Jim,  1 0:14:30
Somerville, Pat  2 0:14:19
clark, glenn  4 0:14:18
Moore, Ron  1 0:14:18
Thiel, Laurie  2 0:13:44
Broomfield, Harry  2 0:13:26
Farrell, Matthew  3 0:13:23
Cruz, Tony,  2 0:13:15
Ullmann, Lon  3 0:13:10
Ullman, Patricia  8 0:13:07
Weyhrawch, John  3 0:12:56
Johnson, Ivan  6 0:12:43
Kiriluk, Alan  5 0:12:38
Kochanski, Michael  3 0:12:35
Dudek, John  2 0:12:35
Dennis, Howard  2 0:12:32
Stine, Jeanne  11 0:12:30
Mr. Waller,  1 0:12:28
Dodoro, Donna  2 0:12:25
Dutko, Bob  2 0:11:59
Papadelis, Gust  3 0:11:46
Dugener, Matt  1 0:11:43
Lin, Paul  1 0:11:40
Moran, James  1 0:11:40
Gidel, Lori  1 0:11:33
Maiuri, Anna  4 0:11:32
Binder, Fred,  2 0:11:23
Resident- Senior Volleyball,  1 0:11:19
Jaffrey, Margaret  1 0:11:14
Whyrock, John  3 0:11:04
Bronzetti, Frank  1 0:11:00
Shucard, Sharon  3 0:10:47
Grigg, Charles  2 0:10:45
Essad, Ernest  1 0:10:42

Page 2 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Manzon, Alan  7 0:10:35
neighbor ,  6 0:10:23
Dennis, Nelson  1 0:10:17
Bernardi,  4 0:10:17
Thomas, Hugh  2 0:10:15
Barlow, Ed,  1 0:10:15
Kuppa, Padma  2 0:10:03
Fuller, Bob  3 0:09:59
lobbestael, Charles  2 0:09:56
Brown, J. Mark  3 0:09:56
,  10 0:09:54
Liss, Mark  2 0:09:52
Scott, Murray  3 0:09:41
Clarke, Jim  5 0:09:35
GLENN, GARY  2 0:09:33
Hughes  ,  3 0:09:29
Fuhrman, Daniel  1 0:09:28
Mills, Don  1 0:09:21
Kozlowski, Michael  5 0:09:21
Markoff, Mary  1 0:09:19
Slywka, Jerry  2 0:09:18
Goesslin, Robert,  1 0:09:17
Hall, Patrick  3 0:09:15
Reif, Wayne  2 0:09:10
Cicerone, Susan  1 0:09:05
Khan, Cynthia  2 0:09:03
Bliss, Nancy  5 0:09:02
Christiansen, Tom  1 0:09:01
Harrell, Barbara  4 0:09:01
Miller, Bob,  1 0:09:01
Zikakis, Jan  6 0:08:57
Laverdiere, Dave  2 0:08:53
Schafer, David  2 0:08:52
Christie, Kathy  1 0:08:49
Brooks, David  2 0:08:47
Troy Shareholders,  1 0:08:46
Siefkes, Don  1 0:08:43
Reed, Betty  3 0:08:42
McCauly, James  3 0:08:41
Prykucki, Steven c.  3 0:08:41
resident,  8 0:08:38
Harris, Neal  3 0:08:34
Dalton, John  2 0:08:26
Assoc Rep,  1 0:08:25
Peresman, Erica  2 0:08:24
Strobel, Kenneth  3 0:08:23
Stark, Yvonne  1 0:08:22
Gelement, James  4 0:08:19
Haddad, Tony  2 0:08:13
Jones, Hayes W.  2 0:08:11
Shires, Les  2 0:08:10
Bayliss, Kinette  2 0:08:09
Vleck, mark  4 0:08:08
schultz, Robert  4 0:08:06
Burton, Peter,  1 0:08:06
Jeffery, Margaret  1 0:08:05

Page 3 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Pelletier, William  2 0:08:00
Pallotta, Tony,  1 0:07:53
Weisgerber, Bill  1 0:07:51
Strat, Thomas  3 0:07:47
Mayernik, John  3 0:07:45
Wengrow, Irv  1 0:07:43
Marko, Clifford  1 0:07:43
Klaput, Kay  2 0:07:42
Starr, Aaron  3 0:07:41
Swanson, Lorie  1 0:07:35
Paluzzi, Joseph  2 0:07:34
DeFlorio, Victor  4 0:07:33
Carroll, David  1 0:07:32
Arkils, Ron & Richard  1 0:07:29
Hunt, Susan,  4 0:07:28
Buckert, John  2 0:07:26
Burt,  1 0:07:19
Marshall, Sheri  3 0:07:18
Sleutelberg, Arnold  3 0:07:18
Kher, Subhash  2 0:07:15
Showers, Celeste  1 0:07:02
Burke, Thomas  3 0:06:57
Sarsfield, Chris  1 0:06:56
McTeague, Jeanne  1 0:06:55
wells, Sesson  1 0:06:52
Lining, Thomas  3 0:06:52
Harrell, David  3 0:06:48
Retko, Edward  1 0:06:45
Simon, Larry  2 0:06:40
Duford, Kim  2 0:06:40
Timmins, John,  1 0:06:40
MacLeish, Dan  1 0:06:39
Krull, Dan  2 0:06:37
Allie, Rosalie  3 0:06:32
Langton, Charlie  2 0:06:28
Burns, Jack  1 0:06:23
Baxter, Mike  1 0:06:21
Abitheira, Gary  2 0:06:20
neighbor 2,  3 0:06:18
Christiansen, Kevin  2 0:06:18
Graham, Johnnie  2 0:06:14
Blose, Elton  3 0:06:14
Leonard, John  1 0:06:14
Manson, Alan,  3 0:06:09
Fleming, Wade  3 0:06:08
Parks, Wilburn  1 0:06:05
Ken Rodgers/Tom Anderson,  1 0:06:02
Jenkins, Mrs.  1 0:06:01
Piscopo, Joe  4 0:06:01
Arndt, Warren  1 0:06:01
Weisgerber, John (Marsha & James Muszynski 4 0:06:00
Jim Smerkfield,  1 0:06:00
LaFave, Julie  2 0:05:59
Nguyen, Thi  1 0:05:53
White, Barb  1 0:05:52
Kopkau, Gary  3 0:05:52

Page 4 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Allie, Shawn  1 0:05:50
Williams, Rachella  2 0:05:50
Kaufman, Barry  1 0:05:50
Wickersham, Geoff & Addy  1 0:05:49
Krause, Ken  1 0:05:49
Richart, Jerry  1 0:05:47
Peterson, Jan  1 0:05:46
Elston, David  1 0:05:40
Joseph, Brian  1 0:05:39
Resident - Golfview,  1 0:05:38
Pratt, Chris  4 0:05:36
Mills, John  1 0:05:31
Murray, Christine  2 0:05:31
McWalters, Edward  1 0:05:30
Ilges, Joyce  2 0:05:27
Councilwoman Schilling,  4 0:05:26
matiah, guss  1 0:05:26
Rivard, Stacy  1 0:05:26
Beaugrand, Bob  1 0:05:24
Everson, JoAnn  1 0:05:22
Mowen, Russ  2 0:05:21
Hodorek, Ellen  1 0:05:20
Harris, Shirley  2 0:05:20
Santangelo, Randell  1 0:05:18
Bason, Jane  1 0:05:14
Cleland, Dave  1 0:05:14
Comiskey, Ann  2 0:05:14
Aquino, Raymond  2 0:05:14
Nixon, Jacques  3 0:05:13
Gill, Benjamin  2 0:05:12
Howrylak, Frank J.  1 0:05:10
Farkland, Dick  1 0:05:10
Ffrrrancuck,  3 0:05:10
Beltramini, Robin,  8 0:05:09
Herbon, Tom  1 0:05:07
Beachemin, Greg  1 0:05:07
Clark, William  1 0:05:06
Palmer, Doug  1 0:05:06
Rolbelli, Nadine,  1 0:05:06
Zawiscak, John  2 0:05:05
Schenk, Donald  1 0:05:05
Kakish, Talal  1 0:05:04
Buscemi, Paul  1 0:05:04
Reschke, Ernest  1 0:05:02
Green, Walenda  2 0:05:00
Delong, David  1 0:04:59
Kelly, Bob  4 0:04:57
Rivetto, Larry  1 0:04:56
Gerych, Michael  1 0:04:55
Pretty, Keith  3 0:04:53
Schubring, Robert  3 0:04:53
Sinowsky, Dave,  1 0:04:53
straub, Frank  1 0:04:52
Pritzlaff, Mark  1 0:04:51
Schmidt, Gwen  1 0:04:50
Hakim, Tasneem  1 0:04:50

Page 5 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Davis, Robert  1 0:04:50
Bator, Gregory  1 0:04:49
Beltz, Richard  1 0:04:49
Moore, Michelle  1 0:04:49
Papazian, Mark  2 0:04:46
Morrow, Kevin,  1 0:04:45
sharp, john  1 0:04:44
McCrary, Dan  1 0:04:44
Hibbard, Fred  1 0:04:44
Brodbine, Anju  2 0:04:43
Alexander, L.D.  1 0:04:42
Music, Elizabeth  1 0:04:41
Neighbor accross Street,  1 0:04:41
Druger,  1 0:04:40
Howard, Keith  1 0:04:40
Cueter, Joe  2 0:04:39
Garrett , Sr,  2 0:04:39
Youngerman, Eileen,  1 0:04:38
Scott, Dorothy  3 0:04:37
Bisson, Jane  1 0:04:37
hughes,  2 0:04:37
Scislowicz, John  1 0:04:35
Snedden, Jackie  4 0:04:34
Harris, Chuch  1 0:04:34
McCaray, Betty  1 0:04:34
Kemet, Cindy  3 0:04:33
Carbone, Cindy  1 0:04:31
Scott, Mike  1 0:04:30
Kozlow, Mark  3 0:04:30
Hammond, John  1 0:04:30
Goldberg, Joel  1 0:04:30
White Chapel Atty,  1 0:04:29
Shucard, Stephen  1 0:04:27
Roger Kowalski,  1 0:04:26
Freel, Terry  3 0:04:25
Eagan, John  1 0:04:23
Raezler,,  1 0:04:23
Hamzot, Charles  5 0:04:22
stindt, john  1 0:04:22
Parke, Christine  1 0:04:22
First Baptist Church Paster,  1 0:04:20
Jarema, Andy  2 0:04:19
Harding, Pastor  1 0:04:19
Jarema, Karen  1 0:04:16
Neal, Wayne  1 0:04:15
Tardiff, Carol  1 0:04:15
Doyle, Deborah  1 0:04:15
Randell, Karl  1 0:04:15
Hendrickson, Rhonda,  1 0:04:14
Balagna, David  1 0:04:13
Burke, Jennifer  1 0:04:13
Doctor, John  1 0:04:12
Safsten, Gary  1 0:04:12
Dahlke, Wendy  1 0:04:11
Scheubring, Robert  2 0:04:09
Hessel, Albert,  2 0:04:09

Page 6 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Unknown-,  2 0:04:08
Frankel, Stuart  1 0:04:07
Shea, Kevin  2 0:04:07
Blackwood, Roger  3 0:04:05
Brubaker, Pam  3 0:04:03
Brooks, Amanda,  1 0:04:03
, Thomas  1 0:04:01
Upmeyer, Barbara  1 0:04:01
Hooton, George  1 0:04:01
Rhoads, Jo  1 0:03:59
Don Menke,  1 0:03:59
Sarotte , Sharon  2 0:03:57
Chebizah, Gopikrighna  1 0:03:56
Murfey, Dan  2 0:03:56
Gladstein, Steven  1 0:03:56
Beauchamp, Bob  2 0:03:55
Elias, Mike,  1 0:03:55
Grix, E. James  1 0:03:54
Developer,  1 0:03:52
Johnson, Shirley,  1 0:03:52
Detloff, Dorothy,  1 0:03:52
Gold, Gloria  3 0:03:51
Townsend, James  1 0:03:50
Watts, Garry  2 0:03:49
Robertson Bros.,  1 0:03:46
Zatina, Patricia  1 0:03:46
Zaleski, Andrew  1 0:03:46
Cameron, Thomas  1 0:03:46
Mares, Mike  1 0:03:45
Merrill, David  1 0:03:44
Hendrickson, Rhonda  2 0:03:44
Losey, Charlie  1 0:03:43
Dye, Jeff  2 0:03:43
un,  2 0:03:42
Smith, Gordon  1 0:03:42
Seigal, Arthur (Petitioner)  1 0:03:41
Breidenich, Andy  2 0:03:40
Pierce, Don  4 0:03:40
Kline, Timothy,  1 0:03:38
Shouhayib, Kamal,  2 0:03:37
Uhlman , Ron  1 0:03:36
Gary Peck,  1 0:03:35
Bruebaker, Michael  1 0:03:34
LeFave, David  1 0:03:33
Ritskey, Mr.  1 0:03:33
Arnie, Rabbi,  1 0:03:33
Short, Alexander,  1 0:03:30
Endorsky, John,  1 0:03:30
Mantay, Mark  2 0:03:30
Lamers, Duane,  2 0:03:30
unknown 1,  2 0:03:28
Billinger, John  1 0:03:28
Peck, Gary  1 0:03:27
Dixon, Merrill  2 0:03:25
York, Tom  1 0:03:25
Rihtarchik, Mickey  1 0:03:25

Page 7 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Darda, Bruce,  2 0:03:23
Irby, Connie  2 0:03:23
Painter, Patricia  2 0:03:22
Freda, Larry,  1 0:03:22
Toger, Mike  1 0:03:21
Stoller, Margie,  1 0:03:21
Dukes, Craig  1 0:03:20
Sellers, Leonard  1 0:03:20
Krasula, Jack  1 0:03:20
Erickson, Alan  1 0:03:19
Shashlo, Leonid  2 0:03:17
Puri, Lalitha  1 0:03:17
Bamford, Peter  1 0:03:16
Houghton, Tom  1 0:03:15
Jose, Lawrence  2 0:03:14
Sutherland, David  2 0:03:14
Walker, Marvin - Pastor,  1 0:03:13
Gerald Emmanual,  1 0:03:12
james, Karen  1 0:03:11
Machinski, Scott  1 0:03:11
Haddad, Joseph,  1 0:03:11
Harrisom, Michael  1 0:03:11
Kaszubski, Tom  1 0:03:10
Bank, Kenneth,  1 0:03:09
Vydale, Claude,  1 0:03:09
Berk, Bob  2 0:03:07
unknown Tellys,  1 0:03:04
Dietz, Kevin,  1 0:03:04
Gorchow, Margo  1 0:03:03
Stahl, Erin,  1 0:03:01
Laverdiere, Grace  3 0:02:59
Moran, John  2 0:02:58
Cicerone, Guy,  1 0:02:58
Gelement Jr, James  1 0:02:58
King, Kevin  3 0:02:57
Johnston, James  1 0:02:56
Rickie, Rod  1 0:02:56
Perring, Tom  1 0:02:55
Song, Howard  1 0:02:55
Blaszczak, Jeff  1 0:02:54
Carbone, John,  1 0:02:54
Laposke, Debbie,  1 0:02:54
Leto, Peter  1 0:02:53
Baker,Wayne,  1 0:02:53
Dambrosi, Tony  1 0:02:52
Tagle, John  1 0:02:52
Glaspie, Chris  1 0:02:51
Moffat, Lynn  1 0:02:51
McMullin, Tom  1 0:02:50
Wright, Wayne,  1 0:02:48
Williams, Robert  1 0:02:47
Maten, Michael  1 0:02:47
Laman, John  1 0:02:47
Akin, Doug  1 0:02:46
Gelement, Kathy  1 0:02:46
Dale, Curt,  1 0:02:46

Page 8 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Lakin, Nancy  1 0:02:46
Mike Allyse,  1 0:02:46
, Tony  1 0:02:44
Burke, Matthew  2 0:02:43
Darling, Tom,  1 0:02:42
Bean, Michael  1 0:02:41
Waltereit, Linda  1 0:02:41
Glysson, Stephanie  1 0:02:40
p,  2 0:02:40
Les, Robert  1 0:02:39
Craig, John,  1 0:02:38
Ode, Christine  1 0:02:37
Poupard, Marge  1 0:02:37
Cox, Mina  5 0:02:37
Zelda, Brenda  2 0:02:36
Hundich, Steven,  1 0:02:36
Millichamp, Pauline  2 0:02:35
VanderVeen, David, David  1 0:02:34
Youngman, Terrill  1 0:02:34
Zak,  1 0:02:33
Friesen, Paul  4 0:02:32
Slusser, John  3 0:02:32
Eaton, Michele  1 0:02:32
BouHarb, Jamil  1 0:02:31
Mansour, Connie  1 0:02:31
Cueter, George,  1 0:02:31
Jordan, Shirley  2 0:02:31
Spain, John  1 0:02:30
Miller, Paul  1 0:02:29
Brady Richard,  1 0:02:29
Faubert, Susan  1 0:02:29
Calabro, Charlene  4 0:02:28
Powell, David,  1 0:02:28
West, Eugene  2 0:02:28
Cruz, Tony  1 0:02:27
McCown, Janice  1 0:02:26
castiglione, Angelo S  2 0:02:26
Cadovich, Joe  1 0:02:25
Honhart, Keith,  1 0:02:25
Grinnel, Eric  2 0:02:24
Northey, Sandra  2 0:02:24
Champine, Cal  3 0:02:24
Butler, MaryAnn,  1 0:02:24
Alati, Diane  1 0:02:21
Clark, Harold  1 0:02:21
Crum, Ken  1 0:02:21
White, Edward  1 0:02:21
Crusse, Karen  3 0:02:20
Bradley, Michael  1 0:02:19
Hernandez, Jay  1 0:02:19
Kaltounis, Rusty,  1 0:02:19
McMillian, Tim,  1 0:02:19
Radcliff, Tina,  1 0:02:19
Owczarzak mark , Mark  1 0:02:18
Walters, June  1 0:02:17
Haddad,  1 0:02:16

Page 9 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Gatloff, Dorothy  1 0:02:15
randall, doreen  3 0:02:15
Clark, Sandra  1 0:02:15
Bach, Gerald,  1 0:02:13
Oneill, Paul  1 0:02:13
Petitioner's Wife,  1 0:02:13
Eckles, Laura,  1 0:02:12
Phillips, Susan  1 0:02:11
House, Dori,  1 0:02:11
Lessenthien, Lionel  1 0:02:10
Bongiovanni, Kristin  1 0:02:10
Chhina, Avtar  1 0:02:10
pet,  4 0:02:09
Mondro, Richard  1 0:02:09
Kenny Matti,  1 0:02:09
Rayfield, Bob  1 0:02:08
Dorrety, Bill  1 0:02:07
Akins, Max  1 0:02:07
Martin, Christopher,  1 0:02:07
Longe, Lois E.  1 0:02:06
Hendrickson, Rob  2 0:02:06
Adams, Mark  1 0:02:06
Walker, Scott  1 0:02:05
Gilbert,  1 0:02:04
Childs, Curtis  3 0:02:04
Richardson , Mike  1 0:02:04
Schmidt, William  1 0:02:01
Paik, Eugene  2 0:02:01
Hendrickson, Bob,  1 0:02:01
Patricia Dudek,  1 0:02:00
Caponigro, John,  1 0:01:59
Kramer, Elliot  1 0:01:58
High, Lisa - Petitioner,  1 0:01:58
yurk, Gerald  2 0:01:56
Long, James  1 0:01:56
Bernard,  1 0:01:55
Gray, Walter  1 0:01:54
Bartnik, Michael  1 0:01:54
Allen, Steve,  1 0:01:54
Frost, Adam  1 0:01:53
Vleck, Jennifer  1 0:01:53
Christensen, Tom  2 0:01:52
Repen, Edward  3 0:01:52
Saga, Al  1 0:01:51
Unknown 2,  2 0:01:51
Harol, Barbara,  1 0:01:51
Bakou, Jimmy  1 0:01:50
Commersara,  1 0:01:49
Ball, Kevin  1 0:01:49
Watson, Tom  1 0:01:49
Dippel, Daniel  1 0:01:49
House, Dora  1 0:01:48
, Robert  1 0:01:48
rusk,  1 0:01:48
Monchnik, Scott  1 0:01:47
Westrick, Pat  1 0:01:47

Page 10 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Burtin, Leonard,  1 0:01:47
Clark, Dewey  1 0:01:46
Wiles, Mr.,  1 0:01:46
Burdilett, Joanne  1 0:01:45
Nikopolitis, George  1 0:01:45
Gieger, Lynn,  1 0:01:45
unknown, Lee  1 0:01:44
Bates, Ryan,  1 0:01:44
Eccleston, John  2 0:01:44
Carey-Barr, Ama  1 0:01:44
, Frank  1 0:01:43
Spitzer, Richard  1 0:01:43
Komasara, Chris  1 0:01:43
Williams, Carla  1 0:01:42
len,  1 0:01:42
Case, Karolyn  1 0:01:42
Kaszubski, Cheryl  1 0:01:41
Malla, Joseph  1 0:01:41
Malaga, Kelly  1 0:01:41
Weber, Michelle,  1 0:01:40
Schulz, Jerry  1 0:01:40
Kelly, Ken  1 0:01:40
Cole, Korinna  1 0:01:39
Baier, Jim  4 0:01:39
Wise, Greg  1 0:01:38
Ketel, William  2 0:01:38
Makdisi, Raad  1 0:01:38
Kaltsum, Rusty  2 0:01:37
Petrovich, Mary  1 0:01:37
Corneil, Jim,  1 0:01:37
unknown Marvel Drive Resident,  1 0:01:36
Case, Nathan,  1 0:01:36
Lauer, Jeff  2 0:01:36
Christenson, Tom  1 0:01:36
Dodge, Paul  1 0:01:35
Powell, Tom  1 0:01:35
Corey, John,  1 0:01:35
Halsey, Ted  1 0:01:35
Childs, Nicole,  2 0:01:35
Kim, Hee  1 0:01:35
developer F-7,  1 0:01:34
neighbor,  1 0:01:33
Knollenberg, Marty  2 0:01:32
King, Priscilla  2 0:01:32
Terebus, Jim  1 0:01:31
Robert Kohl,  1 0:01:31
Childers, Jeffrey,  1 0:01:31
Aliah, Jamal  2 0:01:30
Erscher, Erik  1 0:01:30
Kranz, Jesse  1 0:01:30
Keihn, Nancy  1 0:01:30
Mitchell, Jamie  1 0:01:30
Kinaya, Samir  1 0:01:30
Mietkowski, Mike  1 0:01:29
Zinchook, Dennis  1 0:01:29
Nurani, Vijay  2 0:01:29

Page 11 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Kocher, Frank  1 0:01:28
Zook, R  1 0:01:28
Gerber, Ralph  1 0:01:28
Jezierski, Jeannine  1 0:01:28
Nelson,Bill,  1 0:01:28
Briscoe, Alan,  3 0:01:28
Eckardt, Josef  1 0:01:28
Chessin, Wendy  1 0:01:27
Mancini, Franco  3 0:01:27
Bird, Bruce  1 0:01:27
Schoenfelt, Mary  1 0:01:27
FREDERICK, BRAD  2 0:01:27
Semany, Joe  1 0:01:26
Macomb, Bob  1 0:01:26
Jump, Pat  1 0:01:26
Leonard, Kris  1 0:01:26
VanRosen, Edward,  1 0:01:26
carlin, John  1 0:01:25
nixon, jack  2 0:01:24
Haddad, Jacques  3 0:01:24
Haynes, Nancy  2 0:01:24
Szerlag, John,  1 0:01:24
Mellen, Stephanie  1 0:01:24
Clippert, Tom  1 0:01:23
Allemon, Henry  1 0:01:22
Buckly, David  1 0:01:22
Lotte, Diane  1 0:01:21
Sable, Craig  1 0:01:21
Rouse, Charles,  1 0:01:21
Heichel, Pam  1 0:01:20
LOBBESTAEL, Audrey  1 0:01:20
Husack, Ronald  1 0:01:20
John, Hupman  1 0:01:19
Flint, Virginia,  3 0:01:18
Trent, Tom  1 0:01:17
Burny, Norma  1 0:01:17
MacIvich, Gary,  1 0:01:17
Moturi, Anu  1 0:01:17
Bochenek, Patricia  1 0:01:17
Gregorius, Sue  1 0:01:17
Herzog, Catherine  1 0:01:17
Singh, Arvinder  1 0:01:16
Pollack, Jeff  2 0:01:16
Wells, Roberta  1 0:01:15
Kelly, Carol  1 0:01:15
Culpepper, Mark  1 0:01:14
Shalla, Ben  1 0:01:14
Fedor, Ruth  1 0:01:14
Neimer, Larry,  1 0:01:14
, Christopher  1 0:01:13
Swit, Todd  2 0:01:12
Hubucki, Robert,  2 0:01:12
Bodek, Sharon  1 0:01:11
Kochajda,victor,  1 0:01:11
John Lovejoy,  1 0:01:11
Phillips, Ron  2 0:01:11

Page 12 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Jackson, Bob  3 0:01:10
Craig, Cordell  1 0:01:10
Jeffrey, Margaret  1 0:01:10
Reneaud, Richard  1 0:01:10
VandenBranden, Mark  2 0:01:09
Pomponi, Robert  1 0:01:09
Palmer, Denise  1 0:01:09
Walsh, Paul,  1 0:01:09
Andressis, Jerry  1 0:01:08
Terio, Sarah  1 0:01:08
Shoffner, Larry  1 0:01:07
Resident Raintree,  1 0:01:07
, Pamela  1 0:01:07
Esquivel, Fred  1 0:01:06
Wanecek, Jason Karl  1 0:01:05
Kennedy, John  1 0:01:05
Fritz, Mark,  1 0:01:05
Messara, Christopher,  1 0:01:05
schoffner, Lawrence  1 0:01:04
Bhatt, Bharati  1 0:01:04
Uhlman, Patricia  2 0:01:04
Flores, Milagros  1 0:01:03
, Gina  1 0:01:02
Zemmer, John  1 0:01:01
, Erin  1 0:01:00
Cardon, Nancy,  1 0:01:00
Dawson, Barbara  1 0:01:00
Robinson, Nate,  1 0:01:00
Patton,, Larry  3 0:01:00
Decker, James  1 0:00:59
Kulish, Carol  1 0:00:59
Jonas, Jim  1 0:00:59
McCormick, Robert  1 0:00:59
McClure, Thomas  1 0:00:58
Brown,  1 0:00:58
Barron, Jeff,  1 0:00:58
Johnstone, Shannon  1 0:00:57
Gerard, Steven  1 0:00:57
Haase, Greg  1 0:00:56
Alexandria, Denise  1 0:00:55
Fitzgerald, Philip  2 0:00:55
Reison, Paul,  1 0:00:55
Wilcox, Milt  2 0:00:55
Seguin, Ray  1 0:00:54
Nowicki, Sandra  1 0:00:53
Shaffer, Sharon,  1 0:00:53
Slawinski, Loretta  1 0:00:53
Owen, Madelon  1 0:00:52
ROBINSON, JOAN  2 0:00:52
Edith Connolly,  1 0:00:52
Francuck, Millie  1 0:00:52
Wu, Caroline  1 0:00:52
Outland, Bob,  1 0:00:52
Ross, Ron  1 0:00:51
Smith, Shirley  2 0:00:51
Lewis, Dan  1 0:00:49

Page 13 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Timban, Demetrio & Teresita  1 0:00:49
Kalinowski, Andrew  1 0:00:49
Bradley, Jacquelyn  1 0:00:49
Gant, Roy,  1 0:00:49
neigh,  1 0:00:48
Bloom, Jerry,  1 0:00:48
Piscopo, Joe,  1 0:00:48
parks, David  2 0:00:47
Robosan-Burt, Susan  1 0:00:47
Desai, Dilip  1 0:00:46
Schulbeck, Ann  1 0:00:46
Auch, Michael  1 0:00:46
Snooks, Doug  1 0:00:46
Beck, William,  1 0:00:46
Todek, Trish  1 0:00:45
Barbaet, Pastor Tom  2 0:00:45
Clark, Paul  1 0:00:45
Brown Rex,  1 0:00:45
Bloom,  1 0:00:44
Lambert, David  3 0:00:44
Lefert, Irma  1 0:00:44
, mark  1 0:00:43
Anthony,  1 0:00:43
Reison, Kathy,  1 0:00:42
Leslie, Edward  1 0:00:41
TBB of Troy Representative,  1 0:00:41
Johimsthal, James  2 0:00:41
Melki, Sandy  1 0:00:40
McNaughton, William,  1 0:00:40
Manzeck, Lila,  1 0:00:40
Yu, Stephanie  1 0:00:39
Maleszyk, Mariette  2 0:00:39
Jewell, Alice,  1 0:00:38
Ray, Matt  1 0:00:37
Carter, Mrs.,  1 0:00:37
Don Petrulous,  1 0:00:37
Alsip, Mary Ann  1 0:00:36
Webb, Tom  1 0:00:36
Campbell, Gerald  3 0:00:36
Zick, Bruce  1 0:00:36
Cracchido, Joe  1 0:00:35
DiCosmo, Dan  2 0:00:35
Marve,  1 0:00:34
Pary, Mr.,  1 0:00:34
Neighbor, Carlton Park Subdivision,  1 0:00:34
Leone, Thomas  1 0:00:33
Helmer, Dick  1 0:00:32
Meyers, Jack  1 0:00:32
Beshara, Mary  1 0:00:31
Milz, Vera  1 0:00:31
Darda,  1 0:00:31
Pickett, Dale  1 0:00:30
Ross, Dorothy  1 0:00:30
Williams, Bob  1 0:00:29
Wittier, Bill  1 0:00:28
Lamazne, David,  1 0:00:28

Page 14 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Sobczak, Edward  1 0:00:28
Rickie, Ben  1 0:00:27
Reese, Del  1 0:00:27
woods, Tom  1 0:00:27
Morehouse, Deanna,  1 0:00:27
Bultynck, Heather  1 0:00:26
Rauhawt, Richard  1 0:00:24
Herman, Tim  1 0:00:24
Ryan, Roland  1 0:00:23
Dipiazza, Salvatore  1 0:00:23
Husaynu, Ryan  1 0:00:23
unknown 4,  1 0:00:23
, charlene  1 0:00:22
Mary,  1 0:00:22
McCue, Bill  1 0:00:22
Stubinski,  1 0:00:22
Deathos, Paul  1 0:00:22
, Al  1 0:00:21
Dixon, Bob  1 0:00:21
Lamb,  1 0:00:20
unknown Peacock,  1 0:00:20
Anderson, Tom  1 0:00:20
Harding, Barbara  1 0:00:19
Yeskey, Greta  1 0:00:19
Storrs, Walt,  1 0:00:19
Pollak Jeff,  1 0:00:19
DeArment, Therese  1 0:00:18
King, Elerious  1 0:00:18
Mannerin, Peter  1 0:00:17
Michael, Johnson  1 0:00:17
Dryburn, Ron  1 0:00:16
Developer F-4,  1 0:00:16
Berar, James,  1 0:00:16
Schafer, Sharon  2 0:00:16
Rondo, Denise  1 0:00:14
Resky, Donald,  1 0:00:14
Balleck, Jim  2 0:00:11
Stutzman, Wayne  1 0:00:09
Foot, Tom 5685 Sussex Ct,  1 0:00:08
Bhatt, Pankaj  1 0:00:08
johnann, uta  1 0:00:07
Martin, Ross  1 0:00:05
Blackwell, Stan  1 0:00:05
Ellison, Sandy  1 0:00:05
Khan, Fazal  1 0:00:05
Hunter, Dan  2 0:00:05
Burkart, Gregory  2 0:00:05
Schute, George  1 0:00:04
Clark, MaryAnn  1 0:00:04
Abitheir, Gary  3 0:00:04
unknown 3,  1 0:00:04
McGrail, Bill  1 0:00:03
Ford, Barbara  1 0:00:03
Pincince, Craig  1 0:00:03
Chontos, Troy  1 0:00:03
Mazin Nafsu,  2 0:00:03

Page 15 of 16



Speaker Name Number of Items Total Speaking Time (hh:mm:ss)

City Council Meeting Speakers
August 2001 - January 2006

Moser, Bill,  1 0:00:03
Stevens, John  1 0:00:02
Wagner, Ray  1 0:00:02
Easterbrook, David  2 0:00:02
Scislowicz, Betsy  1 0:00:02
Pappageorge, RepresentativeDarta  2 0:00:02
Campbell, Bob  1 0:00:02
Chen, Marco,  1 0:00:02
Ziomek, Kim  1 0:00:02
Warner, Robert  2 0:00:02
Smiertka, Jim  1 0:00:02
Nicley, Art  1 0:00:01
Frederick, Brad,  2 0:00:01
Madaus, Jim  1 0:00:01
Doeren Representative,  1 0:00:01

130:35:40

Page 16 of 16



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a

























campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



















































campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



























































Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
October 13, 2005 at the Troy Community Center, room 503.  Chairwoman, Kathleen Fejes 
called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Kathleen Fejes, member 
   Gary Hauff, member  Brad Henson, member 
   Tom, Krent, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
   Jan Zikakis, member  Jeff Biegler, staff 
   Stuart Alderman, staff  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
    
Absent:  Tod Gazetti, Rusty Kaltsounis, Meaghan Kovacs, and Stuart Redpath.   
 
Visitors:   
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 016 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from May 12, 2005 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Ad Hoc Committee - Merrill Dixon and Rusty Kaltsounis have volunteered to be on a 
committee that will review small parcels that could be used as “pocket parks.”  They will review 
options for use and funding for maintenance then report back to the City Council on their 
recommendations Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and then passed on to City Council. 
 
B.  Elections -  
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 017 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, that Tom Krent is elected chairman beginning with the November meeting.   
 
Ayes:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 10 - 018 
Moved by Fejes 
Seconded by Krent 
 
RESOLVED, that Jan Zikakis is elected vice-chairperson beginning with the November meeting.   
 
Ayes:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
C.  Aquatic Center Admission Report - Admissions at the Aquatic Center this season were 
higher compared to last season.  This is likely due to the warmer weather this summer.  The 
early bird pass rates will be offered again this December to encourage pass sales.   
 
D.  Park Board Meetings/Time - There is a schedule conflict with upcoming Park Board 
meetings and Futures meetings.  Discussion followed regarding changing the time and days of 
the Park Board meetings.  It was agreed that November’s meeting would be on Wednesday, 
November 9, 2005 at 7:30 p.m.  Future Park Board meetings that need to be changed will be 
discussed at that time.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Master Plan - Surveys were sent to Troy residents and businesses for input on what they 
would like to see in the parks.  The surveys were mailed to residents in every section of the city.  
When the survey results are compiled, we will have useful information on what is 
wanted/needed in our parks.   
 
B.  Shuffleboard/Bocce - Staff is currently developing specs for two bocce courts and two 
shuffleboard courts.  If approved by City Council, development will begin this spring on the west 
side of the Community Center.   
 
Member Comments - Tom Krent commented on how well the landscaping along the major 
roads and medians of Troy, designed by Ron Hynd, looked this past summer.  He took pictures 
of the landscaping and passed them around for the Park Board to see.   
 
Jan Zikakis asked if the Evening Primrose Club could help plant bulbs and hostas in the new 
Heritage Park.  This gardening club will volunteer their time to beautify this park for the residents 
of Troy.   
 
Staff Reports 
A.  Directors Report - Ash tree removal from each section of the city is done with the exception 
of the northwest quadrant of the city.  We are replacing 800 trees this fall and 2500 in the spring, 
which will be 15 to 20 percent of the total trees removed.  Replacement will be slower than the 
removal.   
 
The Futures Committee is reviewing lifestyle trends and the activities we offer.  Some things to 
consider in Parks and Recreation:  

 Recreational activities will need to change as the community ages and we meet 
demands for seniors in the types of activities and programs we offer.   

 The community will want to attract and keep young, single working people in the city 
and this department will play an important role by offering diverse cultural and 
outcome based activities.   

 
B.  Recreation Report - The Doggy Water Extravaganza held after the Labor Day holiday was a 
huge success.  More than 160 dogs and their owners participated in this activity.   
 
During the week of annual maintenance, the fitness area underwent a deep cleaning.  Thirteen 
new treadmills were purchased to replace worn ones.   
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                   October 13, 2005 
The winter bulletin will be mailed next month and winter registration will begin at the end of 
November.   
 
Danielle Cooper, an 11-year-old Troy resident, won the PPK competition and will be going to the 
state competition at Ford Field on December 4th.   
 
C.  Parks Report - The skate park has a new half-pipe.  This was purchased with the $20,000  
K-mart donation, $14,000 raised by residents, and the balance from the department budget.   
 
Ash tree removal is ahead of schedule.  Over the past two years the contractor J. H. Hart has 
removed 7200 trees and staff has removed 6800 trees.  There are only four sections in the 
northwest quadrant of the city remaining for ash tree removal.   
 
A new 16 foot wide turf mower has been purchased to facilitate faster mowing of the larger 
parcels of the city.   
 
Correspondence 
The Senior Advisory Committee wrote a letter to City Council regarding bringing food to the 
Community Center for non-profit groups.  Ms. Anderson explained that the City is contractually 
bound to not allow food except in the rooms where it was pre-agreed.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2005 - 019 
Moved by Dixon 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members are excused.   
 
Ayes:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, December 20, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Wayne Wright (arrived at 7:35 P.M.) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs and Mr. Maxwell from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Courtney 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS AND MR. MAXWELL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 15, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 15, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Hutson, Courtney, Fejes 
Absent: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH #5 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #4 and  #5 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEMS #4 AND #5 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  COMMUNITY BOWLING CENTERS, 1950 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high earth berm in lieu of the 6’ 
high masonry-screening wall required at the west property line, which abuts residential 
zoning. 
 
MOVED, to grant Community Bowling Centers, 1950 E. Square Lake, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high earth berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-
screening wall required at the west property line which abuts residential zoning. 
 

• The adjacent property is used for a purpose other than a single-family residence. 
• We have no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. LUCY CROATIAN CATHOLIC CHURCH, 
200 E. WATTLES, for renewal of relief of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall 
along the east and west sides of off-street parking where this property abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Lucy Croatian Catholic Church, 200 E. Wattles, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along the east and 
west sides of their off-street parking. 
 

• The adjacent property is used for a purpose other than a single-family residence. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  TROY CHRISTIAN CHAPEL, 400 E. LONG 
LAKE, for renewal of relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the 
required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west 
property lines that abut residential zoning. 
 
Petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by this Board, since 1986, for 
relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west property lines that abut 
residential zoning.  This relief was originally granted based on the fact that the abutting 
neighbors requested the berm and fence in lieu of the required masonry wall.  This item 
last appeared before this Board at the meeting of December 2002 and was granted a 
three (3) year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Troy Christian Chapel, 400 E. Long Lake, for 
renewal of relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” 
high masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west property lines that 
abut residential zoning until the meeting of January 17, 2006. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to publish a Public Hearing to 
consider the possibility of making this a permanent variance. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 17, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  JLJ INVESTMENTS, LLC, 4048-4060 
ROCHESTER ROAD, for an interpretation, per Section 43.75.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, that a facility that provides for the sales, rental, and service of musical 
instruments along with music lessons is a permitted use in the B-1 (Local Business) 
Zoning District. 
 
The Building Department is in receipt of a letter from the Petitioner asking that this item 
be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of JLJ Investments, LLC, 4048-4060 
Rochester Road for an interpretation per Section 43.75.00 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL REQUEST APPROVED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LAHKMAN AL-HAKIM, 1553 E. MAPLE, 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new hotel on a B-3 
zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a 
minimum 3 acre parcel; and, also to have the “tower” portion of the building 52’-6” high, 
where Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings to no more than 40’. 
 
The petitioner asked that this item be moved to the end of the agenda to allow the 
opportunity for their architect to be present.  Mr. Fejes moved this request to Item #11. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHRISTOPHER ENRIGHT ARCHITECTS, 1600 
WEST MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing building.  The site plan 
submitted indicates that there is not a sidewalk provided along the northwest and a 
portion of the west side of the building.  Section 39.70.03 requires that a 5’ wide 
sidewalk be provided between the building face and a vehicular use area (parking or 
drive); and in addition, Section 40.25.03 requires a minimum 24’ wide, two-way 
driveway width.  The site plan submitted indicates that a portion of the drive adjacent to 
the boiler room will only be 20’ in width.       
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval to alter an existing 
building.  This building, although originally designed and constructed as an industrial 
building, has recently, at the petitioner’s request, been rezoned to the B-3 (General 
Business) Zoning District.  Section 39.70.03 requires that a 5’ wide sidewalk be 
provided between the building face and a vehicular use area (parking or drive).  No 
such sidewalk is provided along the northwest and a portion of the west side of the 
building.  In addition, Section 40.25.03 requires a minimum 24’ wide, two-way driveway 
width.  The site plan submitted indicates that the portion of the drive adjacent to the 
boiler room will only be 20’ in width.       
 
Mr. Courtney asked if pavement was in the area where the sidewalks were to be 
eliminated.  Mr. Stimac said that there is pavement along the bump out of the building, 
and also around a portion of the northwest section of the building.  The rest of this area 
will be landscaping in order for them to meet the minimum landscape area 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Enright stated that this is an existing building that was used as a manufacturing 
facility.  His client wants to use the existing factory, warehouse space as a gymnastic 
studio and the front of the building would be available for lease.  At the moment they do 
not have any tenants with a signed contract to lease this space.  They plan to remove a 
portion of the northeast side of the building and also plan to fill in an existing truck well.  
The rest of the lot will be striped for parking spaces.  Due to the fact that this area has  
moved from the Industrial Zoning District to the Business Zoning District  they wanted to 
limit the number of variances that would be required and they wanted to make sure that 
the area met the landscaping requirements.  By eliminating the sidewalk on the 
northwest portion of the building they will save approximately (thirteen) parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Enright informed the Board that the “bump out” indicated on the building is currently 
the machinery area housing a boiler which heats the front portion of the building as well 
as the water meter and water service and there and an air handling unit.  They were 
hoping to be able to maintain this portion of the building as is.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many parking spaces are required and how many are present 
on the site.  Mr. Enright said that there are 73 parking spaces shown on the proposed 
plan and 73 parking spaces is the required number of parking spaces. 
 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how tight the driveway is compared to the size of a normal drive.  
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner’s plans indicate that the proposed driveway 
would be 19.11’ wide and normally a two-way driveway with adjacent parking is 24’.  Mr. 
Courtney asked how wide a normal residential street is.  Mr. Stimac said that it is 26’ of 
pavement, but includes one lane of parallel parking.   
 
Mr. Enright also said that this is an existing condition, and they are hoping to be able to 
maintain that condition.  Mr. Courtney said that although it is an existing condition, the 
petitioner is hoping to create more traffic that could cause problems down the road. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what types of businesses are allowed in this area.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that B-3 Zoning allows for any type of retail business, in addition, you can 
have many types of automotive retail stores, such as tire stores.  Mr. Fejes then asked 
how large trucks would access this lot.  Mr. Stimac said that there is access from both 
Maple and Blaney. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked about the “bump out” in this building and asked if a variance was 
required to allow them to use this area as an entrance and egress.  Mr. Stimac said that 
he had done extensive research and the building pre-dates most of our records.  
Although this is considered a non-conforming building, he was unable to find any 
previous site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he is leery in granting a variance for this width in an area that will 
have retail businesses.  He did not have a problem with granting a variance for the 
elimination of the sidewalk.    
 
Mr. Hutson agreed with Mr. Courtney and stated that he did not have a problem with the 
elimination of the sidewalk, however, he is also concerned about increased traffic in this 
area, especially with parents picking up and dropping off children for the gymnastic 
center.  Mr. Hutson asked if a semi truck would be able to get through this area.  Mr. 
Enright said that it is wide enough for a truck to get through this area.  Mr. Enright also 
said that it is his understanding that all the deliveries will be coming in off of Blaney. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how the building was used in the past and Mr. Enright stated that he 
did not know because when he came to this site, the building was vacant.  Mr. Enright 
also said that he thought the main entrance was proposed to be from Blaney.  Mr. Fejes 
asked what they would do if the variance was not granted for the driveway width.  Mr. 
Enright said he was not certain but one option was to remove the parking spaces in the  
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
front of the building.  Mr. Enright also said that it would not be an easy option to 
eliminate the “bump out” due to the fact that it houses the mechanical room.  Mr. Fejes  
said that he thought Mr. Enright might like to consider asking for a postponement for the 
driveway width as it takes four members to grant a variance. 
 
Mr. Enright asked if they could still submit a site plan approval if the request for 
driveway width was postponed.  Mr. Stimac said that the Planning Commission can 
consider reduced parking spaces depending on the use of the property.  The petitioner 
has submitted a request to consider as part of their request for site approval, a 
reduction in the number of required parking spaces.  Mr. Stimac went on to say that as 
he sees it there are two (2) alternatives available to the petitioner: One is to eliminate 
that portion of the building that protrudes or, two, is to eliminate parking spaces adjacent 
to that portion of the building and meet the driveway width.  It would eliminate between 
two and five parking spaces in that area. It would then be up to the Planning 
Commission to consider the further reduced parking as part of this request. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Planning Commission has approved the reduced parking and 
Mr. Stimac said that it has not gone before the Planning Commission at this time.  Mr. 
Fejes then asked who would handle the request for a parking variance and Mr. Stimac 
said that if a parking variance was required it would have to go before City Council. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Christopher Enright Architects, 1600 W. Maple, for 
relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing building, which will result in the elimination of 
a sidewalk along the northwest and a portion of the west side of the building. 
 

• A sidewalk would serve no purpose at this location. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR THE SIDEWALK CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Christopher Enright Architects, 1600 W. Maple for 
relief of the Ordinance to have a two-way driveway with a width of 19.11’, where Section 
40.25.03 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 24’ wide two-way driveway width until 
the meeting of January 17, 2006. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present his site plan to the Planning 
Commission showing a reduction in parking spaces. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL JANUARY 17, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PIERRE HARIK, 690 SYLVANWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District.       
 
Mr. Pierre Harik was present and asked that this item be postponed to allow the 
opportunity for a full Board. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if anyone in the room wished to speak on this item before it was 
postponed, but no one present wished to be heard. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Pierre Harik, 690 Sylvanwood, for relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District until the meeting of January 17, 2006.       

 
• At the request of the petitioner. 
• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF JANUARY 17, 2006 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WILLIAM NICHOLS, 1080 MINNESOTA, to 
maintain a shed, constructed without first obtaining the necessary Building Permit, in the 
front yard setback along Wisconsin.  Section 40.56.03 of the Ordinance prohibits the 
placement of an accessory building in the front yard.      
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a shed constructed in the front yard setback along Wisconsin.  This lot is a double front 
corner lot.  As such, it has a front yard setback along both Minnesota and Wisconsin.  The 
site plan submitted indicates that a shed has been constructed without first obtaining the  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
necessary Building Permit, in the required front yard setback, 8 feet from the property line 
along Wisconsin.  Section 40.56.03 of the Ordinance prohibits the placement of an 
accessory building in a front yard.      
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the location of this shed would comply if this lot was not a corner lot.  
Mr. Stimac said that it would meet the requirements of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Nichols was present and stated that they were trying to look ahead when planning 
the location for this shed.  They like the neighborhood they are living in, however, their 
home does not have a basement, and they have three children and have run out of 
room.  They are planning to have their lot split and therefore, he does not feel he can 
place the shed at the rear of the lot.  Mr. Nicholas went on to say that they had received 
a variance to put up the privacy fence and did not know any other variances would be 
required.  Mr. Nichols said that the structure is about 75% complete including the rat 
wall and it would be very difficult to move it to another location. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked how large Mr. Nichols home was and Mr. Nichols stated that it was 
approximately 1900 square feet and had a two-car attached garage.   
 
Mr. Wright stated that the Board needs to find a hardship that runs with the land and he 
believes that the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship.  Mr. Wright also stated that 
he thought this shed could be moved farther south on the property.  Mr. Nichols said 
that there are a 40-year-old trees in the area as well as the air conditioning unit and it 
would be difficult to move these items.  Mr. Wright said that he still did not see a 
hardship that ran with the land.  Mr. Nichols said that if they put it behind the deck they 
would have to move 1-2 trees and it would be very costly.  Mr. Wright said that financial 
considerations cannot be considered a hardship and perhaps this shed could be 
downsized and fit between the trees.   Mr. Nichols stated that taking in the split of the lot 
and a new deck there is no room to place a decent size shed.  Mr. Wright said that the 
future property split is a financial hardship not a hardship that runs with the land.   
 
Ms. Gies asked when the petitioner was planning to attempt to split this lot.  Mr. Nichols 
stated that he has a deposit down on a surveyor to come out and survey the property to 
request a split.  They are trying to look down the road and after the property is split plan 
to build a new home at the back of the lot.  Mr. Nichols also said that they need the 
space for storage and were just trying to get by for the next four years until they can 
accomplish the lot split and construction of a new home. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked how long it would take to put in for a lot split.  Mr. Nichols said that 
they are just waiting for the surveyor to come out and then they will get the request 
underway.  Mr. Hutson then asked if he could place this structure on the back half of the 
lot once the property was split.  Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department 
could not issue a permit for an accessory structure to be the only building on a lot. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he felt if a lot split occurred it may create more of a hardship with 
the land and suggested postponing this request for a couple of months until this occurs. 
 
Mr. Wright said that even with a lot split there would still be a shed sitting in the front 
yard setback.  Mr. Courtney said that he thought this would be a hardship because it 
would create a smaller lot with two front setbacks. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Pierre Harik asked if the Board could grant a temporary variance for the location of 
this shed.  Mr. Fejes said that the Board could not grant a temporary variance for this 
type of request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Ms. Nichols said that once they got the variance for the privacy fence they felt this area 
became their back yard and did not believe the shed would be visible to traffic driving 
by. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of William Nichols, 1080 Minnesota, to maintain a 
shed, constructed without first obtaining the necessary Building Permit, in the front yard 
setback along Wisconsin until the meeting of February 21, 2006. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to obtain a lot split on this property. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL FEBRUARY 21, 2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 (ITEM #7) -  – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LAHKMAN AL-HAKIM, 1553 E. 
MAPLE, (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new hotel 
on a B-3 zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 
requires a minimum 3 acre parcel; and, also to have the “tower” portion of the building 
52’-6” high, where Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings to no more than 40’. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new hotel.  The property in question is located in the B-3 (General Business) Zoning 
District.  Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a minimum 3 acre parcel for hotels in 
the B-3 Zoning District.  This parcel is only 2.5 acres in size. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.06 limits the height of buildings in the B-3 District to no more 
than 40’ in height.  The “tower” portion of the building is 51’-6” tall as measured by the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Tarek Zoabi from Parkside Construction was present and stated that they want to 
develop this property into a three-story hotel.  The property backs up to I-75 and is 
surrounded by Commercial and Industrial property, the offices are closed by 5:00 or 
6:00 P.M., and therefore parking is not a problem.  Weekends would be the busiest 
times, he believes the configuration, and location of the property creates a unique 
hardship.  There is a lot of landscaping and trees along both I-75 and Maple Road.  The 
nearest neighbor would be approximately 200’ away from the parking lot.  The height of 
the tower is basically to get exposure from I-75.  They are hoping to put in a Holiday Inn 
Express and believe this would benefit the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what the height variance was and Mr. Stimac said it was 12’.  Mr. Zoabi 
said that the highway is higher and these towers would make it more visible.  Mr. Fejes 
said traffic would have to bypass this hotel anyway as there is no exit to Maple Road, so 
traffic would have to exit at 14 Mile Road or 16 Mile Road.  Mr. Zoabi said that the 
height of the tower would be more for advertising. 
 
Mr. Fejes also asked if the height of these towers would present a problem for the Fire 
Department.  Mr. Stimac said that the Fire Department is equipped with very fine 
apparatus and have ladders that reach up to 100’.  The Fire Department would have fire 
lanes all around the building and would have access to all four sides.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked what is planned to be inside of the tower and Mr. Zoabi said that 
there would not be anything in the towers.  Mr. Courtney said that he had a problem 
with the height of the towers. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed with Mr. Courtney and said that he does not see a hardship with the 
land that would require a 52’ tower.  Mr. Wright also said that the freeway in this area is 
approximately 25’ above the property and the petitioner could put up a tower that is 40’ 
in height. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if they had a signed franchise agreement with any hotel chain that 
would mandate the 52’ tower.  Mr. Zoabi said that they did not although they are 
working with Holiday Inn Express. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that in his opinion the Board did not have a problem with the 2.5-acre 
parcel, but did object to the proposed height of the towers.   
 
Mr. Zoabi conferred with Mr. Al-Hakim and stated that they wished to withdraw their 
request for the 52’ high tower. 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       DECEMBER 20, 2005 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright  
 
MOVED, to accept Mr. Lahkman Al-Hakim, 1553 E. Maple request for withdrawal, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a new three-story hotel with a tower that has a 
building height of 52’-6”. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE WITHDRAWAL REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Lahkman Al-Hakim, 1553 E. Maple, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new hotel on a B-3 zoned parcel that is 2.5 acres in size where 
Paragraph B of Section 22.30.03 requires a minimum 3-acre parcel. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property listed in this application. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:45 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 11



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft January 11, 2006 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, January 11, 2006, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice   
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag 
 
ABSENT: Louise Schilling  
  
ALSO PRESENT: Steve Gasper, UBS Financial Services 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 01 - 001 
Moved by Houghton   
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That Louise E. Schilling be excused.  
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Schilling 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 01 - 002 
Moved by Szerlag   
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the December 14, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Schilling 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft January 11, 2006 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 01 - 003 
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Lamerato 
 
RESOLVED, That the board approve the following retirement requests: 
Patricia Samuilow, DB, 4/01/06, 37 years 6 months  
Jacqueline Sherwin-Wright, DB, 1/28/06, 26 years 4 months 
Gisela Beier, DB, 1/20/06, 10 years 3 months 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Schilling 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 
 
The Board will review it’s current Investment Policy at its February 8, 2006 Board Meeting. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREE NEWSLETTER 
 
The Board reviewed the final draft of the retiree newsletter and will forward a copy to all 
retirees in January. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – FORD & EARL PROPERTY UPDATE 
 
The Board was informed that the Ford and Earl property sale was completed on January 
10, 2006.  The Board was also made aware of Victor Lenivov’s reluctance to apologize to 
the Retirement Board regarding remarks made relative to the sale of the Ford and Earl 
property.  It was the consensus of the Board to have the Law Firm of Van Overbeke, 
Michaud & Timmony, P.C. review the tape containing the remarks made by Victor Lenivov.   
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 01 - 004  
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That Thomas Houghton and Steven Pallotta be appointed to service as Chair 
and Vice-Chair through 12/31/06. 
 
Yeas:  All 6 
Absent: Schilling 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW – SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft January 11, 2006 
 
 

 3

 
Steve Gasper, UBS Financial Services, reviewed the 9/30/05 Investment Performance 
Report. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2006 – 01 - 005  
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Geise 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board sell and purchase the following securities:   
 
Sell:   Skywest, Skyworks 
 
Purchase:   $1,000,000 SLMA Ed Notes, 6.00%, due 3/15/09; and $500,000 Certificate of 

Deposit for 90 days. 
 
Yeas:  All  6 
Absent: Schilling 
 
 
The next meeting is February 8, 2006 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:27 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\1-11-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  JANUARY 12, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday January 12, 2006 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Mary Shiner 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
         
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-1-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Lauren Andreoff and Cheng Chen be excused. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-1-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of December 8, 2005 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wilson, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-1-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Gregory, Griffen, Shiner, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  JANUARY 12, 2006 
 

 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
Meeting Dates and Times. 
The Board’s regular meeting dates were discussed.  It was decided to continue to meet 
on the second Thursday of the month at 7:30 PM. 
 
Boards and Commissions Appreciation Dinner. 
Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler and Zembrzuski all plan on attending. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
Everything is moving along smoothly.  Several heat panels were installed in the Adult 
Services office, as it had been quite cold in that area.  The public wireless connection to 
the Internet appears to have stabilized and over 900 people used it during December. 
 
Board Member’s Comments 
Griffen asked if the History of the Library could be updated and printed in a pamphlet.  
He also asked that the history of the library that is on the webpage be listed in reverse 
chronological order so that the recent items could be viewed first, and that we add the 
awards we have won.  Zembrzuski said that she liked the addition to the Library 
calendar of the meeting room abbreviations.  Wheeler noted that Esther Cram did a fine 
job of stepping in to cover on short notice for the Booked For Lunch Program.  Wheeler 
also commented positively on the Troy Country Fiddler’s concert. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
There was no report as the last SLC Board Meeting was cancelled due to weather. 
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
Stoutenburg reported that the Friend’s Board had met again with one of the professional 
fundraiser companies that they are interviewing.  It is their intent to make a decision as 
to whether or not to go forward, and if they do hire a firm, which firm it will be.  The 
intent is to find out from large donors in the area if an expansion of the library is an 
attractive project for them at this time. 
 
Gifts. 
Five gifts totaling $450.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items. 
January TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
15 written comments from the public were reviewed. 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT  JANUARY 12, 2006 
 

 3 

Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:35 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

The Chairman, Christopher Fejes, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, January 17, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 

Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Marcia Gies 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright  
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2005 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 20, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Hutson, Courtney, Wright, Fejes 
Abstain: 2 – Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – (taken out of order) - VARIANCE REQUEST.  BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF 
TROY, 3670 JOHN R (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief to construct a new facility 
with a portion of the building to be constructed 30’ in height where Section 30.10.04 of 
the Ordinance limits the height of building in the R-1C Zoning District to not more than 
25’ in height. 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Petitioner is also asking for relief of the Ordinance to have parking located at the rear 
property line where the Ordinance requires a 50’ setback from adjacent residentially 
zoned property; and relief of the required 4’-6” high masonry screen wall required along 
the east property line between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned 
property.  
 
Mr. Fejes informed the people in the audience that Item #10 was going to be postponed 
until the meeting of February 21, 2006, to allow Building Department staff the 
opportunity to re-send the Public Hearing notices. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Hutson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of the Boys & Girls Club of Troy, 3670 John R. 
(proposed address), for relief to construct a new facility with a portion of the building to 
be constructed 30’ in height where Section 30.10.04 of the Ordinance limits the height 
of buildings in the R-1C Zoning District to not more than 25’ in height; and relief of the 
required 4’-6” high masonry screen wall required along the east property line between 
the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property; and, for relief to have 
parking located at the rear property line to the meeting of February 21, 2006. 
 

• To allow the Building Department to send out Public Hearing notices to property 
owners within 300’ of this property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 21, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – (taken out of order) – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  JIM MCCAULEY, 
REPRESENTING THE SHALLOWBROOK SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, REGARDING THE PROPOSED BRIGGS PARK CONDOMINIUMS, 
for an interpretation on the validity of a site plan approval for the Briggs Park 
Condominium Development granted by the Planning Commission under the R-1T (One-
Family Attached Residential) provisions of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Fejes explained that the Board had received a memo from the City Attorney 
indicating that this Board did not have jurisdiction to act on this request. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Hutson 
 
 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to take no action on the Interpretation Request, Jim McCauley, representing 
the Shallowbrook Subdivision Homeowners Association, regarding the proposed Briggs 
Park Condominiums, for an interpretation on the validity of a site plan approval for the 
Briggs Park Condominium Development granted by the Planning Commission under the 
R-1T (One-Family Attached Residential) provisions of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• City Attorney determined that this Board did not have jurisdiction to act on this 

request. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO TAKE NO ACTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Fejes stated that if anyone had questions regarding this matter that they could talk 
to the City Attorney. 
 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS #2 THROUGH #4 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he is employed by Siemens Automotive, Item #3, and felt that he 
should excuse himself from a vote on this item. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from a vote on Item #3. 
 
Yeas:   5 – Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Maxwell 
Abstain: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #2 and Item #4 are in accordance with the suggested 
resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
ITEM #2 - RENEWAL REQUESTED.  KOREAN UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, 
42693 DEQUINDRE, for renewal of relief to maintain a landscaped berm in lieu of the 
4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the south side of off-street parking. 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Korean United Methodist Church, 42693 Dequindre, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief to maintain a landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry 
screening wall required along the south side of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
•  

ITEM #4– RENEWAL REQUESTED.  DANIEL LESKE, DDS, 5895 JOHN R., for 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south property line 
and the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the west property line where the 
site abuts residential property. 
 
MOVED, to grant Daniel Leske, DDS, 5895 John R., a three (3) year renewal for relief 
of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south property line; and a three (3) 
year renewal of relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the west 
property line abutting residential. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  SIEMENS AUTOMOTIVE, 4685 INVESTMENT 
DRIVE, for relief to maintain a landscaped berm along the west and south sides of the 
site where a 6’ high decorative masonry screen wall is required. 
 
MOVED, to grant Siemens Automotive, 4685 Investment Drive, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief to maintain a landscaped berm along the south and west sides of the site where 
a 6’ high decorative masonry screen wall is required. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Hutson, Maxwell, Wright 
Abstain: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE RENEWAL FOR THREE (3) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHRISTOPHER ENRIGHT ARCHITECTS, 1600 
W. MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to have a two-way driveway with a width of 
19.11’ where Section 40.25.03 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 24’ wide two-way 
driveway. 
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if Mr. Enright wished to have this item heard or if he wanted to 
postpone it until the next meeting for the opportunity of a full Board.  Mr. Enright said 
that the owner of the building was also present and wished to have this request heard 
this evening.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to have a 
two-way driveway with a width of 19.11’, where Section 40.25.03 of the Ordinance 
requires a minimum 24’ wide two-way driveway width.  This item first appeared before 
this Board at the meeting of December 20, 2005 and was postponed until tonight’s’  
meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to present his site plan to the Planning 
Commission showing a reduction in parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Enright stated that they had put the plan in front of the Planning Commission and 
had answered their concerns regarding the parking issues.  The Planning Commission 
has requested that instead of keeping 23 to 24 parking spaces at the front of the 
building for the lease space, these parking spaces would be designated for the 
gymnasium area.  In looking at the plan Mr. Enright and Mr. Buechner have determined 
that there would be a practical difficulty in having them remove the bump out area of the 
building in order to provide parking spaces.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a parking variance would still be required with a reduction in the 
use of the building.  Mr. Enright stated that they have enough parking spaces as shown 
on the site plan with the current use. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if a variance is required for the parking.  Mr. Enright said that it is his 
understanding from the Planning Commission that originally they wanted 48 spaces for 
the gym and 24 spaces at the front of the building designated for a future use, and after 
going before the Planning Commission the Planning Commission denied the waiver.  
Mr. Hutson said that at the last meeting they were granted one variance regarding the 
sidewalk, but were concerned about the width of the driveway.  Is a variance still 
required if the Planning Commission has already granted approval on the site plan.  Mr. 
Enright said that he acted on behalf of Mr. Buechner, and once they eliminated the 
bump out in the building there was a consistent 24’ width for the driveway.  After further 
investigation, they have determined that it would be very difficult to remove this bump 
out and therefore are asking for a variance in the driveway width that would allow them 
to maintain this part of the building. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that the Board has been concerned about safety with a smaller driveway 
width.  Mr. Fejes said that he thought they were going to go and see if they could get a 
reduction in parking spaces.  Mr. Enright said that the solution at the last meeting was 
for them to eliminate the bump out and the Planning Commission approved that plan.  
Mr. Fejes then asked why they could not eliminate that part of the building and Mr. 
Enright said it would be very difficult for them to move water lines and other utilities to  
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
the building.  Mr. Fejes then asked Mr. Enright to give the members that were not 
present at the last meeting an over view of this request. 
 
Mr. Enright said that the building is approximately 27,000 square feet.  22,000 square 
feet is the large warehouse part of the building, and there are approximately 5,000 
square feet of office space on the south side of the building.  The Planning Commission 
has determined that the whole 5,000 square feet has to be used within a gymnastics 
type usage.  They cannot lease that space out because of the parking issue.   Mr. Fejes 
asked how long this building has been this way.  Mr. Buechner said that the building 
was built in 1960. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if parking has always been in the location where the bump out is.  Mr. 
Buechner said that there was.  There are no other site improvements that have been 
done to this site.  Mr. Hutson then asked if semi trucks were going to use this area.  Mr. 
Buechner said that originally it was a tool and die shop, and it was very possible that 
they used semi trucks at that time.  Mr. Buechner also stated that they would not need 
semi trucks any longer.  Mr. Buechner further stated that as the owner of the building he 
wants to be as safe as possible, but also wants to remain prudent about the changes to 
this site.  The boiler room controls the lifeline in the building and they would like to avoid 
taking it off.  They have looked at other options in changing the parking around, but they 
would lose parking spaces.  They want as much parking as possible. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that a tool and die shop does not have a lot of traffic compared to a 
gymnastic facility that would have lots of traffic.  Mr. Courtney then asked how many 
parking spaces are required based on the use of this building.  Mr. Enright said that 
underneath a gymnastics use there isn’t a specific requirement.  The closest use that 
they could come up with was a health club, which would require 400 parking spaces.  
Mr. Enright also said that Mr. Miller thought that number of parking spaces was absurd, 
and the Planning Commission determined that 72 parking spaces would be adequate 
for this building.  Presently there are 72 parking spaces on the site. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if City Council still had to rule on the number of parking spaces.  Mr. 
Stimac said that the Planning Commission has in their authority to look at non-
simultaneous use of spaces and simultaneous function of parking spaces.  It is Mr. 
Stimac’s understanding based upon the petitioner’s testimony that the Planning 
Commission found that for a gymnastic facility of this size 72 parking spaces is the 
minimum required number of parking spaces for that use.  The petitioner originally did 
not intend on using any portion of the front part of the building for the gymnastic facility.  
Originally they planned to have the gymnastic facility in the back and were planning to 
lease out the front 5,000 square feet to another retail user, and now the Planning 
Commission has told them that they cannot do that as they need all 72 spaces for the 
gymnastic facility.  City Council does not have to act on the request for a gymnastic 
facility with 72 spaces available.  If they were to lease out the front of the building, they 
would be required to appear before City Council for a waiver. 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked how many spaces would need to be removed to make that area an 
acceptable driveway.  Mr. Enright said that he thought it would be three (3) parking 
spaces, which would bring the count down to 69.  Mr. Maxwell said that he would much 
rather see the reduction of three parking spaces.  Mr. Maxwell then asked if 69 parking 
spaces would be adequate.  Mr. Buechner said that he wants to be a good neighbor 
and wants to make sure that there is enough parking for this business.  Mr. Maxwell 
then asked if in his opinion, Mr. Buechner could run this business with 69 parking 
spaces.  Mr. Buechner said that he did not think that would be adequate in the future.  
Mr. Maxwell said that in his opinion this is an extremely tight radius and does not feel 
that granting the width variance would be in the best interest of safety.  Mr. Maxwell also  
said that he feels the petitioner would be better off with the loss of three parking spaces, 
but have a safer facility.   
 
Mr. Courtney also said that a portion of this property is being used by someone else as 
a parking area.  Mr. Buechner said that currently Belle Tire is utilizing this area and due 
to the configuration of the site, it would be difficult to put parking in this area.  Mr. 
Enright said that the only way to utilize that space effectively would be to have access 
through the Bell Tire site.  Mr. Enright said that they have looked into that, but it did not 
work out with Mr. Buechner’s interest.  Mr. Buechner said the property has a very odd 
angle and it would be very difficult to put parking in this area.   
 
Mr. Buechner went on to say that he is also interested in keeping this area safe.  He has 
spoken to the Fire Marshall, and has been informed that they require an 18’ wide aisle 
for their fire trucks.  There are two entrances off of Blaney and they are trying to 
accommodate everyone.  Mr. Maxwell also said that there are a number of driveways in 
this area and a lot of traffic and he does not feel this is a safe solution.  Larger vehicles 
would have a more difficult time making the turn and he believes the petitioner would be 
better off with three less parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had thought of making this drive one-way.  Cars 
could come in off of Blaney and leave through the other drive.  Mr. Enright said he did 
not realize that was an option and felt that the Planning Commission would have to act 
on that request.  Mr. Courtney said they could have both ways off of Blaney and just 
one way off of Maple, or the petitioner could try to re-design the corner.  Mr. Enright said 
that if they want to use the space up front as lease space, they will have to enter into an 
agreement with the neighbors around them to use the spaces for other uses.  They 
cannot use the 5,000 square feet for lease space because of the determination of the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this was a training facility and Mr. Buechner said that it would be 
instruction for gymnastics.  Mr. Kovacs also asked if they would lose parking spaces by 
making them angled parking.  Mr. Stimac said that the parking spaces dimensions stay 
the same, 9 1⁄2’ wide by 19’ long, however, when you go to a one-way driveway the drive 
width would change because you would not have two cars passing by.  The width of  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
that driveway varies anywhere from 13’ to 21’.  This is an unusually shaped site and 
usually unless you have a very large parking lot you would lose spaces by going to 
angled spaces.  Mr. Kovacs said that he thought that only the 12 or 13 spaces in 
question could be angled, and thereby increase safety.  Also, if they went to a one-way 
drive they could maintain the driveway width.  Mr. Kovacs also suggested that it may be 
beneficial for the petitioner to go back to the drawing board to see if there was another 
option that would not require a variance. 
 
Mr. Enright said that in his opinion it is much safer to have two two-way drives in and 
out and once the facility is completed, he believes that most people would use the 
entranceway off of Blaney rather than Maple Road.   
 
Mr. Wright said that personally he would rather see a one-way drive off of Maple, which 
would solve the width problems, allow them to keep the three parking spaces and have 
traffic exit onto Blaney.  Mr. Wright also said that there are a number of members of the 
Planning Commission who believe that parking will be very tight even with 72 parking 
spaces.   
 
Mr. Buechner said that safety is his number one concern, and he also wants to be able 
to provide as much parking as possible.  This business is the busiest from 5:00 P.M. to 
9:00 P.M. and also on Saturdays.  Most people will enter from Blaney.  They originally 
planned to have Hertz at the front of the building but this deal fell through.  He is trying 
to set up some other type of exercise facility at the front of the building and has lost a lot 
of money because he cannot lease this space out to some other type of business.  This 
building has been vacant for three years and he is trying to create a win-win situation for 
everyone involved.  He would like to come up with some kind of compromise.  Mr. 
Buechner said that he does not want to lose a couple of spaces and furthermore a lot of 
the time people are going to be parking in the back where there is a lot of extra parking.  
He has seen semi-trucks coming in to drop off equipment and they have not had a 
problem. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that semi-trucks are not fighting the way in with people dropping off 
children.  Mr. Courtney further stated that he thinks the best solution may still be a one-
way drive.  
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would still be required if this drive was made into a 
one-way drive.  Mr. Stimac said if the parking was angled, it could make the driveway 
wide enough but without laying out the plan, he didn’t know how many parking spaces 
would be provided.  If it is made into a one-way drive, angled parking would be 
imperative.  Mr. Stimac said that he did not know if that would create a reduction in 
parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the landscaped area.  Mr. Buechner said that they do plan to 
comply with the landscaping requirements.   

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked the petitioner would go with a one-way drive off of Maple and retaining 
the parking spaces.  Mr. Enright said that whether they could go with a one- way drive 
and angled parking, they would probably still require a variance.  Mr. Courtney said that 
if the parking is not angled enough another variance could be required.  Mr. Enright said 
that another variance would not be the same as the one they are asking the Board for 
this evening.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the petitioner could ask for a postponement for another month.  Mr. 
Stimac said that in his opinion it was the sentiment of the Board that the petitioner could 
modify his plan and have a one-way drive that would eliminate the need for a variance; 
or the Board could deny the request of the petitioner, which would force them to modify 
the site.  If the modification results in the reduction of the number of available parking 
spaces, they may need to go to City Council for a waiver of parking spaces.   If they 
were to angle their parking spaces and in order to maintain the bump out of the building, 
they may still have to come to this Board for a variance for driveway width.  The Public 
Hearing notice was for a driveway width of 19.11’ where 24’ is required, and after 
modification it is discovered that this driveway width would change, a new Public 
Hearing notice would be required.  The petitioner could investigate the angle parking 
and if it complies with the Ordinance, he would not need to come back to this Board.  If 
he does go with the angle parking, he may need a different variance than what has 
been advertised.   
 
Mr. Wright said that in his opinion they would lose one parking space if they angled this 
space.  Mr. Stimac said it was difficult to say without doing the layout. 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Christopher Enright Architects, 1600 W. Maple, for 
relief of the Ordinance to have a two-way driveway with a width of 19.11’ where Section 
40.25l.03 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 24’ wide two-way driveway to the 
meeting of February 21, 2006. 
 

• To give the petitioner the opportunity to investigate angle parking in order to 
eliminate the need for this variance. 

 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to see more input before he would grant a variance.  
If the angle parking doesn’t work, he would like the petitioner to present the reasons 
why it would not work. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that the area leased to Belle Tire could be used for parking, and without 
a written contract they would be able to do that.  Mr. Buechner said that is one of the 
reasons they have not signed a contract with them.  Mr. Buechner said that the Board 
has given them a number of options that he would like to look into. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes called for a vote on the motion to postpone. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 21, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TROY CHRISTIAN CHAPEL, 400 E. LONG LAKE, 
for relief to maintain a fence and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” high 
masonry-screening wall along a portion of the south and west property lines that abut 
residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief to maintain a fence and 
landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along a 
portion of the south and west property lines that abut residential zoning.  A variance has 
been granted on this property since 1986.  This item last appeared before this Board at 
the meeting of December 20, 2005 and was postponed to allow the Building 
Department to publish Public Hearing Notices in order to consider making this a 
permanent variance.  Those hearing notices have now been sent. 
 
A representative of the Troy Christian Chapel was present. 
 
Mr. Fejes opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Christian Chapel, 400 E. Long Lake relief to maintain a fence 
and landscaped berm in lieu of the required 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall along a 
portion of the south and west property lines that abut residential zoning. 
 

• Current treatment is much better than a screen wall. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

Mr. Courtney said that Item #7 had been postponed at the request of the petitioner to 
allow for a full Board and asked Mr. Harik if he wished to postpone this request again.    
Mr. Harik said that he would like his request heard this evening. 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PIERRE HARIK, 690 SYLVANWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District.       
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to split an 
existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 77.31’ for each parcel.  
This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 30.10.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single-family home sites in this Zoning 
District.       
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of December 20, 2005 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner to this meeting to allow him the opportunity of a 
full Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if there had been other lot split requests approved on Sylvanwood.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he did not recall any on Sylvanwood, however, there was a similar request 
on Trinway, which the Board denied.  Most of the lots on Sylvanwood are the same as they 
were when they were originally platted back in 1939.  Mr. Maxwell said that this lot is in the 
middle of a number of lots that are not in compliance with the minimum 85’ lot width for 
single-family homes. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the width of the lots to the north of this property were.  Mr. Stimac 
said that he did not have the exact dimensions, but was sure they were at least 85’ wide as 
they were in compliance with the Ordinance.  Mr. Kovacs said that he didn’t understand why 
these lots were platted with different lot widths.   
 
Mr. Jeff Schlussel, an attorney, was present to represent Mr. Harik.  Mr. Schlussel said 
that he thought the lots on the north side in this area were between 94’ and 95’ wide.  
Mr. Schlussel said that the plat for Sylvan Garden Subdivision was dedicated and 
accepted approximately around 1940 and originally consisted of 42 lots, but was 
amended to 60 lots.  Lot #22 and #23 were platted as separate lots, but were allocated 
only one parcel I.D. number as a matter of convenience for the City and the owner 
never wanted to keep them as one lot.  Mr. Harik is attempting to purchase this parcel.  
Mr. Miller, the owner of the property applied to the City to have these lots split and was 
subsequently denied.  It is their belief that this variance request meets all the criteria of 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Schlussel said that granting this variance request would not be contrary to public 
interest; would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property; will only apply to the 
lots mentioned in this application and to deny the request of the petitioner would prohibit 
him from full enjoyment of his property.  This property was platted as two individual lots  

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
and should be entitled to all the uses of those individual lots.  A plat is essentially an 
agreed upon measure by various parties including a municipality, to divide a portion of 
land in an organized fashion.  Troy Township accepted the plat in compliance with all 
State statutes and Municipal Ordinances at the time, and in his opinion the City is 
required to be bound by that agreement.  Mr. Schlussel questioned whether the 
Subdivision Control Act, allows the City to change that approval.  The City’s 
predecessor complied with all these requirements and he does not believe that the City 
has the right to deny a request retroactively. 
 
Section 40.50.02 of the Ordinance addresses non-conforming lots.  Mr. Schlussel said 
that this section of the Ordinance violates the Subdivision Control Act by essentially 
changing the conditions of the plat that were originally approved.  If this variance is 
granted and Mr. Harik builds a home on each lot, these homes will comply with the 
setback requirements in the R-1C Zoning District.  In addition, 77’ lot sizes complies 
with the average lot size provision of the Zoning Ordinance, Section 34.10.00 that 
permits varying lot sizes as long as the average lot size meets the Zoning designation 
requirement and the lot size is not reduced by 10%.  Mr. Schlussel has calculated that 
the average lot size in this area is 85.59’ and if reduced by 10% the lot width would be 
76.5’ for width and these lots, if split, would result in a 77.31’ lot width.  Applying the 
new lot width standards to the single owner of two contiguous lots, on the day that the 
non-conforming lot provision was enacted, serves as an unauthorized taking of the land 
by the City. It prevents the owner from using the land as designated by the original plat.  
The City must remain bound by the agreements of its predecessors.  There are 
instances when the owner of a non-conforming lot is allowed to rebuild on his property, 
if for example there is a casualty.  It makes no legal or practical sense to create a 
hardship on someone that owns adjoining non-conforming lots by denying the same 
benefits to those lots that are conferred to other lots in the subdivision.  It is simply a 
denial of equal protection to such an owner. 
 
Mr. Schlussel went on to say that the non-conforming lot provision of the Ordinance 
essentially re-plats the subdivision by changing the size and number of lots in the 
subdivision.  The Sylvan Garden subdivision was amended with 60 lots, and now 
because lot #22 and lot #23 are under one ownership, the subdivision has only 59 lots.  
Section 104 of the Subdivision Control Act only permits the replatting of a subdivision by 
a court order or requiring the consent of 100% of the owners within the subdivision.   
Neither the City nor anyone else can unilaterally amend the plat without complying with 
the requirements of the Subdivision Control Act.   
 
Mr. Schlussel said that by not granting the variance it will create significant hardship to 
Mr. Harik and will have an adverse effect on the subdivision.  The owner could remove 
the existing home and build one large home, however, it would be a “big foot home” and 
would be out of place in this area and would change the entire character of the 
neighborhood.  The petitioner meets all of the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance for 
a variance to be granted.   

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked when Mr. Harik purchased the property and Mr. Schlussel said that 
he has not purchased it yet, but he is hoping to close very soon.  Mr. Courtney said that 
Mr. Harik is aware of the condition of the lot and that this Ordinance was passed a long 
time ago.  The citizens of Troy would have been aware of the changes at that time.  The 
only complaints Mr. Courtney has ever heard regarding the change in the Ordinance 
has been when someone has wanted to split a lot for monetary reasons and was unable 
to do so.  Mr. Schlussel said that the lots were never split; the City just made them one 
lot.  Mr. Courtney said that they became one lot by Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that based on what Mr. Schlussel has stated a variance is not 
required because the City has done everything illegally and the lot does not need to be 
split.  Mr. Schlussel said that the Assessing Department should have split the lot, 
however, because they didn’t, a variance is required.  Mr. Hutson asked what the 
practical difficulty is on this lot that requires a variance.  Mr. Schlussel said that the 
owner is not entitled to build a home on each separate lot.  Mr. Hutson stated that was 
not a practical difficulty and asked what is wrong with the lot itself that would require a 
variance.  Mr. Schlussel said that as required by the Ordinance he was required to 
petition the Assessing Department for a lot split and after he was denied his only 
recourse was to appear before this Board. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) objections on file.  There is one approval on file; however, Mr. 
Courtney questioned the validity of that approval as it was from the owner of 690 
Sylvanwood.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that there were two points brought up by Mr. Schlussel that he wished 
to discuss.  Mr. Schlussel indicated that under the lot averaging provisions of the 
Ordinance that he was permitted to have 76.5’ wide lots, which is correct, however, it is 
stated in the Ordinance that the technique of averaging minimum lot sizes shall be 
acceptable only in instances where the entire preliminary plat, which has received 
approval from City Council turn into a final plat and then recorded in its totality.  You 
cannot apply the lot averaging provision to lots within a subdivision that has already 
been platted.  It is not to be used for lot splitting purposes and in Chapter 41, the 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, specifically says that you can only use the lot averaging 
sizes when you are in a subdivision that was platted under those conditions.   
 
Mr. Schlussel said that he did not disagree with Mr. Stimac, but the point to be 
emphasized was that the City itself has contemplated the fact that there could be 
instances where you have lots in the R-1C Zoning District that are conforming lots that 
are 76’ or larger.  Or in fact, in the clustering provisions these lots could be taken down 
to 70’.  Mr. Stimac said that if it was submitted, reviewed and approved under those  
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
conditions that would be a correct assessment.  Mr. Schlussel said that unfortunately 
those conditions did not exist in 1940, which is when this subdivision was platted. 
 
Mr. Stimac also said that regarding the issue of the City combining the lots, presently 
there is a garage that is on the adjoining lot.  The house was built in 1948, but he did 
not know when the garage was added.  The garage is across the lot line, and in Mr. 
Stimac’s opinion since the owner built the garage across both properties it would 
indicate that the parcels had been considered to be combined.   
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that in this particular case, considering that the houses in the 
immediate vicinity are on basically the same size lots he would not have a problem 
granting this variance.  Mr. Maxwell also agrees with the petitioner that if the lot is not 
split, it is more likely that a larger home would be built and he thought it would be 
detrimental to this neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that because the people directly across the street are against the split 
he would be opposed to it and also the only hardship that has been presented is 
monetary.  Mr. Courtney did not see a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that every time we get into the requests for lot splits it is very easy to 
say that the hardship is financial and in this case Mr. Kovacs does not believe the 
hardship is monetary.  Mr. Kovacs thinks that two houses would look better on this 
property and he is in favor of this request.  Mr. Kovacs also agrees with the petitioner 
that originally this was two platted lots, which could support two homes and now the City 
has changed the rules.  Mr. Kovacs also thinks that his hardship is that he cannot build 
two homes on these lots. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the petitioner does not live in Troy and believes he is only 
interested in this property for financial gain.  Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Courtney’s opinion 
would be different if it was the original owner asking for this split.  Mr. Courtney said that 
the original owner sold this property as one lot.  The current owner is selling the 
property as one lot and he believes that they have known for many years exactly what 
they are able to do with this property.   
 
Mr. Wright said that he agrees with Mr. Courtney and thinks this is strictly a financial 
gain.  In the past year most of these lot splits have been denied and Mr. Wright thinks 
that the City could open itself to litigation to approve this variance without a hardship 
with the land.  Mr. Wright does not see a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this Board considers each case individually and he sees a 
difference because of the location of this property.  Looking at the neighborhood this lot 
split would be in line with the surrounding lots.  Two smaller homes would look better in 
this area rather than one large home.  Mr. Maxwell also said that the will make money 
whether he puts up one house or two. 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he does not feel it is up to this Board to encourage smaller lots and 
smaller homes.  To approve the lot split would be contrary to the intent of the Ordinance 
and would encourage developers to go the wrong way.  Mr. Hutson does not believe the 
petitioner has demonstrated a practical difficulty that runs with the land such as 
streams, hills or  huge landscaping that would require large trees that would  have to be 
removed. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Pierre Harik, 690 Sylvanwood, for relief of the 
Ordinance to split an existing parcel of land into two lots that will result in a lot width of 
77.31’ for each parcel.  This property is located in the R-1C Zoning District.  Section 
30.10.04 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot width of 85’ for single family 
homes in this Zoning District. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a practical hardship that runs with the land. 
• Variance would be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Hutson, Wright, Courtney, Fejes 
Nays:  2 – Kovacs, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  K 4 ARCHITECTURE LLC, 734 W. LONG LAKE, 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new branch bank 
that will result in parking within 20’ of the front property line along Long Lake Road, 
where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires a 50’ front setback free of parking and 
maneuvering lanes to be provided in the R-C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
new branch bank.  The property in question is in the R-C (Research Center) Zoning District.  
The existing office building on the site was constructed at a time that the site was zoned in 
the O-1 (Low-Rise Office) Zoning classification. Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires a 
50’ front setback free of parking and maneuvering lanes be provided in the R-C Zoning 
District.  The site plan submitted indicates parking within 20’ of the front property line along 
Long Lake Road. 
 
Marcos Makohon, from K4 Architecture, was present and stated that they are looking at 
picking up the southwest corner of the property.  In order to maintain a balance between 
this use and 700 Tower, they are taking more land they need.  They investigated the 
possibility of shifting the parking to a different part of the site, however, some premier client 
parking would be located in a rather awkward position.  The clients would have to cross the 
lane that services the drive in facility.  The adjacent parking will remain as is, and there is  

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
full circulation on the site.  They will continue to use known thoroughfares and Mr. Makohon 
does not believe this will be detrimental to the City. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could redesign the site and put the drive through on the other 
side of the building.  Mr. Makohon said that if they were to turn the building it would cause a 
reverse flow and the drive up windows would be on the wrong side of the vehicle, and, also 
would create a problem for stacking.  Mr. Makohon said that they have developed this site  
very carefully and would provide a safe site for their clients.  The nearest lane would have a 
window with a drawer, and also a night deposit and ATM.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there is existing parking at the lot line on the adjacent site.  Mr. Stimac 
said that in the redevelopment of this property they would have to comply with the 
requirements of the R-C District, which would require a 50’ front landscaped area.  The 
property not being re-developed would not be required to comply with the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the present landscaping would be disturbed in any way.  Mr. Makohon 
said that they plan to improve this area.  They plan to reshape the area and add to it.   
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of K 4 Architecture LLC, 734 W. Long Lake (proposed 
address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new branch bank that will result in 
parking within 20’ of the front property line along Long Lake Road, where Paragraph L of 
Section 31.30.090 requires a 50’ front setback free of parking and maneuvering lanes to be 
provided in the R-C Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance relates only to the property described in this petition. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would preclude full enjoyment of the property 

and would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Site plan as proposed provides adequate landscaping to shield the parking. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOHN SECCO, 977 E. FOURTEEN MILE, for relief 
of the Ordinance to alter an existing building that will result in a parking lot that is 
proposed to be only 10’ from the proposed 75’ right of way line of Fourteen Mile, where 
Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires a 50’ front yard setback free of parking or 
maneuvering aisles. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter an 
existing building.  The petitioner has submitted an application to rezone a portion of this 
property from the current B-3 (General Business) Zoning Classification to the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning Classification.  If this request is successful, Paragraph L of Section  
31.30.00 would require a 50’ front yard setback free of parking or maneuvering aisles.  The 
site plan submitted indicates the installation of a new parking lot and drive that is proposed 
to be only 10’ from the proposed right of way line of Fourteen Mile Road. 
 
The southern portion of the property was developed in the B-3 Zoning classification there is 
a parking area in the front of the building, which allows for parking within 10’ of the south 
property line.  As part of the redevelopment of the site, the petitioners will be adding 
additional parking on the east end of this site following this same line.  If the property is re-
zoned to the M-1 zoning district a 50’ setback is required.  Mr. Stimac said that at this point 
in time this property has not be rezoned and officially this standard does not apply.  Mr. 
Stimac suggested that if the Board chooses to grant this variance, they may want to put a 
condition that the variance will apply only if the petitioner is successful in obtaining the re-
zoning. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the request for this variance was somewhat premature.  Mr. Stimac said 
that they had met with the petitioners some months ago and determined that there were a 
series of steps that they would have to go through to get approval for their development.  
There were a lot of Boards that they had to appear before and unfortunately one decision 
was postponed, and now these items have gotten out of order.  Mr. Stimac stated that 
under the original schedule, City Council would have acted on the re-zoning before the 
petitioner came to this Board. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked approximately how far the building is from the 50’ setback line.  Mr. 
Stimac said that there are no dimensions shown on the plan before him, but is quite 
sure that the building complies with the setback requirements.  Mr. Stimac also said that 
there are industrial buildings in the City that are built right on the property line. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the building was going to be used for.  Mr. Kevin Koveck, 
Facility Director and the potential client and Mr. John Secco were present.  Mr. Koveck 
said that the use of the building has not been released for public discussion at this time.  
Mr. Stimac said that in preliminary discussions with the petitioners it has been 
determined that the proposed use is appropriate for Light Industrial Zoning. 
 
Mr. Secco said that the hardship is the rezoning of the property.  Existing parking will be 
non-conforming once the property is re-zoned.  They are trying to allow a driveway 
across the front of the property to insure proper circulation and provide access for 
emergency vehicles in the event of an accident.  The building is 173,000 square feet 
and they would like to have full access around the entire building.  Another reason to 

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
have a driveway along the front would be to mirror what is at the back of the building 
and also to be able to provide additional handicapped parking for customers. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked where the other driveway was and Mr. Secco said that there are two 
driveways along Fourteen Mile Road, but you can only get to the front of the building 
from the west.  The driveway at the east of the property just loops around to the back.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why the petitioner needed an additional entrance.  Mr. Secco said 
that the curb cuts are already there, and if there was an accident on Fourteen Mile and 
traffic backs up, it would make more sense to have another drive that emergency 
vehicles could use to access the entire building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner planned to increase the parking in the front yard 
along Fourteen Mile Road.  Mr. Secco said that there would be an additional six (6) 
parking spaces along Fourteen Mile.  Mr. Courtney confirmed that the additional parking 
on the side would be for employees. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed.  
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the additional six (6) parking spaces were needed in order for the 
petitioner to meet the parking requirements.  Mr. Stimac said that by Ordinance they do 
not need the additional six (6) parking spaces.  The plans for the inside of the building 
have not been presented at this time, and in order to answer that question Mr. Stimac 
would need to know what percentage is for office space, and how much space would be 
used for prototype and warehouse uses.  Currently there are 458 parking spaces 
proposed and they would be over the minimum requirement even if the building was 
used as strictly office space. 
 
Mr. Koveck said that it their current hope to consolidate several facilities including 
prototype, headquarters, engineering and will have four hundred (400) employees.  The 
parking out front would be ideal for customers.  They come in from all over the world 
and they would like to use the side parking for employees.   
 
Mr. Hutson said that when this building was used in the past he did not see any problem 
with traffic and if it is rezoned he does not see a problem with having them use this 
space for parking. 
 
Mr. Wright said that he agrees with Mr. Hutson and all they are looking at doing is 
adding some additional parking. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the landscaping requirements would be met with this additional 
parking.  Mr. Stimac said that he had a discussion with the Planning Department earlier  

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                         JANUARY 17, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
today and they believe that they will exceed the landscape requirements based on the 
plans that they have presented.  The Planning Department is working to verify those 
figures. 
 
Mr. Secco said that they worked with Mark Miller very closely and they will not be 
requesting a variance for landscape.  The  former use of this building was a warehouse  
and a showroom.   This client is planning to use it for their corporate headquarters, 
office staff, engineering department and this will create a need for a lot of parking. 
 
Motion by Hutson 
Supported by Wright  
 
MOVED, to grant John Secco, 977 E. Fourteen Mile, relief of the Ordinance to alter an 
existing building that will result in a parking lot that is proposed to be only 10’ from the 
proposed 75’ right of way line of Fourteen Mile, where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 
requires a 50’ front yard setback free of parking or maneuvering aisles. 
 

• Variance is conditioned on the re-zoning of this property to the M-1 Zoning 
District. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to any of the properties within the 

immediate vicinity. 
• Public health, safety and welfare would not be negatively affected. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright informed the Board that if City Council goes along with the Planning 
Commission recommendation he will be serving on this Board for another year. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:26 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Christopher Fejes, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary  
 

 19



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a















 

 

 

January 30, 2006 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration 
  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Agenda Item – Wireless Oakland 
 
SUMMARY: 
This report is intended to address the concerns expressed by Councilman Martin 
Howrylak in regards to utilizing city assets to provide free wireless Internet access to 
Troy residents, and thereby potentially broadening the exposure of our youth to Internet 
predators.   
 

1. The city assets provided by the City of Troy are merely the physical locations to 
attach the wireless devices to, such as light posts.  The wireless network will in 
no way utilize the City’s existing network. 

2. To gain access to Wireless Oakland requires a personal computer, laptop, 
personal digital assistant (PDA), or similar device equipped with a standard 
Internet browser and a Wi-Fi compliant Ethernet card. 

3. Each user must register via a connection gateway and create a login and 
password to gain access to the Internet.    

4. The wireless network will be "open", in that it is not a secure network.  Users 
should always make sure they are on a secure (encrypted) Web page prior to 
sending or receiving confidential data.  Users should also always make sure that 
when accessing the Internet they take appropriate security measures such as 
utilizing a firewall, current virus protection, and updated software.   

5. Similarly the Wireless Oakland Project does not include any content filtering or 
activity monitoring.  Under the First Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, content 
filtering may be permitted when children will have exclusive access.  However, 
since Wireless Oakland makes Internet service available to all, content filtering 
would likely raise First Amendment concerns.    Parents, as well as anyone 
browsing or accessing sites, should be aware of potential predators.  Predators 
can establish contact with kids through conversations in chat rooms, instant 
messaging, and e-mail or discussion boards.  As with any other Internet service 
(wired or wireless), it is the responsibility of the adult(s) in the household to have 
appropriate filtering software or to supervise on-line activity.    

BACKGROUND 
Resolution #2005-12-556a authorized the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Wireless 
Oakland Inter-local and License Agreement between Oakland County and City of Troy. 
 
 
Prepared by Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



January 19, 2006 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Big Oak Trail Special Assessment District 
 
 
A Special Assessment District (SAD) was established for bituminous paving of 
Big Oak Trail (#04.201.1).  Each of the five (5) properties involved was assessed 
$5,170.00. 
 
The district was approved by City Council on October 4, 2004, and the first billing 
was done on September 1, 2005. 
 
The final cost for the project came in $6,261.54 less than the original estimate 
(24.22%) {See attached memo and report from the City Engineer}. 
 
Per City Charter (10.6) when the actual cost of a  Special Assessment is less 
than the original estimate by more than 5%, the difference shall be refunded to 
the property owners assessed. 
 
Three (3) of the five (5) owners have paid their assessments in full, and will be 
refunded $1,251.31 by the Treasurer’s Office. 
 
The remaining two (2) property owners have made one installment payment, and 
will be refunded $125.23 by the Treasurer’s Office, and have their remaining 
payments billed based on the new amortization schedule attached. 
 
 
NL/nl 
 
Copy City Treasurer after submittal to Council 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c











 
 
January 24, 2006 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – I75 and Long Lake Interchange Properties 
 
 
At the January 19, 2006 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board the 
following action was taken: 
 
Resolution #PR-2006-01-005 
Moved by: Kaltsounis 
Seconded by: Fejes 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board sees value in the 
City owned parcels associated with the I-75/Long Lake interchange and that 
options for these parcels should be explored for future park development or 
green space, and  
 
Be It Further Resolved that at such time as there are options for these 
properties they should be returned to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
for further input and recommendations.   
 
Yes:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-02d











 
 
 
January 24, 2006 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Pocket Park Parcels 
 
 
At the January 19, 2006 meeting of the parks and Recreation Advisory Board the 
following action was taken:   
 
Resolution #PR-2006-01-003 
Moved by: Hauff 
Seconded by: Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board acknowledges some 
value and desirability of pocket parks and recommend parcels be considered on 
an individual basis, based on the development potential and limitations.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-02e



 
January 3, 2006 
 
 
To:  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
 
From;  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  Jeffery J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
Subject: Pocket Parks 
 
 
As previously discussed, there are several parcels of vacant lots that the City 
may choose to sell or keep and develop as pocket parks.  The Park Board is 
being asked to make a recommendation on these sites.   
 
DEFINITION AND PURPOSE 
A “pocket Park” is best defined as a small area accessible to the general public 
that is often of primarily environmental, rather than recreational, importance.  
When located in an urban location, downtown, or business area, they can offer 
an open space for office workers or shoppers to relax.   
 
Pocket parks can also be located within residential neighborhoods and serve to 
provide residents a location to walk or bicycle a short distance from their home.  
The typical size of a pocket park is from 1⁄4 to 1 acre, with amenities ranging from 
undeveloped natural area to small play structure, picnic tables, trash receptacles, 
benches, landscaping, art sculptures, and drinking fountains these sites are in 
close proximity to resident’s homes, restrooms are not usually included.   
 
Their service area is approximately 1⁄4 mile radius, serving a population of 500 – 
1000 persons.  The main means of access to a pocket park is by foot or bicycle 
with no parking required, or desired at the site.   
 
PARK/OPEN SPACE INVENTORY 
Troy’s city park inventory contains 14 existing and 5 future park sites ranging in 
size from 3 acres (Redwood Park) to 96 acres (Firefighters Park).  The city also 
operates and maintains two eighteen-hole golf courses, Civic Center and 
Community Center grounds, and the 100-acre Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center/Troy 
Farm.  None of the existing, or proposed city parks would be considered “pocket 
parks.”   
 
The Troy School District operates 12 elementary, 5 middle, and two high schools 
offering open space, athletic fields, and playgrounds to residents when classes 
are not in session.  In addition, Birmingham and Warren Consolidated School 
Districts each have an elementary school in Troy serving as neighborhood 
recreation sites.   



 
Finally, many subdivision private open space areas scattered throughout the city 
serve the function of pocket parks providing neighborhood residents with mostly 
passive use.  Some of the subdivision private parks, which range in size from 1.5 
acres to 42 acres, contain play equipment, pathways, picnic tables, and athletic 
fields.  The subdivision homeowners associations maintain all of the subdivision 
open space/private parks.   
 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 
The cost of maintaining a pocket park is high relative to other parks due to the 
inability to take advantage of economies of scale.  Actual maintenance costs will 
vary depending on the level of development of the site, but for purpose of 
discussion, the estimated annual maintenance cost per acre if performed by City 
personnel is around $2500, based on an average level of maintenance at the site 
and the National Recreation and Park Association maintenance labor standard of 
118 staff hours per acre per year.   
 
MAINTENANCE RESOURCES 
Resources will be needed to maintain additional sites with respect to manpower 
and money.  Parks Department workloads have recently increased with the 
additional maintenance of Troy Community Center grounds, Skate Park, and 
Civic Center pathways.  If new pocket parks are to be maintained by the City 
without additional funds or manpower, the level of service in other areas of 
responsibility will likely decrease.   
 
Other options for maintenance of pocket parks might include homeowner 
associations, civic and business groups, service organizations, and volunteers.   
 
Currently, financial resources are such that budgeted funds are being held until 
there are significant dollars to develop the new park parcels acquired through the 
successful bond issue.  The estimated cost for these parcels to be developed is 
$8 million.  Annual allocation for park development has been $500,000 for the 
past two years.  If allocations remain the same in the future, it will be some time 
before funds are such that development will be possible.  Attached please find a 
memo that addresses the Ad Hoc committee review of the Cutting St. parcel.   
 
CONCLUSION 
Pocket parks can be a highly-desirous use of remnant city parcels, provided they 
are located in an area that will attract use by residents, office workers, or others 
and can be accessed by foot, bicycle, or other non-motorized means.   
 
From an economic development/opportunity point of view, the benefits of 
establishing pocket parks must also be carefully weighed against the revenue 
generated through the sale of those remnant parcels.   



 
 
 
 
 
Date: February 1, 2006 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – STATUS REPORT ON ZOTA-215-C – Article 43.74.00, 

Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle 
Parking Appeals 

 
 
The outdoor parking of commercial vehicles is limited to one commercial vehicle in the R-1 
single-family residential zoning districts.  To legally park more than one commercial vehicle 
outdoors or park a commercial vehicle that exceeds the maximum size limitations, a 
homeowner must be granted an appeal from City Council under the provisions of Article 
XLIV City Council Appeals. 
 
Transferring the authority of hearing commercial vehicle appeals from City Council to 
the Board of Zoning Appeals was an option that was discussed at the Joint meeting of 
City Council and Planning Commission held on March 28, 2005.  The Planning 
Commission has discussed this option in previous meetings.   
 
There are concerns that commercial vehicle appeals are essentially a use variance.  
The Zoning Ordinance does not provide the Board of Zoning Appeals with the authority 
to grant use variances.  Therefore, City Management has prepared preliminary draft 
provisions that permit outdoor parking of commercial vehicles subject to Special Use 
Approval.  The Planning Commission would therefore have the authority to permit 
outdoor parking of commercial vehicles, based on the application of four standards. 
 
The Planning Commission will be reviewing the preliminary draft at the February 7, 2006 
Special/Study meeting. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\215C\ZOTA 215C CC Status Memo 02 06 06.doc 

CampbellLD
Text Box
J-02f



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c





campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF TROY CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
DATE: JANUARY 27, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: ROY RATHKA, JR. v CITY OF TROY – COURT OF APPEALS 
DECISION RULING IN FAVOR OF TROY 

 
 
 
The Michigan Court of Appeals recently upheld the decision in favor of the City of Troy, and affirmed 
the decision of the Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien.  O’Brien granted summary 
disposition to Troy, and dismissed the lawsuit filed by Roy Rathka, Jr. against the City.  A copy of the 
Court of Appeals opinion is attached. 
 
Mr. Rathka filed a Circuit Court complaint against the City of Troy after being denied his request for a 
building permit for a duplex home on Canham Drive.  Canham is a 25-foot gravel drive that is not a 
“public” street.  The private drive is not approved for maintenance by the City of Troy.  Troy’s 
ordinance, Chapter 39, Section 40.10.01, requires new residences to have frontage on a public 
street that is accepted for maintenance by the City.  Although Mr. Rathka’s original parcel had 
frontage on a public street, his subsequent lot split and development of one duplex on a portion of 
the original parcel left the remainder parcel without the required public street frontage.   
 
Mr. Rathka asserted several legal theories in his case.  First, he argued that the City’s denial of the 
building permit was an unconstitutional taking without just compensation.  He argued that the City 
was estopped from denying that Canham was a public road.  He also argued that the City violated 
Michigan’s Land Division Act by allowing a lot split without assuring access to a public road.  He 
sought an injunctive order that would require the City to accept Canham as a public road, and to 
allow him to build his proposed duplex.  He also asked for money damages, costs and attorney fees.  
The Court of Appeals rejected all of these arguments, and affirmed the dismissal of the lawsuit 
against the City.   
 
Mr. Rathka could still file an application for leave to appeal this decision with the Michigan Supreme 
Court.  The application must be filed within 42 days of the date of the decision of the Court of 
Appeals.  The Michigan Supreme Court then has the discretion to decide whether it will allow the 
appeal.  We will keep you advised of any new developments in this case.  Please let us know if you 
have any questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06















TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
Members of Board of Zoning Appeals 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE: January 26, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Paul and Louise Piscopo v. Troy, et al 
 

 
 
 On January 20, 2006, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Michael Warren issued his 
Opinion and Order, reversing the decision of Troy’s Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) concerning the 
garage at 3129 Alpine (property owned by Paul and Louise Piscopo).  According to the Court, Mr. 
and Mrs. Piscopo were entitled to build their enormous garage under Troy’s then existing 
ordinances, and therefore the building permit was properly issued.  The Court opinion is attached. 
 

In January 2005, Piscopo neighbors George & Betty Reed and Thomas Krent filed an 
appeal with the Troy Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA), arguing that the Building Director erred in 
issuing a building permit for the Piscopo garage.  They argued that Chapter 39, Section 
40.57.02 of the Troy zoning ordinance required an accessory building (such as a garage) to 
have a smaller footprint than the main structure.  After a public hearing that continued through 
two meetings, the BZA agreed with the interpretation espoused by the neighbors, and 
determined the permit was issued in error.   

 
The garage on Alpine exceeded the ground floor area of the residence, and therefore a 

notice was sent to Mr. and Mrs. Piscopo, notifying them of the BZA’s decision and the need to 
conform to this interpretation of the zoning ordinance.  Mr. and Mrs. Piscopo then opted to file a 
lawsuit/ appeal in Oakland County Circuit Court, seeking a reversal of the BZA decision.  This 
filing is permitted as of right under Michigan’s City and Village Zoning Act. The lawsuit was filed 
against co- Defendants City of Troy, the Troy BZA, George & Betty Reed and Thomas Krent.   

 
The parties all filed extensive briefs, and argued their positions before the Court on 

January 18, 2006.  Both Troy and also the neighbors argued that the BZA decision should be 
affirmed, since it was reasonable and supported by competent, material, and substantial 
evidence on the record, and was not an abuse of the BZA’s discretion.  On the other hand, the 
Piscopos argued that under Troy’s then existing zoning ordinances, a garage that is attached to 
a house is subject only to the zoning regulations for the house, and not the accessory building 
regulations.  The Court agreed with the Piscopo position, and reversed the BZA.   
 

As a result of the Court’s decision, Mr. And Mrs. Piscopo are now entitled to a certificate 
of occupancy, assuming there is compliance with all other regulations unrelated to the size of 
the structure.  Although any of the parties can file an application for leave to appeal the Court’s 
decision, the filing of an application would not automatically stay the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy.  Any such application for leave to appeal must be filed within 21 days of the Court’s 
decision, or February 10, 2006.   
 

Please let us know if you have any questions regarding this matter. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07




















	AGENDA - February 6, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) Chief Craft will Present a Proclamation from the Avondale Youth Assistance Board Thanking the City of Troy for Supporting their Activities


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Council Rules of Procedure Proposed Amendment

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  �
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  B�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Storm Water Detentio
	E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C-SDM License for Corr
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Storm 
	E-8 Private Agreement for Amberwood Condominiums – Project N
	E-9 D & K Hannawa, LLC v. City of Troy et al
	E-10 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreements that the RCOC Mis
	E-11 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Booth (Quil
	E-12 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 
	E-13 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easemen
	E-14 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Watermain Easemen
	E-15 Mon Jin Lau Fireworks Request
	E-16 Schedule of Public Hearing for William Beaumont Hospita

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilitie
	F-2 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement with Christin
	F-3 Proposed Municipal Civil Infraction Amendments to Troy C
	F-4 Appointment of an Acting City Manager
	F-5 Informal Quotation Process – Award of Emergency Water Ma

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Rezoning Application – North Side of�
	b\) Rezoning Application – Proposed Medi�
	c\) Rescheduling of Adoption of Brownfie�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a)  Cutting Street Ad Hoc Committee Review of the Former Station 2
	b) 2006 Golf Division Rate Proposal
	c) Letter from Michael Hutson Requesting Discussion Regarding Term Limits for Boards and Committees


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Council Member Wade Fleming requested that the attached

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – February 16, 2005
	Traffic Committee/Final – March 16, 2005
	Traffic Committee/Final – May 18, 2005
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 20, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Draft
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – January 12, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 17, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Real Estate and Development Department – Maple Corridor Stud
	Information Technology Department – Wireless Oakland
	Assessing Department – Big Oak Trail Special Assessment Dist
	Parks and Recreation – I-75 and Long Lake Interchange Proper
	Parks and Recreation – Pocket Park Parcels
	Planning Department – Status Report on ZOTA-215C – Article 4

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Joseph McKay, Community
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Brenda Balas, in Apprec
	Letter to Chief Craft from Nicholas Brooks, Commending Offic
	Letter of Appreciation to the Troy Police Department from Ro
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Fr. Emanuel Shale
	Letter of Thanks to Aileen Bittner of the City Clerk's Offic
	Letter of Thanks to Brent Savidant from Keith Pretty, Presid

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Roy Rathka, Jr. v City of Troy – Court of Appeals Decis
	J-7  Paul and Louise Piscopo v. Troy, et al

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



